
NEW ISSUE – BOOK ENTRY ONLY                 RATINGS: Moody’s: “Aaa”
 Fitch:  “AAA”
 (See “BOND INSURANCE” and “RATINGS” herein)

In the opinion of the Law Offi ces of Cameron A. Weist, Scotts Valley, California, Bond Counsel, subject, however to certain qualifi cations 
described herein, under existing law, the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, such interest is not 
an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, although for the purpose 
of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations, such interest is taken into account in determining certain income and 
earnings.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, such interest is exempt from California personal income taxes. See “TAX MATTERS” herein.

$5,185,000
PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

(San Luis Obispo County, California)
SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS

(City Hall Refunding Project)
Dated:  Date of Delivery  Due:  December 1, as shown on the Inside Cover

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this issue. Investors must read the entire 
Offi cial Statement to obtain information essential to make an informed investment decision with respect to the purchase of the bonds.

The above-captioned Series 2007A Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds (the “Bonds”) are being issued by the Pismo Beach Public Financing 
Authority (the “Authority”) pursuant to an Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2007 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Authority and U.S. Bank 
National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Bonds will bear interest at the rates shown below, payable semiannually on December 1 and 
June 1 of each year (each an “Interest Payment Date”), commencing December 1, 2007. 

The Bonds are being issued as fully registered bonds, registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York (“DTC”), and will be available to ultimate purchasers in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, under 
the book-entry system maintained by DTC. Purchasers of Bonds will not receive physical certifi cates representing their interest in the Bonds. 
The Trustee will make payments of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds directly to DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., so 
long as DTC or Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds. Disbursements of such payments to the Benefi cial Owners of the Bonds is the 
responsibility of DTC’s Participants and Indirect Participants, as more fully described herein. See “THE BONDS – BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM” 
herein.

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as described herein.  See “THE BONDS – Redemption Provisions” herein.

The Bonds are being issued by the Authority, to (i) refund and defease a certain lease agreement dated as of February 1, 1999, by and between 
the Authority and the City, (ii) to fi nance the acquisition and construction of certain public improvements, (iii) to purchase a Qualifi ed Reserve 
Account Credit Instrument in lieu of the required deposit to the reserve account established for the Bonds under the Indenture, and (iv) pay the 
costs of issuance associated with the issuance and sale of the Bonds. See “PLAN OF FINANCE” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF 
FUNDS” herein.

Pursuant to a Lease Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2007 (the “Lease”), by and between the Authority and the City, the Authority has leased 
to the City certain real property and the improvements thereon comprising the Pismo Beach City Hall (the “Leased Property”). Under the Lease, 
the City will pay to the Authority certain base rental payments (the “Base Rental Payments”) in amounts equal to the scheduled debt service on 
the Bonds. Pursuant to the Indenture, the Authority will assign its right to receive the Base Rental Payments to the Trustee for the benefi t of the 
Owners of the Bonds. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” herein.

The scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same shall become due (other than by reason of redemption) will be 
insured by a municipal bond insurance policy to be issued simultaneously with delivery of the Bonds by MBIA Insurance Corporation (the “Bond 
Insurer”). See “BOND INSURANCE” herein.

The City is required under the Lease to make Base Rental Payments in each year in consideration for the use of the Leased Property from any 
source of legally available funds, and in an amount suffi cient to pay the annual principal of and interest on the Bonds. The City’s obligation to 
make Base Rental Payments is subject to abatement in the event of substantial interference with the use and possession of all or a part of the 
Leased Property. See “RISK FACTORS – Abatement” herein. The City has covenanted under the Lease to take such action as may be necessary to 
include and maintain all Base Rental Payments in its annual budget and to make the necessary appropriations therefor, subject to such abatement.

The following fi rm, serving as fi nancial advisor to the Authority, has structured this issue:

NEITHER THE BONDS NOR THE OBLIGATION TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST THEREON CONSTITUTES A 
DEBT, LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY OF ITS 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATION ON INDEBTEDNESS, OR A 
PLEDGE OF THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE CITY, BUT ARE SECURED SOLELY BY THE PLEDGE OF REVENUES, 
CONSISTING PRIMARILY OF BASE RENTAL PAYMENTS PAID BY THE CITY PURSUANT TO THE LEASE OF THE CITY 
AND CERTAIN FUNDS HELD UNDER THE INDENTURE.  THE BONDS ARE NOT SECURED BY A PLEDGE OF THE TAXING 
POWER OF THE CITY.

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued by the Authority and received by the Underwriter, subject to the approval as to their validity by 
the Law Offi ces of Cameron A. Weist, Scotts Valley, California, Bond Counsel. Certain other legal matters will be passed upon for the City and the 
Authority by the City Attorney, and by the Law Offi ces of Cameron A. Weist, Scotts Valley, California, Disclosure Counsel.  It is anticipated that the 
Bonds in book-entry form will be available through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York for delivery on or about April 25, 2007.

Dated:  April 4, 2007



DATES, PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES AND YIELDS

$5,185,000
PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

(San Luis Obispo County, California)
SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS

(City Hall Refunding Project)

MATURITY SCHEDULE
(Base CUSIP† No. 72433L)

Maturity Date
(December 1)

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate Yield Price CUSIP†

2007 $25,000 4.000% 3.470% 100.309 AN9
2008 175,000 4.500% 3.470% 101.586 AP4
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2012 275,000 3.500% 3.600% 99.494 AT6
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responsibility for the accuracy of such CUSIP numbers. The CUSIP number for a specifi c maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the 
Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of such maturity.
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
 
Use of Official Statement.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds 

referred to in this Official Statement and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose. 
This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds. 

 
Estimates and Forecasts.  When used in this Official Statement and in any continuing disclosure by the 

Agency or the City, in any press release and in any oral statement made with the approval of an authorized officer of 
the Agency or the City, the words or phrases “will likely result,” “are expected to”, “will continue”, “is anticipated”, 
“estimate”, “project,” “forecast”, “expect”, “intend” and similar expressions identify “forward looking statements” 
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation  

 
 
Reform Act of 1995.  Such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to 

differ materially from those contemplated in such forward-looking statements.  Any forecast is subject to such 
uncertainties.  Inevitably, some assumptions used to develop the forecasts will not be realized and unanticipated 
events and circumstances may occur.  Therefore, there are likely to be differences between forecasts and actual 
results, and those differences may be material.  

 
Limit of Offering.  No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the 

City or the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this 
Official Statement and, if given or made, such other information or representation must not be relied upon as having 
been authorized by any of the foregoing.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation 
of an offer to buy the Bonds, nor may there be any sale of the Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which it is 
unlawful for such person to make such an offer, solicitation or sale. 

 
Involvement of Underwriter.  The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in 

accordance with, and as a part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the 
facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of 
such information.   

 
Official Statement Speaks Only as of its Date.  The information and expressions of opinions in this Official 

Statement are subject to change without notice and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made 
hereunder will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the 
Authority or the City since the date hereof.   

 
Document Summaries.  All summaries of the Indenture or other documents referred to in this Official 

Statement, are made subject to the provisions of such documents, respectively, and do not purport to be complete 
statements of any or all of such provisions. 

 
 THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, IN 

RELIANCE UPON AN EXCEPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT.  THE 
BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE. 

 
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT 

TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH 
MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE 
DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. THE UNDERWRITER MAY OFFER AND SELL THE BONDS TO CERTAIN DEALERS 
AND DEALER BANKS ACTING AS AGENTS AT PRICES LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES AND SUCH 
PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES MAYBE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITER. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
 

$5,185,000 
PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

(San Luis Obispo County, California) 
SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 

(City Hall Refunding Project) 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This introduction contains only a brief summary of certain of the terms of the Bonds, and a brief 

overview of the contents of this Official Statement. It is only a brief description of and guide to, and is 
qualified by, more complete and detailed information contained in the entire Official Statement, including 
the cover page and appendices hereto, and the documents summarized or described herein.  A full review 
should be made of the entire Official Statement including the Appendices hereto.  The offering of the 
Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the entire Official Statement. Capitalized terms used 
and not otherwise defined in the body of the Official Statement shall have the meanings given to them in 
“APPENDIX A - SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” hereto. 

 
Purpose of Official Statement 

 
This Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the appendices hereto, is provided to 

furnish information in connection with the sale by the Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority (the 
“Authority”) of its Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority, Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
2007A (the “Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $5,185,000. Certain capitalized terms used herein 
are defined in “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS – Definitions.” 

 
Authority for Issuance of the Bonds 

 
The Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 

1985, constituting Article 4 of the Act (commencing with Section 6584) (the “Bond Law”), a Resolution 
(the “Resolution”) adopted by the Board of Directors of the Authority on March 20, 2007, and an Indenture 
(the “Indenture”), dated as April 1, 2007, by and between the Authority and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”).  

 
Purpose of the Bonds 

 
The Bonds are being issued to (i) refund and defease a certain lease agreement dated as of February 

1, 1999 (the “Prior Lease”), by and between the City of Pismo Beach (the “City”) and the Authority, (ii) 
finance the acquisition and construction of certain public capital improvement projects, (iii) purchase a 
Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument in lieu of the required deposit to the reserve account 
established for the Bonds under the Indenture (the “Reserve Account”), and (iv) pay the costs of issuance 
associated with the issuance and sale of the Bonds. See “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF 
FUNDS” and “PLAN OF FINANCE” herein. 
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Security for the Bonds 
 
Pursuant to a Site Lease, dated as of April 1, 2007 (the “Site Lease”), by and between the City and 

the Authority, the Authority has agreed to lease from the City certain real property and the improvements 
thereon, more commonly known as the City of Pismo Beach City Hall located at 760 Mattie Road, Pismo 
Beach, California (the “Leased Facilities”), in exchange for a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the 
Bonds. Pursuant to a Lease Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2007 (the “Lease”), by and between the 
Authority, as Lessor, and the City, as Lessee, the Authority has leased the Leased Facilities back to the 
Authority. Under the Lease, the City will pay to the Authority certain base rental payments (the “Base 
Rental Payments”) in amounts equal to the scheduled debt service on the Bonds. 

 
The Bonds are special obligations of the Authority secured by and payable solely from Revenues, 

defined in the Indenture as all amounts received by the Authority as lessor under the Lease, including, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, scheduled Base Rental Payments, prepayments, and 
insurance and condemnation proceeds, and all interest, profits or other income derived from the 
investment of amounts in any fund or account established under the Indenture. Under the Lease, the City is 
obligated to budget and appropriate from its General Fund amounts sufficient to make Base Rental 
Payments. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” herein. 

 
Pursuant to the Indenture, the Authority transfers in trust, grants a security interest in and assigns to 

the Trustee, for the benefit of the Bondowners, all of the Revenues and other assets pledged under the 
Indenture, except only amounts required for the compensation or indemnification of the Trustee as 
provided in the Indenture, and all of the Authority’s rights under the Lease, including its right to receive 
Base Rental Payments, but excluding the right to receive Additional Rental (defined herein). 

 
Under the Lease, the City has the right to substitute alternate real property or improvements for the 

Leased Facilities, release existing property or add additional real property or equipment to the Leased 
Facilities. 

 
The obligation of the City to make Base Rental Payments under the Lease is an unsecured 

obligation of the City, payable from legally available funds. Under the Lease, the City has covenanted to 
budget and appropriate sufficient funds to make all rental payments required to be made under the Lease, 
subject only to abatement as provided therein. See “RISK FACTORS – Base Rental Payments Are Not 
Debt” and “– Abatement” herein. 

 
Neither the Bonds nor the obligation to pay principal of or interest thereon constitutes a debt, 

obligation or liability of the City, the State of California or any of its political subdivisions within the 
meaning of any Constitutional limitation on indebtedness, or a pledge of the full faith and credit of the City, 
but are secured solely by the pledge of Revenues by the Authority and certain funds held under the 
Indenture.  The Bonds are not secured by a pledge of the taxing power of the City. 
 
Municipal Bond Insurance 

 
Concurrently with issuance of the Bonds, MBIA Insurance Corporation (the “Insurer”) will issue its 

financial guaranty insurance policy (the “Policy” or “Insurance Policy”) for the Bonds.  The Policy 
unconditionally guarantees the payment of that portion of the principal of and interest on the Bonds which 
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has become due for payment, but which is unpaid. See “BOND INSURANCE – Payments Pursuant to the 
Policy” and “APPENDIX F – SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY” herein. 

 
The City 

 
The City of Pismo Beach is located in the central coast area of California in the southern portion of 

San Luis Obispo County. It sits astride Highway 101 approximately eight miles south of the City of San 
Luis Obispo. Pismo Beach is approximately 196 miles north of Los Angeles and approximately 249 miles 
south of San Francisco. The City is a popular resort community situated directly on the Pacific Ocean and 
extends to the east into the foothills of the coast range mountains. Temperatures are mild year-round, with 
average highs between 60 and 80 degrees, and average lows between 45 and 55 degrees. Average annual 
rainfall, mostly occurring between December and March, is approximately 15 inches per year. See 
“APPENDIX D – GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF PISMO BEACH AND 
SURROUNDING AREA” herein. 

 
The Authority 

 
The Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority is a joint of powers authority formed by its members, 

the City and Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pismo Beach (the “Agency”). The Authority was 
established pursuant to that certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated April 2, 1991, by and 
between the City and the Agency (the “JPA Agreement”). Such JPA Agreement was entered into pursuant 
to the provisions of Articles 1, 2 and 4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government 
Code. The Authority is governed by a five-member Board of Directors (the “Board”), which consists of the 
members of the City Council of the City.  

 
The Authority was created for the purpose of assisting the financing or refinancing of certain public 

capital facilities within the City. Under the Bond Law, the Authority has the power to purchase bonds 
issued by any local agency at public or negotiated sale and may sell such bonds to public or private 
purchasers at public or negotiated sale. See “THE AUTHORITY” herein. 

 
Risk Factors 

 
The purchase of the Bonds involves certain risks. For a description of certain of these risks, see 

“BONDOWNER’S RISKS” herein. 
 

Description of the Bonds 
 
Payment.  Principal of the Bonds will be payable in each of the years and in the amounts set forth 

on the front cover hereof at the principal corporate office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota.  Interest on 
the Bonds will be paid by check of the Trustee mailed on the interest payment date by first class mail to the 
person entitled thereto. Initially, interest on and principal and premium, if any, of the Bonds will be payable 
when due by wire of the Trustee to DTC which will in turn remit such interest, principal and premium, if 
any, to DTC Participants (as defined herein), which will in turn remit such interest, principal and premium, 
if any, to Beneficial Owners (as defined herein) of the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS – Book-Entry System” 
herein. 
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Redemption. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption and mandatory sinking fund redemption 
prior to their stated maturity dates, as provided herein.  See “THE BONDS – Redemption Provisions” 
herein. 

 
Form of Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form, without coupons, in the 

minimum denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Any Bond may, in accordance with its 
terms, be transferred or exchanged, pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture.  See “THE BONDS – 
General” herein. When delivered, the Bonds will be registered in the name of The Depository Trust 
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), or its nominee.  DTC will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds. Purchasers of the Bonds will not receive certificates representing the Bonds purchased. See “THE 
BONDS – Book-Entry System” herein. 

 
Continuing Disclosure 

 
The City has covenanted for the benefit of holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds to provide 

certain financial information and operating data relating to the City by not later than nine (9) months 
following the end of the City’s Fiscal Year (which currently would be by March 31 each year based upon 
the June 30 end of the City’s Fiscal Year), commencing with the report for the 2006-07 Fiscal Year (the 
“Annual Report”), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if material. The 
Annual Report will be filed by the City with each Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information 
Repository, and with the appropriate State information depository, if any. The notices of material events 
will be filed by the City with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (and with the appropriate State 
information depository, if any). The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report 
or the notices of material events is set forth in “APPENDIX C – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
CERTIFICATE.” The City has never failed to comply in all material respects with any previous 
undertakings with regard to said Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material events. 

 
Forward-Looking Statements 

 
Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute 

“forward- looking statements” within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform 
Act of 1995, Section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 
27A of the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Such statements are generally identifiable by 
the terminology used such as “plan,” “intend,” “expect,” “propose,” “estimate,” “project,” “budget,” 
“anticipate,” or other similar words. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. 

 
The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking 

statements involves known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause the actual 
results, performance, or achievements described to be materially different from any future results, 
performance, or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. No updates or 
revisions to these forward-looking statements are expected to be issued if or when the expectations, events, 
conditions, or circumstances on which such statements are based change. The forward-looking statements in 
this Official Statement are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those expressed in or implied by such forward-looking statements.  
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READERS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON SUCH FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE HEREOF. 

 
Further Information 

 
Brief descriptions of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Lease, the Site Lease, the Assignment 

Agreement and other documents and information are included in this Official Statement. Such descriptions 
and information do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. The descriptions herein of the Bonds, the 
Indenture, the Lease, the Site Lease, the Assignment Agreement and other documents are qualified in their 
entirety by reference to the forms thereof. For definitions of certain capitalized terms used herein and not 
otherwise defined, and a description of certain terms relating to the Bonds, see “APPENDIX A – 
SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” herein. 

 
 

THE BONDS 
 

Authority for Issuance 
 
The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, 

constituting Article 4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of 
California (the “Bond Law”), and pursuant to the Indenture. 

 
General Provisions 

 
General.  The Bonds will initially be issued in book-entry only form, registered in the name of 

Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”).  Purchasers of 
the Bonds will not receive certificates representing their interests therein, which will be held at DTC.  See 
“THE BONDS – Book-Entry System” herein. 

 
The Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds in denominations of $5,000 or any 

integral multiple thereof and will be dated the date of delivery.  Interest on the Bonds will be payable 
semiannually on December 1 and June 1 of each year (each, an “Interest Payment Date”), commencing 
December 1, 2007, by check mailed by the Trustee on each Interest Payment Date to the person whose 
name appears in the registration books kept by the Trustee as the registered owner thereof as of the close of 
business on the fifteenth calendar day of the month immediately preceding an interest payment date (a 
“Record Date”); provided, however, that payment of interest may be by wire transfer in immediately 
available funds to an account in the United States of America to any Owner of Bonds in the aggregate 
principal amount of $1,000,000 or more.  Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated based on a 360-day year 
consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

 
Each Bond will bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of registration 

thereof, unless (a) it is authenticated after a Record Date and on or before the following Interest Payment 
Date, in which event it shall bear interest from such Interest Payment Date, or (b) unless it is authenticated 
on or before May 15, 2007, in which event it shall bear interest from the date of delivery; provided, 
however, that if, as of the date of authentication of any Bond, interest thereon is in default, such Bond shall 
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bear interest from the Interest Payment Date to which interest has previously been paid or made available 
for payment thereon. 

 
The Bonds will mature in the amounts and on the dates, and bear interest at the rates per annum, set 

forth on the inside front cover of this Official Statement.  Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds 
are payable upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the principal office of the Trustee in St. Paul 
Minnesota. 

 
Transfer or Exchange of the Bonds. Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred on 

the Registration Books by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by his duly authorized 
attorney, upon surrender of such Bond for cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a written instrument of 
transfer, duly executed in a form approved by the Trustee.  Transfer of any Bond shall not be permitted by 
the Trustee during the period established by the Trustee for selection of Bonds for redemption or if such 
Bond has been selected for redemption pursuant to the Indenture. 

 
Whenever any Bond or Bonds shall be surrendered for transfer, the Authority will execute and the 

Trustee will authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds for a like aggregate principal amount and of like 
maturity.  The Trustee will require the Bond Owner requesting such transfer to pay any tax or other 
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer. 

 
If a Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Trustee, at the expense of the Owner of such 

Bond, will authenticate, subject to the provisions of the Indenture, a new Bond of like tenor and amount.  In 
the case of a lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, the Trustee may require that an indemnity be furnished and 
payment of an appropriate fee for each new Bond delivered in replacement of such Bond, and the Authority 
may require payment of the expenses of the Authority, the City and the Trustee incurred in connection 
therewith. 

 
Redemption Provisions 

 
Optional Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on or before December 1, 2017, are not subject to 

optional redemption prior to their stated maturities. The Bonds maturing on or after December 1, 2018, are 
subject, at the option of the City, to redemption prior to their stated maturities, on any Business Day on or 
after December 1, 2017, as a whole or in part by such maturities as may be designated by the Authority to 
the Trustee at least forty-five (45) days prior to the redemption date, and by lot within any one maturity, 
from prepayments of Base Rental Payments made at the option of the City pursuant to the Lease, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, without premium, plus 
accrued but unpaid interest to the redemption date. 

 
Extraordinary Redemption.  The Bonds are subject to redemption on any date prior to their 

respective stated maturities, upon notice (as described below), as a whole, or in part on any date, from 
prepayments of Base Rental Payments made by the City from the proceeds of insurance or eminent domain 
proceedings, pursuant to the Lease, at a redemption price equal to the sum of the principal amount thereof, 
without premium, plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date. 
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Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  If less than all Outstanding Bonds maturing by their terms 
on any one date are to be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shall select the Bonds of such maturity date 
to be redeemed in any manner that it deems appropriate and fair and shall promptly notify the Authority in 
writing of the numbers of the Bonds so selected for redemption. For purposes of such selection, Bonds shall 
be deemed to be composed of $5,000 multiples of principal and any such multiple may be separately 
redeemed. 

 
Notice of Redemption.  Notice of redemption shall be given by the Trustee not less than thirty (30) 

nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date by first class mail to the Bond Insurer and each 
of the Owners designated for redemption at their addresses appearing on the Bond registration books of the 
Trustee on the date such Bonds are selected for redemption. Each notice of redemption shall state the date 
of the notice, the redemption date, the redemption place and the redemption price and shall designate the 
CUSIP numbers, the Bond numbers and the maturity or maturities (in the event of redemption of all of the 
Bonds of such maturity or maturities in whole) of the Bonds to be redeemed, and shall require that such 
Bonds be then surrendered at the Trust Office of the Trustee for redemption at the redemption price, giving 
notice also that further interest on such Bonds will not accrue from and after the redemption date. 

 
At least thirty (30) but no more than sixty (60) days before the redemption date, such notice of 

redemption shall be given as specified in the Indenture to the specified securities depositories and 
information services. 

 
Neither failure to receive any notice of redemption nor any defect in such notice of redemption so 

given shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bonds. 
 
Purchase in Lieu of Redemption.  At any time prior to the selection of Bonds for redemption, 

the Trustee may, upon written direction of the City, apply amounts held for redemption of Bonds to the 
purchase of Bonds at public or private sale, as and when and at such prices (including brokerage and 
other charges, but excluding accrued interest payable from the Interest Account) as the City may direct the 
Trustee, except that the purchase price (exclusive of accrued interest) may not exceed the redemption price 
of such Bonds; and provided further that in the case of optional redemption, in lieu of redemption at such 
next succeeding date of redemption, or in combination therewith, amounts for redemption may be used 
for payment of such Bonds to be redeemed in order of their due date as set forth in a request of the City. 

 
Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been duly given as provided above, and 

moneys for payment of the amount necessary for the redemption of the Bonds called for redemption having 
been set aside for that purpose pursuant to the Indenture, the Bonds designated for redemption shall become 
due and payable on the redemption date thereof. No interest will accrue on such Bonds called for 
redemption after the redemption date specified in the notice of redemption. The Bonds called for 
redemption shall, after the redemption date, cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under the 
Indenture, and the Owners of such Bonds shall have no right in respect thereof except to receive payment 
of the redemption price. All Bonds redeemed shall be canceled by the Trustee and shall not be reissued. 

 
Book-Entry System 

 
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), will act as securities depository 

for the Bonds. The Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee), and 
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will be available to ultimate purchasers in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, 
under the book-entry system maintained by DTC. Ultimate purchasers of Bonds will not receive physical 
certificates representing their interest in the Bonds. So long as the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede 
& Co., as nominee of DTC, references herein to the Owners shall mean Cede & Co., and shall not mean the 
ultimate purchasers of the Bonds. Payments of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds 
will be made directly to DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., by the Trustee, so long as DTC or Cede & Co. is 
the registered owner of the Bonds. Disbursements of such payments to DTC’s Participants is the 
responsibility of DTC and disbursements of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of 
DTC’s Participants and Indirect Participants. 

 
When the Bonds are issued, ownership interests will be available to purchasers only through a 

book-entry only system maintained by DTC. Beneficial ownership in the Bonds may be acquired or 
transferred only through book entries made on the records of DTC and in Participants. If the Bonds are 
taken out of the book-entry only system and delivered to owners in physical form, as described below, the 
following discussion will not apply. One fully registered Bond certificate will be issued in the aggregate 
principal amount of each maturity of the Bonds, and will be deposited with DTC. 

 
DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New 

York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member 
of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform 
Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2.2 million issues of 
U.S. and non-U.S. issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 
100 countries that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the 
post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited 
securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ 
accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants 
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository 
Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of 
DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Fixed Income Clearing 
Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation (NSCC, FICC, and EMCC, also subsidiaries of 
DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the 
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such 
as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations 
that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly 
(“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its 
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can 
be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. 

 
Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 

will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of 
each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. 
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners 
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as 
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
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Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by 
entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. 
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the 
event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

 
To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 

registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested 
by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name 
of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no 
knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the 
Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial 
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings 
on behalf of their customers. 

 
Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 

Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements 
as may be in effect from time to time. 

 
Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being 

prepaid, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such 
issue to be prepaid. 

 
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 

Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its usual 
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority (or the Trustee on behalf thereof) as soon as 
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to 
those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing 
attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

 
Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & 

Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is 
to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information 
from the Authority or Trustee, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on 
DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions 
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC nor its 
nominee, Trustee, or the Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 
from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. 
(or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of 
the Authority or Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of 
DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and 
Indirect Participants. 

 
A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Bonds purchased or tendered, through its 

Participant, to the Trustee, and shall effect delivery of such Bonds by causing the Direct Participant to 
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transfer the Participant’s interest in the Bonds, on DTC’s records, to the Trustee. The requirement for 
physical delivery of Bonds in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed 
satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records 
and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Bonds to the Trustee’s DTC account. 

 
DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by 

giving reasonable notice to the Authority or Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, Bonds are required to be printed and delivered. 

 
The Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or 

a successor securities depository). In that event, Bonds will be printed and delivered. 
 
The Authority, the City, the Underwriter and the Trustee do not have any responsibility or 

obligation to DTC Participants, to the persons for whom they act as nominees, to Beneficial Owners, or to 
any other person who is not shown on the registration books as being an Owner of the Bonds, with respect 
to (i) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any DTC Participants; (ii) the payment by DTC or 
any DTC Participant of any amount in respect of the principal of, redemption price of or interest on the 
Bonds; (iii) the delivery of any notice which is permitted or required to be given to registered Owners under 
the Indenture; (iv) the selection by DTC or any DTC Participant of any person to receive payment in the 
event of a partial redemption of the Bonds; (v) any consent given or other action taken by DTC as registered 
Owner; or (vi) any other matter arising with respect to the Bonds or the Indenture. The Authority, the City, 
the Underwriter and the Trustee cannot and do not give any assurances that DTC Participants or others will 
distribute payments of principal of or interest on the Bonds paid to DTC or its nominee, as the registered 
Owner, or any notices to the Beneficial Owners or that they will do so on a timely basis or will serve and act 
in a manner described in this Official Statement. The Authority, the City and the Trustee are not responsible 
or liable for the failure of DTC or any DTC Participant to make any payment or give any notice to a 
Beneficial Owner in respect to the Bonds or any error or delay relating thereto. 

 
The foregoing description of DTC, the procedures and record keeping with respect to beneficial 

ownership interests in the Bonds, payment of principal, interest and other payments on the Bonds to DTC 
Participants or Beneficial Owners, confirmation and transfer of beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds 
and other related transactions by and between DTC, the DTC Participants and the Beneficial Owners is 
based solely on information provided by DTC. Accordingly, no representations can be made by the 
Authority or the City concerning these matters and neither the DTC Participants nor the Beneficial Owners 
should rely on the foregoing information with respect to such matters, but should instead confirm the same 
with DTC or the DTC Participants, as the case may be. 
 
Discontinuance of DTC Services 

 
In the event that (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the Bonds, or 

(b) the Authority determines that DTC shall no longer so act and delivers a written certificate to the Trustee 
to that effect, then the Authority will discontinue the Book-Entry System with DTC for the Bonds. If the 
Authority determines to replace DTC with another qualified securities depository, the Authority will 
prepare or direct the preparation of a new single separate, fully registered Bond for each maturity of the 
Bonds registered in the name of such successor or substitute securities depository as are not inconsistent 
with the terms of the Indenture. If the Authority fails to identify another qualified securities depository to 
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replace the incumbent securities depository for the Bonds, then the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to 
being registered in the Bond registration books in the name of the incumbent securities depository or its 
nominee, but shall be registered in whatever name or names the incumbent securities depository or its 
nominee transferring or exchanging the Bonds shall designate. 

 
ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

 
Table 1 sets forth the estimated sources and uses of funds relating to the issuance of the Bonds. 
 

Table 1 
PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE RFEUNDING BONDS 
 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 
 
 

SOURCES 
Sources of Funds: 
Par amount of Bonds $5,185,000.00 
Less: Original Issue Discount (15,805.35) 
Prior Lease Transferred Funds  111,213.77 
Less: Underwriter’s Discount (51,850.00) 
          Total Sources $5,228,558.42 
 

USES 
Uses of Funds: 
Escrow Fund  $4,071,003.95 
Project Fund 1,000,000.00 
Costs of Issuance Fund(1) 157,554.47  
          Total Uses $5,228,558.42 
 

 
(1) Costs of Issuance include legal fees, financial advisor fees, Insurance Policy and Surety Bond premium, printing costs, rating agency fees, 
Trustee fees, Escrow Agent fees, Verification Agent fees, and other miscellaneous expenses in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery 
of the Bonds. 

 
 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 
 

Revenues 
 
The Bonds are special obligations of the Authority secured by and payable solely from Revenues, 

defined in the Indenture as all amounts received by the Authority as lessor under the Lease, including, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, scheduled Base Rental Payments, prepayments, and 
insurance and condemnation proceeds, and all interest, profits or other income derived from the investment 
of amounts in any fund or account established under the Indenture. 
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THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE 

SOLELY FROM REVENUES AND AMOUNTS HELD IN THE FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 
ESTABLISHED UNDER THE INDENTURE. THE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY TO MAKE BASE 
RENTAL PAYMENTS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION FOR WHICH THE CITY IS 
OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION OR FOR WHICH THE CITY HAS 
LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY FORM OF TAXATION. THE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY TO MAKE 
BASE RENTAL PAYMENTS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY, THE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS WITHIN THE MEANING 
OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION. 

 
Base Rental Payments 

 
Under the Lease, the City will pay to the Authority the Base Rental Payments in amounts equal to 

the scheduled debt service on the Bonds. 
 
Pursuant to the Indenture, the Authority transfers in trust, grants a security interest in and assigns to 

the Trustee, for the benefit of the Bondowners, all of the Revenues (consisting primarily of Base Rental 
Payments) and other assets pledged under the Indenture, except only amounts required for the compensation 
or indemnification of the Trustee as provided in the Indenture, and all of the Authority’s rights under the 
Lease, including its right to receive Base Rental Payments, but excluding the right to receive Additional 
Rental. 

 
Under the Lease, the City agrees to make Base Rental Payments for the beneficial use of the Leased 

Facilities, and to take such action as is necessary to budget for and to appropriate such amounts. 
 
See “THE PLAN OF FINANCE – The Leased Facilities” and “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF 

PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS – The Lease” herein. 
 
The Base Rental Payments are equal to the principal of and interest on the Bonds, and are payable 

in semiannual installments on the 25th day of the month immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date. 
The Base Rental Payments will be paid by the City to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the 
Bonds. 

 
The City’s obligation to make Base Rental Payments is subject to abatement in the event of 

substantial interference with the use and possession of all or a part of the Leased Facilities. See “RISK 
FACTORS – Abatement” herein. 

 
Insurance 

 
The Lease requires the City to maintain insurance coverage on the Leased Facilities, so long as the 

Lease is outstanding, consisting of the following types of insurance. The City may adopt alternative risk 
management programs to insure against any of the risks required to be insured against under the Lease, 
including a program of self-insurance, in whole or in part; provided that any such alternative risk 
management program shall be similar in nature and scope to self-insurance programs maintained by other 
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California cities of comparable size and operations and shall be reviewed by a qualified independent 
insurance consultant. The City is not required to maintain or cause to be maintained any insurance which is 
not available from reputable insurers on the open market or more insurance than is specifically required 
under the Lease. 

 
Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance. The City is to maintain insurance against loss or damage 

to the Leased Facilities resulting from fire, lightning, vandalism, malicious mischief and such other perils as 
the City may determine should be insured against, in an amount equal to the replacement cost (subject to 
deductible clauses not exceeding $400,000 for any one loss) of improvements located on or to be located on 
the Leased Facilities, or an amount equal to or greater than the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
Outstanding (except that such insurance may be subject to deductible clauses of not to exceed ten percent 
(10%) of the amount of any one loss). 

 
Rental Interruption or Use and Occupancy Insurance. The City must maintain rental 

interruption insurance in an amount sufficient to pay the total Base Rental Payments attributable to the 
Leased Facilities for a period of at least 24 months to insure against loss of rental income from the Leased 
Facilities caused by the events that give rise to the right of abatement on the part of the City under the 
Lease, provided that the amount of such insurance need not exceed the total remaining Base Rental 
Payments attributable to the Leased Facilities. 

 
Workers’ Compensation. The City is required to maintain workers’ compensation insurance 

covering all employees working in or on the Leased Facilities in the same amount as other workers’ 
compensation insurance maintained by the City for similar employees that do similar work. 

 
Liability Insurance. The City is to maintain a standard comprehensive public entity liability policy 

or policies protecting the Authority, the Trustee and the City, and providing coverage in the amount of at 
least $3,000,000, subject to a deductible clause of not to exceed $400,000, for claims arising from personal 
injury, death and property damage related to the possession, operation or use of the Leased Facilities. 

 
Title Insurance. The City is to obtain a CLTA standard coverage leasehold policy of title 

insurance issued by a company of recognized standing duly authorized to issue the same on the Leased 
Facilities or any Substituted Property which becomes the Leased Facilities, in an amount at least equal to 
the aggregate principal amount of unpaid Base Rental Payments. 

 
Reserve Account 

 
The Bonds are secured by amounts on deposit in the Reserve Account established under the 

Indenture, initially funded in an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. The “Reserve Requirement” for 
the Bonds is defined in the Indenture to mean as of any calculation date in a Bond Year, an amount equal to 
the least of (i) ten percent (10%) of the sale proceeds (within the meaning of section 148 of the Code) of the 
Bonds, (ii) 125% of average annual debt service on the Bonds for that and every succeeding Bond Year, or 
(iii) Maximum Annual Debt Service for the Bonds. See “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL 
LEGAL DOCUMENTS – Reserve Account” herein. 

 
With the written consent of the Bond Insurer, the City may meet the Reserve Requirement by 

depositing in the Reserve Account an irrevocable standby or direct-pay letter of credit or surety bond issued 
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by a commercial bank, insurance company or other financial institution and deposited with the Trustee, 
provided that all of the following requirements are met: (i) at all times during the term of such letter of 
credit or surety bond, the long-term credit rating of such bank is within the highest rating category of 
Moody’s and S&P, or the claims paying ability of such insurance company is rated within the highest rating 
category of A.M. Best & Company and S&P; (ii) such letter of credit or surety bond has a term which ends 
no earlier than the last Interest Payment Date of the series of Bonds to which the Reserve Requirement 
applies; (iii) such letter of credit or surety bond has a stated amount at least equal to the portion of the 
Reserve Requirement with respect to which funds are proposed to be released; and (iv) the Trustee is 
authorized pursuant to the terms of such letter of credit or surety bond to draw thereunder amounts 
necessary to carry out the purposes specified in the Indenture, including the replenishment of the Interest 
Account or the Principal Account. 

 
Any amount in the Reserve Account in excess of the Reserve Requirement resulting from the 

delivery of a Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument may be applied to the cost of acquiring such 
instrument and, to the extent not so applied, shall be transferred by the Trustee as directed in a Certificate of 
the City. 

 
Surety Bond 

 
The Indenture permits the satisfaction of the Reserve Requirement by crediting to the Reserve 

Account moneys or a Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument or any combination thereof which in the 
aggregate makes funds available in the Reserve Account in an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. 

 
Application has been made to the Insurer to issue its commitment for a Qualified Reserve Account 

Credit Instrument (the “Surety Bond”) which will be used to fund the Reserve Account in the amount of the 
Reserve Requirement beginning on the date of issuance of the Bonds. The Surety Bond will provide that 
upon notice from the Trustee to the Insurer to the effect that insufficient amounts are on deposit in the Lease 
Revenue Fund to pay the principal of (at maturity or pursuant to mandatory redemption requirements) and 
interest on the Bonds, the Insurer will promptly deposit with the Trustee an amount sufficient to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds or the available amount of the Surety Bond, whichever is less. Upon 
the later of: (i) three (3) days after receipt by the Insurer of a Demand for Payment in the form attached to 
the Surety Bond, duly executed by the Trustee; or (ii) the payment date of the Bonds as specified in the 
Demand for Payment presented by the Trustee to the Insurer, the Insurer will make a deposit of funds in an 
account with the U.S. Bank Trust National Association, New York, New York, or its successor, sufficient 
for the payment to the Trustee, of amounts that are then due to the Trustee (as specified in the Demand for 
Payment) subject to the Surety Bond Coverage (as defined in the Surety Bond). 

 
The available amount of the Surety Bond is the initial face amount of the Surety Bond less the 

amount of any previous deposits by the Insurer with the Trustee which have not been reimbursed by the 
Authority. The Authority and the Insurer will enter into a Financial Guaranty Agreement relating to the 
Bonds (the “Guaranty Agreement”). Pursuant to the Guaranty Agreement, the Authority is required to 
reimburse the Insurer, within one year of any deposit, the amount of such deposit made by the Insurer with 
the Trustee under the Surety Bond. Such reimbursement shall be made only after all required deposits to the 
Lease Revenue Fund and Redemption Account have been made. 
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Under the terms of the Guaranty Agreement, the Trustee is required to reimburse the Insurer, with 

interest, until the face amount of the Surety Bond is reinstated before any deposit is made to the City’s 
General Fund. No optional redemption of Bonds may be made until the Insurer’s Surety Bond is reinstated. 
The Surety Bond will be held by the Trustee in the Reserve Account and is provided as an alternative to the 
City depositing funds equal to the Reserve Requirement for outstanding Bonds. The Surety Bond will be 
issued in the face amount equal to Reserve Requirement for the Bonds and the premium therefor will be 
fully paid by the Authority at the time of delivery of the Bonds. 

 
Bond Insurance 

 
Concurrently with issuance of the Bonds, the Insurer will issue its Insurance Policy for the Bonds.  

The Insurance Policy unconditionally guarantees the payment of that portion of the principal of and interest 
on the Bonds which has become due for payment, but which is unpaid. See “BOND INSURANCE” and 
“APPENDIX F – SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY” herein. 

 
Additional Bonds 

 
The Authority may authorize, with the consent of the Bond Insurer (except for refundings which 

result in debt service savings) but without the consent of the Bondholders of Outstanding Bonds, the 
issuance of Additional Bonds under the Indenture which are payable from Base Rental Payments and 
secured by a pledge of and lien upon the Base Rental Payments on a parity with the pledge and lien securing 
the Outstanding Bonds; provided, among other things, that the Lease shall have been amended so as to 
increase the Base Rental Payments payable thereunder by an aggregate amount equal to the principal and 
interest due and payable on such Additional Bonds. See “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL 
LEGAL DOCUMENTS – The Indenture – Issuance of Additional Bonds” herein. 

 
Budget and Appropriation of Base Rental Payments 

 
The Lease provides that, from and after the date on which the City takes possession of the Leased 

Facilities and unless the Lease is terminated, the City shall take such action as may be necessary to include 
all Base Rental Payments in each of its budgets and to make necessary appropriations for all such Base 
Rental Payments coming due and payable during the period covered by such budget, and the public officials 
of the City shall take such actions and do other things required by law to enable the City to carry out and 
perform this covenant. The amounts payable to the Trustee under the Lease are to be used to make 
payments of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, plus other fees, expenses and reimbursements as 
specified in the Indenture. 

 
The City’s revenues are derived in part from ad valorem property taxes. Such taxes are subject to 

limitations under Article XIIIA of the California Constitution. The City has the capacity to enter into other 
obligations which may constitute additional charges against its general revenues. To the extent that 
additional obligations are incurred by the City, the funds available to make Base Rental Payments and 
Additional Rental payments, if any, may be decreased. Appropriations of the City are subject to limitation 
under Article XIIIB of the California Constitution.  See “RISK FACTORS – Risks Related to Taxation in 
California” herein. 
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PLAN OF FINANCE 
 
The Leased Facilities 

 
Under the Lease and the Site Lease, the Leased Facilities consist of the City of Pismo Beach City 

Hall buildings and City Hall site located at 760 Mattie Road, Pismo Beach, California, (the “Leased 
Facilities”). The City Hall is comprised of a two story, 15,747-square foot building that was constructed in 
1990, and a single story 4,718-square foot building that was constructed in 1990, both of which are built 
upon on land owned by the City. The City Hall buildings and adjacent parking are located on an 
approximate sixty-six thousand square feet site. The City Hall houses the City Manager, Administrative 
Services, Finance, Community Development and Public Works departments as well as the Council 
chambers.  

 
The Authority will lease the Leased Facilities to the City pursuant to the Lease. Under the Lease, 

the City is required to maintain the Leased Facilities in working order. 
 
The City, based upon insurance coverage estimates of the buildings, and based upon land value 

estimates of the site which encompasses over sixty-six thousand square feet, values the City Hall at more 
than $5.5 million. The City Hall building is made of Concrete mat foundation, wood load bearing and shear 
walls, truss floor and roof systems. The building contains a sprinkler system. The site is fully landscaped 
and includes parking and lighting.  

 
The Lease provides that the City has the right to substitute alternate real property or improvements 

for the Leased Facilities, release existing property or add additional real property or improvements to the 
Leased Facilities, provided that the fair market value and the fair rental value of the substitute premises are 
at least equal to that of the Leased Facilities, and provided certain other criteria are met. See “APPENDIX A 
– SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” herein. 

 
The Refunding 

 
The City has determined that, as a result of favorable financial market conditions, it is in the best 

interests of the City at this time to refinance the City’s obligation to make payments under and pursuant to 
Lease Agreement No. 1999, dated as of February 1, 1999 (the “1999 Obligation”). The 1999 Obligation was 
originally issued in the amount of $4,950,000 (with a principal balance of $3,990,000 is still outstanding of 
the 1999 Obligation), at a interest rate averaging almost 5.25%, with regularly principal and interest 
payments (annually totaling approximately $360,000) scheduled each December 1st through and including 
December 1, 2024.  

 
Pursuant to an escrow deposit and trust agreement, dated as of April 1, 2007 (the “Escrow 

Agreement”), between the City and U.S. Bank National Association, as escrow bank (the “Escrow Bank”), 
a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds, together with certain moneys held by the trustee with respect to the 
1999 Obligation, will be deposited in an escrow fund which will be applied by the Escrow Bank to the 
purchase of certain Federal Securities. The Escrow Bank will apply the maturing principal of the Federal 
Securities and the receipt of interest thereon at such times and in such amounts that sufficient moneys shall 
be available to prepay the entire 1999 Obligation in full on June 1, 2007, at the prepayment price equal to 
the remaining principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest, but without premium.  
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The mathematical accuracy of the calculation as to the sufficiency of anticipated receipts from the 
Federal Securities in the escrow fund established under the Escrow Agreement (the “Escrow Fund”) to meet 
the debt service requirements of the 1999 Obligation and the calculation of yield relating to the Bonds will 
be verified by Grant Thornton, LLP, Minneapolis, Minnesota, independent certified public accountants. See 
“VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL ACCURACY” herein. 

 
The Project 

 
The Authority will fund the Project Fund, in the amount set forth in Table 1, from the proceeds of 

the Bonds to partially fund one or more capital improvement projects, which include (i) the reconstruction 
of Price Street, including sidewalks, from Hinds Avenue south to the US 101 Entrance;  (ii)  installation of 
Beachcomber stairs; (iii) construction of storm drain outfall projects at Montecito, Ocean Park, and Shell 
Beach Road; (iv) Downtown drainage improvements, including a new outfall to the beach at Wadsworth 
Avenue; and (v) other City approved public infrastructure and public facilities (the “Project”). 

 
Debt Service Requirements 

 
Table 2 sets forth annual principal and interest on the Bonds (assuming no redemptions of the 

Bonds, other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions). 
 

Table 2 
PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
 

ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 
    

Bond Year 
(December 1) 

Principal Portion of 
 Debt Service 

Interest Portion of 
 Debt Service 

Total 
Debt Service 

2007 $25,000 $124,518.75 $149,518.75 
2008 175,000 206,531.26 381,531.26 
2009 250,000 198,656.26 448,656.26 
2010 250,000 188,656.26 438,656.26 
2011 270,000 176,156.26 446,156.26 
2012 275,000 166,706.26 441,706.26 
2013 290,000 157,081.26 447,081.26 
2014 300,000 146,931.26 446,931.26 
2015 310,000 136,431.26 446,431.26 
2016 325,000 120,931.26 445,931.26 
2017 335,000 108,906.26 443,906.26 
2018 355,000 96,343.76 451,343.76 
2019 365,000 82,853.76 447,853.76 
2020 380,000 68,253.76 448,253.76 
2021 395,000 53,053.76 448,053.76 
2022 415,000 36,858.76 451,858.76 
2023 230,000 19,740.00 249,740.00 
2024 240,000 10,080.00 250,080.00 

Totals $5,185,000 $2,098,690.15 $7,283,690.15 
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CITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
 
General 

 
The City covenants to annually budget and appropriate sufficient funds to make all Base Rental 

Payments due under the Lease. Neither the obligation of the City to pay Base Rental Payments, nor the 
Bonds, will constitute a debt of the City. 
 
Budgetary Process and Administration 

 
The fiscal year of the City begins on the first day of July of each year and ends on the thirtieth day 

of June the following year (the “Fiscal Year”). 
 
At such date as the City Manager determines, each department head must furnish to the City 

Manager an estimate of revenues and expenditures for such department for the ensuing Fiscal Year, detailed 
in such manner as may be prescribed by the City Manager. In preparing the proposed budget, the City 
Manager reviews the estimates, holds conferences thereon with the respective department heads as 
necessary, and may revise the estimates as he may deem advisable. 

 
In June, the City Manager submits to the City Council the proposed budget as prepared by him. 

After reviewing and making such revisions as it deems advisable, the City Council determines the time for 
the holding of a public hearing thereon and causes to be published a notice thereof not less than ten days 
prior to the hearing date. Copies of the proposed budget are available for inspection by the public in the 
office of the City Clerk at least ten days prior to the hearing. 

 
At the conclusion of the public hearing, the City Council further considers the proposed budget and 

makes any revisions thereof that it deems advisable and on or before June 30 it adopts the budget with 
revisions, if any, by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the total members of the Council. 

 
From the effective date of the budget, the several amounts stated as proposed expenditures become 

appropriated to the several departments, offices and agencies for the objects and purposes named, provided 
that the City Manager may transfer funds from one object or purpose to another within the same fund, 
department, office or agency. All appropriations lapse at the end of the budget period to the extent that they 
have not been expended or lawfully encumbered. At any public meeting after the adoption of the budget, the 
City Council may amend or supplement the budget by motion adopted by the affirmative vote of at least a 
majority of the total members of the City Council. 

 
The City Council employs, at the beginning of each Fiscal Year, an independent certified public 

accounting firm which, at such time or times as specified by the City Council, at least annually, at such 
other times as such firm shall determine, examines the books, records, inventories and reports of all officers 
and employees who receive, control, handle or disburse public funds and of all such other officers, 
employees or departments as the City Council may direct. As soon as practicable after the end of the Fiscal 
Year, a report is submitted by such firm to the City Council and a copy of the financial statements as of the 
close of the Fiscal Year is published. 
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General Fund Revenues and Expenditure 
 
The General City Budget includes programs which are provided on a largely city-wide basis. The 

programs and services are financed primarily by the City’s share of sales tax, property tax, revenues from 
the State and/or federal government, and charges for services provided. 

 
The three major or general fund revenue sources of the City, which together accounted in Fiscal Year 

2005-06 for about 80% of the general fund revenues (collectively, the “Key Tax Sources”), are the 
Transient Occupancy Tax (41% of total general fund revenues), Sales Tax (16%) and Property Tax (23%). 
See “APPENDIX B – AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2005-06” herein. 

 
The following table sets forth the audited revenues received by the City for each of the Key 

Revenue Sources for Fiscal Years 1997-98 through 2005-06, and the unaudited budgeted revenue expected 
to be received by the City for each of the Key Revenue Sources for Fiscal Year 2006-07, which have been 
totaled and compared to the prior Fiscal Year to illustrate the amount and percent of change. 

 
Table 3 

PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 
SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 

 
GENERAL FUND KEY REVENUE SOURCES AND CHANGE FROM PRIOR YEAR 

     
   Change From Prior Year 

Fiscal 
Year 

Transient 
Occupancy 

Taxes 
Property 

Taxes 
Sales 
Taxes 

Total of Key 
Tax Sources Amount Percent 

1998 $3,004,234 $1,241,736 $1,366,708 $5,612,678       -- -- 
1999 3,445,993 1,291,632 1,395,217 6,132,842 520,164 9.3% 
2000 3,740,545 1,407,950 1,530,857 6,543,712 410,870 6.7% 
2001 4,152,258 1,539,713 1,623,170 7,222,828 679,116 10.4% 
2002 4,292,264 1,663,394 1,708,960 7,578,828 356,000 4.9% 
2003 4,342,969 1,816,986 1,661,091 7,821,045 242,217 3.2% 
2004 4,652,128 1,979,620 1,867,519 8,499,266 678,221 8.7% 
2005 4,921,357 2,012,536 2,014,060 8,947,953 448,687 5.3% 
2006 5,295,777 2,937,753 2,134,638 10,368,168 1,420,215 15.9% 
2007 5,650,000 2,901,000 2,255,000 10,806,000 437,832 4.2% 

     
        Source: The City 

 
 
The following table sets forth the audited revenues received by the City for the total of Key 

Revenue Sources and total of Other General Fund Revenue Sources for Fiscal Years 1997-98 through 2005-
06, and the unaudited budgeted revenue expected to be received by the City from each such Revenue 
Source for Fiscal Year 2006-07, which have been totaled and compared to the prior Fiscal Year to illustrate 
the amount and percent of change. 
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Table 4 
PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
 

SUMMARY OF GENERAL REVENUES AND CHANGE FROM PRIOR YEAR 
     
  Change From Prior Year 

Fiscal Year 
Total of Key 

Tax Sources(1) 
Other General 
Fund Revenues 

Total General 
Fund Revenues Amount Percent 

1998 $5,612,678  $ 1,857,659  $7,470,337  --  -- 
1999 6,132,842  2,391,284  8,524,126  $1,053,789  14.1% 
2000 6,679,352  2,436,203  9,115,555  591,429  6.9% 
2001 7,315,141  2,768,391  10,083,532  967,977  10.6% 
2002 7,664,618  2,487,084  10,151,702  68,170  0.7% 
2003 7,821,045  2,959,436  10,780,481  628,779  6.2% 
2004 8,499,266  2,957,009  11,456,275  675,794  6.3% 
2005 8,947,953  3,219,552  12,167,505  711,230  6.2% 
2006 10,368,168  2,675,963  13,044,131  876,626  7.2% 
2007 11,000,000  2,700,000  13,700,000  655,869  5.0% 

     
(1) Comprised of the Transient Occupancy Tax, Sales Tax and Property Tax totals set forth in Table3, above.          
Source: The City 

 
 

Transient Occupancy Tax 
 
As a resort and tourist destination, the City receives a sizable income from the Transient Occupancy Tax. 

The Transient Occupancy Tax is the largest single source of revenue to the City, constituting approximately 
41% of the City’s budgeted annual General Fund income for the 2006-07 Fiscal Year. In fiscal year 2005-06, the 
Transient Occupancy Tax generated $5,295,777 in General Fund revenues, or approximately 41% of the City’s 
total General Fund revenue for that period. Transient Occupancy Tax receipts have trended upward in each 
of the years shown in Table 3 above. 

 
Property Taxes 

 
Property taxes were the second largest category of revenue source to the City in fiscal year 2006-

07, constituting approximately 22% of the City’s budgeted annual income. In fiscal year 2005-06, the Transient 
Occupancy Tax generated $2,937,753 in General Fund revenues, or approximately 23% of the City’s total General 
Fund revenue for that period. Actual (audited) Property Tax receipts have trended upward in each of the 
years shown in Table 3 above. 

 
Tax Levies and Delinquencies. Taxes are levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal 

property which is situated in the City as of the preceding January 1. For assessment and collection purposes, 
property is classified either as “secured” or “unsecured,” and is listed accordingly on separate parts of the 
assessment roll. The “secured roll” is that part of the assessment roll containing State assessed property and 
real property having a tax lien which is sufficient, in the opinion of the assessor, to secure payment of the 
taxes. Other property is assessed on the “unsecured roll.” 
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Property taxes on the secured roll are due in two installments, on November 1 and February 1 of the 

fiscal year. If unpaid, such taxes become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively, and a 10% 
penalty attaches to any delinquent payment. In addition, property on the secured roll with respect to which 
taxes are delinquent is sold to the State on or about June 30 of the fiscal year. Such property may thereafter 
be redeemed by payment of the delinquent taxes and the delinquency penalty, plus a redemption penalty of 
1.5% per month to the time of redemption. If taxes are unpaid for a period of five years or more, the 
property is deeded to the State and then is subject to sale by the County Tax Collector. 

 
Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due as of the January 1 lien date and become delinquent, if 

unpaid on August 31. A 10% penalty attaches to delinquent taxes on property on the unsecured roll, and an 
additional penalty of 1.5% per month begins to accrue on November 1 of the fiscal year. The City has four 
ways of collecting unsecured personal property taxes: (1) a civil action against the taxpayer; (2) filing a 
certificate in the office of the County Clerk specifying certain facts in order to obtain a judgment lien on 
certain property of the taxpayer; (3) filing a certificate of delinquency for record in the County Recorder’s 
Office, in order to obtain a lien on certain property of the taxpayer; and (4) seizure and sale of personal 
property, improvements or possessory interests belonging or assessed to the assessee. 

 
City taxes are assessed and collected by San Luis Obispo County at the same time and on the same 

rolls as are County, school and special district taxes. 
 
State law exempts $7,000 of the full cash value of an owner-occupied dwelling, but this exemption 

does not result in any loss of revenue to local agencies, since the State reimburses local agencies for the 
value of the exemptions. 

 
Assessed Valuation. The table below presents the assessed valuation of taxable property in the 

City from fiscal year 2002-03 through fiscal year 2006-07.  
 
 

Table 5 
PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
 

ASSESSED VALUATIONS OF ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY 
     

Fiscal Year Local Secured Utility Unsecured Total 

2002-03 $1,341,516,588 $112,561 $22,413,635 $1,364,042,784 
2003-04 1,465,088,852 120,295 21,840,751 1,487,049,898 
2004-05 1,614,007,810 135,706 23,066,792 1,637,210,308 
2005-06 1,798,921,892 130,490 34,392,659 1,833,445,041 
2006-07 2,009,804,272 117,615 38,801,558 2,048,723,445 

     
            Source: California Municipal Statistics Inc. 
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Top Tax Payers. The top twenty taxpayers, based on local secured assessed values of taxable 

property in the City, as shown on the 2006-07 tax roll, are set forth in the following table: 
 
 

Table 6 
PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
 

LARGEST 2006-07 LOCAL SECURED TAXPAYERS 
 Property Owner Land Use Assessed Valuation Total (1) 
     
1. Pismo Beach Mobile Home Park Mobile Home Park $  35,475,894 1.77% 
2. Martin Resorts Inc. Hotel/Motel 31,377,205 1.56 
3. Second Horizon Group LP Commercial – Retail 24,052,417 1.20 
4. Heron Crest Development General Partnership Hotel and Residences 16,286,700 0.81 
5. La Noria IMS LLC Hotel/Motel 13,568,576 0.68 
6. Pismo Coast Plaza LLC Shopping Center 12,720,463 0.63 
7. Seacrest Resort LLC Hotel/Motel 12,177,278 0.61 
8. Pismo Medical Campus LLC Vacant Commercial 10,882,511 0.54 
9. Henry F. Myers Hotel/Motel 10,022,210 0.50 
10. Pismo Development Group LLC Office Building 9,586,982 0.48 
11. Holiday Recreational Vehicle Park RV Park 9,553,208 0.48 
12. Sea Venture Resort LLC Hotel/Motel 9,243,434 0.46 
13. Pismo Castle LLC Hotel/Motel 8,619,943 0.43 
14. Curt Baney Inc. Hotel/Motel 7,905,077 0.39 
15. V2V Acquisitions & Development Company Commercial Land 7,700,000 0.38 
16. Pacplaza Properties LP Shopping Center 7,654,560 0.38 
17. Sea Cottage Investors LP Hotel/Motel 7,434,419 0.37 
18. Pismo Beach Hotel Partners LLC Hotel/Motel 6,592,833 0.33 
19. Cavalon LLC Residential Properties 6,400,000 0.32 
20. Hinds Avenue Partners LLC Hotel/Motel     6,000,000 0.30 
   $253,253,710 12.60% 
     

          (1)  2006-07 Local Secured Assessed Valuation:  $2,009,804,272           
          Source: California Municipal Statistics Inc. 

 
 

Sales Taxes 
 
Sales taxes were the third largest category of revenue source to the City in fiscal year 2006-07, 

constituting approximately 17% of the City’s budgeted annual income. In fiscal year 2005-06, the Sales Tax 
generated $2,134,638 in General Fund revenues, or approximately 16% of the City’s total General Fund revenue 
for that period. Property Tax receipts have trended upward (with the exception of a slight down-turn in 
2002-03) in each of the years shown in Table 3 above. 

 
The City’s sales tax revenue represents the City’s share of the sales and use tax, imposed on taxable 

transactions occurring within the City’s boundaries. The sales tax is governed by the Bradley-Burns 
Uniform Local Sales and Use Tax. 
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Financial Statements 
 
The City’s accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles and reporting 

standards set forth by the State Controller. The audited financial statements also conform to the principles 
and standards for public financial reporting established by the National Council of Government Accounting 
and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). 

 
Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation. The government-wide financial 

statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the modified accrual basis of 

accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due. 

 
GASB No. 34. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) published its Statement 

No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments” on June 30, 1999. Statement No. 34 provides guidelines to auditors, state and local 
governments and special purpose governments such as school districts and public utilities, on new 
requirements for financial reporting for all governmental agencies in the United States. Generally, the basic 
financial statements and required supplementary information should include (i) Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis; (ii) financial statements prepared using the economic measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting; and (iii) fund financial statements prepared using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual method of accounting; and (iv) required supplementary 
information. As required by GASB, the City implemented Statement No. 34 beginning with the fiscal year 
2002-03 audited financial statements. Consequently, changes in financial statement content and structure 
are evident in the audit for fiscal year 2002-03 and thereafter.  

 
Audited Financial Statements. Excerpts of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 

fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, which includes the City’s 2005-06 audited financial statements are set forth 
in Appendix B. A complete copy of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2006, as well as the reports for the prior years, can be obtained from the City’s Finance 
Department. The City is the recipient of the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Certificate 
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.  

 
The following table summarizes the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

Balance of the City’s General Fund for the fiscal years 2003-04 through 2005-06.  
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Table 7 

CITY OF PISMO BEACH 
GENERAL FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
for the Year Ended June 30 

 
    
    
 2004 2005 2006 
Revenues:    
       Property Taxes $1,979,620 $2,012,536 $2,937,753 
       Sales Taxes 1,867,519 2,014,060 2,134,638 
       Transient Occupancy Taxes 4,652,128 4,921,356 5,295,777 
       Other Taxes 622,092 692,511 738,257 
       Licenses and permits     746,845 848,031 496,717 
       Fines and forfeitures 118,724 122,215 142,390 
       Intergovernmental 488,846 794,043 104,175 
       Interest and Rents 174,162 235,093 256,343 
       Charges for services 217,252 487,796 824,702 
       Miscellaneous 189,087 39,864 113,379 
              Total Revenue $11,056,275 $12,167,505 $13,044,131 
    
Expenditures:    
       General government 2,303,804 2,529,042 2,843,670 
       Public safety 4,646,526 5,216,685 5,725,715 
       Highways and Streets 521,193 580,049 557,761 
       Community Services 1,608,169 1,673,626 1,750,662 
       Public works 612,657 687,840 732,548 
              Total Expenditures 9,692,349 10,687,242 11,610,356 
    
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures $1,363,926 $1,480,263 $1,433,775 
    
Other Financing Sources (Uses):    
       Transfers in 394,441 319,068 291,132 
       Transfers out (2,614,800) (1,197,176) (1,381,693) 
              Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,220,359) (878,108) (1,090,561) 
    
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other Sources 
        Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $(856,433) $602,155 $343,214 
    
Fund Balance, July 1 6,091,579 5,235,146 5,837,301 
    
Fund Balance, June 30 $5,235,146 $5,837,301 $6,180,515 
    
    

      Source: City of Pismo Beach Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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OVERLAPPING DEBT OF THE CITY 
 

Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt 
 
The following Table 8 sets forth the statement of the City’s direct and overlapping bonded 

indebtedness, as of March 1, 2007, and as prepared by California Municipal Statistics, Inc., Oakland, 
California (the “Debt Report”). The Debt Report is included for general information purposes only. The 
City has not reviewed the Debt Report for completeness or accuracy and makes no representation in 
connection therewith. The Debt Report generally includes long-term obligations sold in the public credit 
markets by public agencies whose boundaries overlap the boundaries of the District in whole or in part. 
Such long-term obligations generally are not payable from revenues of the District (except as indicated) nor 
are they necessarily obligations secured by land within the District. In many cases, long-term obligations 
issued by public agency are payable only from the general fund or other revenues of such public agency. 

 
Table 8 

PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 
SERIES 2007A LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 

 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT 

 
2006-07 Assessed Valuation: $2,048,723,445 
Redevelopment Incremental Valuation:      96,770,691 
Adjusted Assessed Valuation: $1,951,952,754 
 
OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable (1) Debt 3/1/07 
San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, Zone No. 3 29.656% $  3,558,720 
Lucia Mar Unified School District 16.882 7,364,126 
City of Pismo Beach 1915 Act Bonds 100.000        85,000 
  TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT  $11,007,846 
 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT: 
San Luis Obispo County Certificates of Participation 5.731% $  2,591,272 
San Luis Obispo County Pension Obligations 5.731 5,072,187 
San Luis Obispo Community College District Certificates of Participation 5.711 741,859 
Lucia Mar Unified School District Certificates of Participation 16.882 1,299,070 
City of Pismo Beach General Fund Obligations 100.000   3,990,000 (1) 
  TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT  $13,694,388 
 
  COMBINED TOTAL DEBT  $24,702,234 (2) 
 

(1)  Excludes certificates of participation to be sold. 
(2)  Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-
bonded capital lease obligations. 

 
Ratios to 2006-07 Assessed Valuation: 
  Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt...........................0.54% 
 
Ratios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation: 
  Combined Direct Debt  ($3,990,000) .....................................0.20% 
  Combined Total Debt................................................................1.27% 
 
STATE SCHOOL BUILDING AID REPAYABLE AS OF 6/30/06:  $0 

 
Source: California Municipal Statistics Inc. 
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BOND INSURANCE 

 
The following information has been furnished by MBIA Insurance Corporation (the “Insurer”) for 

use in this Official Statement.  Reference is made to APPENDIX F for a specimen of the Insurer’s policy 
(the “Policy” or “Insurance Policy”). 

 
The Insurer does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official 

Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect 
to the accuracy of the information regarding the Policy and the Insurer set forth under this heading, 
entitled “Bond Insurance.”  Additionally, the Insurer makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the 
advisability of investing in the Bonds. 
 
Bond Insurance Policy 

 
The Policy unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the full and complete payment required to 

be made by or on behalf of the Issuer (as such term is defined in the Policy) to the Trustee or its successor 
of an amount equal to (i) the principal of (either at the stated maturity or by an advancement of maturity 
pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment) and interest on, the Bonds as such payments shall become 
due but shall not be so paid (except that in the event of any acceleration of the due date of such principal by 
reason of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration resulting from default or otherwise, other than 
any advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed by 
the Policy shall be made in such amounts and at such times as such payments of principal would have been 
due had there not been any such acceleration, unless the Insurer elects in its sole discretion, to pay in whole 
or in part any principal due by reason of such acceleration); and (ii) the reimbursement of any such payment 
which is subsequently recovered from any Owner of the Bonds pursuant to a final judgment by a court of 
competent jurisdiction that such payment constitutes an avoidable preference to such Owner within the 
meaning of any applicable bankruptcy law (a “Preference”). 

 
The Policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment premium which may at any time be 

payable with respect to any Bonds.  The Policy does not, under any circumstance, insure against loss 
relating to:  (i) optional or mandatory redemptions (other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions); (ii) 
any payments to be made on an accelerated basis; (iii) payments of the purchase price of Bonds upon tender 
by an owner thereof; or (iv) any Preference relating to (i) through (iii) above.  The Policy also does not 
insure against nonpayment of principal of or interest on the Bonds resulting from the insolvency, negligence 
or any other act or omission of the Paying Agent or any other paying agent for the Bonds. 

 
Upon receipt of telephonic or telegraphic notice, such notice subsequently confirmed in writing by 

registered or certified mail, or upon receipt of written notice by registered or certified mail, by the Insurer 
from the Trustee or any owner of a Bond the payment of an insured amount for which is then due, that such 
required payment has not been made, the Insurer on the due date of such payment or within one business 
day after receipt of notice of such nonpayment, whichever is later, will make a deposit of funds, in an 
account with U.S. Bank Trust National Association, in New York, New York, or its successor, sufficient for 
the payment of any such insured amounts which are then due.  Upon presentment and surrender of such 
Bonds or presentment of such other proof of ownership of the Bonds, together with any appropriate 
instruments of assignment to evidence the assignment of the insured amounts due on the Bonds as are paid 
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by the Insurer, and appropriate instruments to effect the appointment of the Insurer as agent for such owners 
of the Bonds in any legal proceeding related to payment of insured amounts on the Bonds, such instruments 
being in a form satisfactory to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, U.S. Bank Trust National Association 
shall disburse to such owners or the Trustee payment of the insured amounts due on such Bonds, less any 
amount held by the Trustee for the payment of such insured amounts and legally available therefor. 

 
The Insurer 

 
The Insurer is the principal operating subsidiary of MBIA Inc., a New York Stock Exchange listed 

company (the “Company”).  The Company is not obligated to pay the debts of or claims against the Insurer.  
The Insurer is domiciled in the State of New York and licensed to do business in and subject to regulation 
under the laws of all 50 states, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the 
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, the Virgin Islands of the United States and the Territory 
of Guam. The Insurer, either directly or through subsidiaries, is licensed to do business in the Republic of 
France, the United Kingdom and the Kingdom of Spain and is subject to regulation under the laws of those 
jurisdictions. 

 
The principal executive offices of the Insurer are located at 113 King Street, Armonk, New York 

10504 and the main telephone number at that address is (914) 273-4545. 
 

Regulation 
 
As a financial guaranty insurance company licensed to do business in the State of New York, the 

Insurer is subject to the New York Insurance Law which, among other things, prescribes minimum capital 
requirements and contingency reserves against liabilities for the Insurer, limits the classes and 
concentrations of investments that are made by the Insurer and requires the approval of policy rates and 
forms that are employed by the Insurer.  State law also regulates the amount of both the aggregate and 
individual risks that may be insured by the Insurer, the payment of dividends by the Insurer, changes in 
control with respect to the Insurer and transactions among the Insurer and its affiliates. 

 
The Policy is not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security Fund specified in Article 76 

of the New York Insurance Law. 
 

Financial Strength Ratings of MBIA 
 
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. rates the financial strength of the Insurer “Aaa.” 
 
Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. rates the financial strength of 

the Insurer “AAA.” 
 
Fitch Ratings rates the financial strength of the Insurer “AAA.” 
 
Each rating of the Insurer should be evaluated independently.  The ratings reflect the respective 

rating agency’s current assessment of the creditworthiness of the Insurer and its ability to pay claims on its 
policies of insurance.  Any further explanation as to the significance of the above ratings may be obtained 
only from the applicable rating agency. 
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The above ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold the Bonds, and such ratings may be 

subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agencies.  Any downward revision or withdrawal 
of any of the above ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.  The Insurer does 
not guaranty the market price of the Bonds nor does it guaranty that the ratings on the Bonds will not be 
revised or withdrawn. 

 
MBIA Financial Information 

 
As of December 31, 2005, the Insurer had admitted assets of $11.0 billion (audited), total liabilities 

of $7.2 billion (audited), and total capital and surplus of $3.8 billion (audited), each as determined in 
accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory authorities.  
As of December 31, 2006, the Insurer had admitted assets of $10.9 billion (unaudited), total liabilities of 
$6.9 billion (unaudited), and total capital and surplus of $4.0 billion (unaudited), each as determined in 
accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory authorities. 

 
For further information concerning the Insurer, see the consolidated financial statements of the 

Insurer and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 31, 2006, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 
2006 and the consolidated financial statements of the Insurer and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, 
which are hereby incorporated by reference into this Official Statement and shall be deemed to be a part 
hereof. 

 
Copies of the statutory financial statements filed by the Insurer with the State of New York 

Insurance Department are available over the Internet at the Company’s web site at http://www.mbia.com 
and at no cost, upon request to the Insurer at its principal executive offices. 

 
Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference 

 
The following document filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 

“SEC”) is incorporated by reference into this Official Statement: 
 
The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 
 
Any documents, including any financial statements of the Insurer and its subsidiaries that are 

included therein or attached as exhibits thereto, filed by the Company pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 
or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of the Company’s most recent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
or Annual Report on Form 10-K, and prior to the termination of the offering of the Bonds offered hereby 
shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Official Statement and to be a part hereof from the 
respective dates of filing such documents. Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed 
to be incorporated by reference herein, or contained in this Official Statement, shall be deemed to be 
modified or superseded for purposes of this Official Statement to the extent that a statement contained 
herein or in any other subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by 
reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement.  Any such statement so modified or superseded 
shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Official Statement. 
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The Company files annual, quarterly and special reports, information statements and other 

information with the SEC under File No. 1-9583.  Copies of the Company’s SEC filings (including (1) the 
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, and (2) the Company’s 
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2006, June 30, 2006 and September 30, 
2006 are available (i) over the Internet at the SEC’s web site at http://www.sec.gov; (ii) at the SEC’s public 
reference room in Washington, D.C.; (iii) over the Internet at the Company’s web site at 
http://www.mbia.com; and (iv) at no cost, upon request to the Insurer at its principal executive offices. 

 
In the event the Insurer were to become insolvent, any claims arising under a policy of financial 

guaranty insurance are excluded from coverage by the California Insurance Guaranty Association, 
established pursuant to Article 14.2 (commencing with Section 1063) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of Division 1 of 
the California Insurance Code. 

 
 

BOND OWNERS’ RISKS 
 
The purchase of the Bonds involves investment risk. If a risk factor materialized to a sufficient 

degree, it could delay or prevent payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. Such risk factors 
include, but are not limited to, the following matters and should be considered, along with other 
information in this Official Statement, by potential investors.  

 
 

Base Rental Payments Are Not Debt 
 
The obligation of the City to make the Base Rental Payments under the Lease does not constitute an 

obligation of the City for which the City is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which the 
City has levied or pledged any form of taxation. Neither the Bonds nor the obligation of the City to make 
Base Rental Payments constitute a debt of the City, the State of California or any political subdivision 
thereof (other than the Authority) within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or 
restriction. 

 
The Bonds are not general obligations of the Authority, but are limited obligations payable solely 

from and secured by a pledge of Revenues and amounts held in the funds and accounts created under the 
Indenture, consisting primarily of Base Rental Payments. The Authority has no taxing power. 

 
Although the Lease does not create a pledge, lien or encumbrance upon the funds of the City, the 

City is obligated under the Lease to pay the Base Rental Payments from any source of legally available 
funds and the City has covenanted in the Lease that, for so long as the Leased Facilities are available for its 
use, it will make the necessary annual appropriations within its budget for the Base Rental Payments. The 
City is currently liable and may become liable on other obligations payable from general revenues, some of 
which may have a priority over the Base Rental Payments, or which the City, in its discretion, may 
determine to pay prior to the Base Rental Payments. 

 
The City has the capacity to enter into other obligations payable from the City’s General Fund, 

without the consent of or prior notice to the Owners of the Bonds. To the extent that additional obligations 
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are incurred by the City, the funds available to make Base Rental Payments may be decreased. In the event 
the City’s revenue sources are less than its total obligations, the City could choose to fund other activities 
before making Base Rental Payments and other payments due under the Lease. The same result could occur 
if state constitutional expenditure limitations were to prohibit the City from appropriating and spending all 
of its otherwise available revenues. 

 
Abatement 

 
In the event of loss or substantial interference in the use and possession by the City of all or any 

portion of the Leased Facilities caused by material damage, title defect, destruction to or condemnation of 
the Leased Facilities, Base Rental Payments will be subject to abatement. In the event that such component 
of the Leased Facilities, if damaged or destroyed by an insured casualty, could not be replaced during the 
period of time that proceeds of the City’s rental interruption insurance will be available in lieu of Base 
Rental Payments, or in the event that casualty insurance proceeds or condemnation proceeds are insufficient 
to provide for complete repair or replacement of such component of the Leased Facilities or prepayment of 
the Bonds, there could be insufficient funds to make payments to Owners in full. Reduction in Base Rental 
Payments due to abatement as provided in the Lease does not constitute a default thereunder. 

 
Risk of Uninsured Loss 

 
The City covenants under the Lease to maintain certain insurance policies on the Leased Facilities. 

See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Insurance” herein. These insurance policies do not cover all types 
of risk, and the City need not obtain insurance except as available on the open market from reputable 
insurers. For instance, the City does not covenant to maintain earthquake insurance. The Leased Facilities 
could be damaged or destroyed due to earthquake or other casualty for which the Leased Facilities is 
uninsured. Additionally, the Leased Facilities could be the subject of an eminent domain proceeding. Under 
these circumstances an abatement of Base Rental Payments could occur and could continue indefinitely. 
There can be no assurance that the providers of the City’s liability and rental interruption insurance will in 
all events be able or willing to make payments under the respective policies for such loss should a claim be 
made under such policies. Further, there can be no assurances that amounts received as proceeds from 
insurance or from condemnation of the Leased Facilities will be sufficient to redeem the Bonds. 

 
Under the Lease the City may obtain casualty insurance which provides for a deductible up to 

$250,000. Should the City be required to meet such deductible expenses, the availability of General Fund 
revenues to make Base Rental Payments may be correspondingly affected. 

 
Eminent Domain 

 
If the Leased Facilities are taken permanently under the power of eminent domain or sold to a 

government threatening to exercise the power of eminent domain, the term of the Lease will cease as of the 
day possession is taken. If less than all of the Leased Facilities are taken permanently, or if the Leased 
Facilities or any part thereof is taken temporarily, under the power of eminent domain, (a) the Lease will 
continue in full force and effect and will not be terminated by virtue of such taking, and (b) there will be a 
partial abatement of Base Rental Payments as a result of the application of net proceeds of any eminent 
domain award to the prepayment of the Base Rental Payments, in an amount to be agreed upon by the City 
and the Authority such that the resulting Base Rental Payments represent fair consideration for the use and 
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occupancy of the remaining usable portion of the Leased Facilities. The City covenants in the Lease to 
contest any eminent domain award which is insufficient to either: (i) prepay the Base Rental Payments in 
whole, if all the Leased Facilities are condemned; or (ii) prepay a pro rata share of Base Rental Payments, in 
the event that less than all of the Leased Facilities are condemned. 

 
Hazardous Substances 

 
The existence or discovery of hazardous materials may limit the beneficial use of the Leased 

Facilities. In general, the owners and lessees of the Leased Facilities may be required by law to remedy 
conditions of such parcel relating to release or threatened releases of hazardous substances. The federal 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, sometimes referred to 
as “CERCLA” or the “Superfund Act,” is the most well known and widely applicable of these laws, but 
California laws with regard to hazardous substances are also similarly stringent. Under many of these laws, 
the owner or lessee is obligated to remedy a hazardous substance condition of the property whether or not 
the owner or lessee had anything to do with creating or handling the hazardous substance. 

 
Further it is possible that the beneficial use of the Leased Facilities may be limited in the future 

resulting from the current existence on the Leased Facilities of a substance currently classified as hazardous 
but which has not been released or the release of which is not presently threatened, or may arise in the 
future resulting from the current existence on the Leased Facilities of a substance not presently classified as 
hazardous but which may in the future be so classified. Further, such liabilities may arise not simply from 
the existence of a hazardous substance but from the method in which it is handled. All of these possibilities 
could significantly limit the beneficial use of the Leased Facilities. The City is unaware of the existence of 
hazardous substances on the Leased Facilities site which would materially interfere with the beneficial use 
thereof. 

 
Bankruptcy 

 
The City is a unit of State government and therefore is not subject to the involuntary procedures of 

the United States Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”). However, pursuant to Chapter 9 of the 
Bankruptcy Code, the City may seek voluntary protection from its creditors for purposes of adjusting its 
debts. In the event the City were to become a debtor under the Bankruptcy Code, the City would be 
entitled to all of the protective provisions of the Bankruptcy Code as applicable in a Chapter 9 
proceeding. Among the adverse effects of such a bankruptcy might be: (i) the application of the 
automatic stay provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, which, until relief is granted, would prevent collection 
of payments from the City or the commencement of any judicial or other action for the purpose of 
recovering or collecting a claim against the City; (ii) the avoidance of preferential transfers occurring 
during the relevant period prior to the filing of a bankruptcy petition; (iii) the existence of unsecured or 
court-approved secured debt which may have a priority of payment superior to that of Owners of Bonds; 
and (iv) the possibility of the adoption of a plan for the adjustment of the City’s debt (a “Plan”) without 
the consent of the Trustee or all of the Owners of Bonds, which Plan may restructure, delay, compromise or 
reduce the amount of any claim of the Owners if the Bankruptcy Court finds that the Plan is fair and 
equitable. 
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In addition, the City could either reject the Lease or assume the Lease despite any provision of the 
Lease which makes the bankruptcy or insolvency of the City an event of default thereunder. In the event the 
City rejects the Lease, the Trustee, on behalf of the Owners of the Bonds, would have a pre-petition claim 
that may be limited under the Bankruptcy Code and treated in a manner under a Plan over the objections of 
the Trustee or Owners of the Bonds. Moreover, such rejection would terminate the Lease and the City’s 
obligations to make payments thereunder. 

 
The Authority is a public agency and, like the City, is not subject to the involuntary procedures of 

the Bankruptcy Code. The Authority may also seek voluntary protection under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy 
Code. In the event the Authority were to become a debtor under the Bankruptcy Code, the Authority would 
be entitled to all of the protective provisions of the Bankruptcy Code as applicable in a Chapter 9 
proceeding. Such a bankruptcy could adversely affect the payments under the Indenture. Among the adverse 
effects might be: (i) the application of the automatic stay provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, which, until 
relief is granted, would prevent collection of payments from the Authority or the commencement of any 
judicial or other action for the purpose of recovering or collecting a claim against the Authority; (ii) the 
avoidance of preferential transfers occurring during the relevant period prior to the filing of a bankruptcy 
petition; (iii) the existence of unsecured or court-approved secured debt which may have priority of 
payment superior to that of the Owners of the Bonds; and (iv) the possibility of the adoption of a plan for 
the adjustment of the Authority’s debt without the consent of the Trustee or all of the Owners of the Bonds, 
which plan may restructure, delay, compromise or reduce the amount of any claim of the Owners if the 
Bankruptcy Court finds that the Plan is fair and equitable. However, the bankruptcy of the Authority, and 
not the City, should not affect the Trustee’s rights under the Lease. The Authority could still challenge the 
assignment, and the Trustee and/or the Owners of the Bonds could be required to litigate these issues in 
order to protect their interests. 

 
Enforcement of Remedies Under the Lease 

 
If the City defaults on its obligation to make Base Rental Payments with respect to the Leased 

Facilities, the Authority’s only effective remedy is to sue for Base Rental Payments as they become due. In 
the event of a default, there is no remedy of acceleration of the total Base Rental Payments due over the 
term of the Lease. The City, while it is the lessee under the Lease, will only be liable for Base Rental 
Payments on a semiannual basis, and the Authority would be required to seek a separate judgment for each 
year’s defaulted Base Rental Payment. Any such suit for money damages would be subject to limitations on 
legal remedies against cities in the State. 

 
No Liability of Authority to the Owners 

 
Except as expressly provided in the Indenture, the Authority will not have any obligation or liability 

to the Owners of the Bonds with respect to the payment when due of the Base Rental Payments by the City, 
or with respect to the performance by the City of other agreements and covenants required to be performed 
by it contained in the Lease or the Indenture, or with respect to the performance by the Trustee of any right 
or obligation required to be performed by it contained in the Indenture. 
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Risks Related to Taxation in California 
 
Constitutional Amendments Affecting Tax Revenues.  Article XIIIA of the California 

Constitution limits the amounts of ad valorem tax on real property to 1% of “full cash value” as determined 
by the county assessor. Article XIIIA defines “full cash value” to mean “the City Assessor’s valuation of 
real property as shown on the 1975/76 tax bill under ‘full cash value’, or thereafter the appraised value of 
real property when purchased, newly constructed, or a change in ownership has occurred after the 1975 
assessment period.” Furthermore, all real property valuation may be increased to reflect the inflation rate, as 
shown by the consumer price index, not to exceed 2% per year, or may be reduced in the event of declining 
property values caused by damage, destruction or other factors. 

 
Article XIIIA exempts from the 1% tax limitation any taxes to repay indebtedness approved by the 

voters prior to July 1, 1978, and any bonded indebtedness for the acquisition or improvement of real 
property approved on or after July 1, 1978 by two-thirds of the voters voting on the proposition approving 
such bonds, and requires a vote of two-thirds of the qualified electorate to impose special taxes, while 
totally precluding the imposition of any additional ad valorem, sales or transaction tax on real property. In 
addition, Article XIIIA requires the approval of two-thirds of all members of the State legislature to change 
any State tax law resulting in increased tax revenues. 

 
Article XIIIB of the California Constitution limits the annual appropriations from the proceeds of 

taxes of the State and any city, county, school district, authority or other political subdivision of the State to 
the level of appropriations for the prior fiscal year, as adjusted for changes in the cost of living, population 
and services rendered by the governmental entity. Article XIIIB includes a requirement that if an entity’s 
revenues in any year exceed the amount permitted to be spent, the excess would have to be returned by 
revising tax or fee schedules over the subsequent two years. 

 
Right to Vote on Taxes Act – Proposition 218.  On November 5, 1996, California voters 

approved an initiative to amend the California Constitution known as the Right to Vote on Taxes Act 
(“Proposition 218”), which added Article XIIIC and XIIID to the California Constitution. Among other 
provisions, Proposition 218 requires majority voter approval for the imposition, extension or increase of 
general taxes and two-thirds voter approval for the imposition, extension or increase of special taxes by a 
local government, which is defined in Proposition 218 to include cities. Proposition 218 also provides that 
any general tax imposed, extended or increased without voter approval by any local government on or after 
January 1, 1995 and prior to November 6, 1996 will continue to be imposed only if approved by a majority 
vote in an election held within two years of November 6, 1996. Proposition 218 also provides that the 
initiative power shall not be prohibited or otherwise limited in matters of reducing or repealing any local 
tax, assessment, fee or charge. This extension of the initiative power is not limited by the terms of 
Proposition 218 to impositions after November 6, 1996 and absent other legal authority, could result in 
retroactive reduction in any existing taxes, assessments, fees and charges. In addition, Proposition 218 
limits the application of assessments, fees and charges and requires certain existing, new and increased 
assessments, fees and charges to be submitted to property owners for approval or rejection, after notice and 
public hearing. The City does not expect Proposition 218 to have any immediate material effect on the 
revenues from which Base Rental Payments are expected to be appropriated. 

 
The foregoing discussion of Proposition 218 should not be considered an exhaustive or 

authoritative treatment of the issues.  The City does not expect to be in a position to control the 
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consideration or disposition of these issues and cannot predict the timing or outcome of any judicial or 
legislative activity in this regard.  Interim rulings, final decisions, legislative proposals and legislative 
enactments may all affect the impact of Proposition 218 on the Bonds as well as the market for the Bonds.  
Legislative and court calendar delays and other factors may prolong any uncertainty regarding the effects of 
Proposition 218. 

 
Implementing Legislation.  Legislation enacted by the California Legislature to implement Article 

XIIIA (Statutes of 1978, Chapter 292, as amended) provides that, notwithstanding any other law, local 
agencies may not levy any property tax, except to pay debt service on indebtedness approved by the voters 
prior to July 1, 1978, and that each county will levy the maximum tax permitted by Article XIIIA of $4.00 
per $100 assessed valuation (based on the traditional practice of using 25% of full cash value as the 
assessed value for tax purposes). The legislation further provided that, for Fiscal Year 1978/79 only, the tax 
levied by each county was to be appropriated among all taxing agencies within the county in proportion to 
their average share of taxes levied in certain previous years. 

 
Future assessed valuation growth allowed under Article XIIIA (i.e., new construction, change of 

ownership, and 2% annual value growth) will be allocated on the basis of “situs” among the jurisdictions 
that serve the tax rate area within which the growth occurs. Local agencies and schools will share the 
growth of “base” revenue from the tax rate area. Each year’s growth allocation becomes part of each 
agency’s allocation in the following year. The Authority is unable to predict the nature or magnitude of 
future revenue sources which may be provided by the State to replace lost property tax revenues. Article 
XIIIA effectively prohibits the levying of any other ad valorem property tax above those described above, 
even with the approval of the affected voters. 

 
Constitutional Challenges to Property Tax System.  There have been many challenges to Article 

XIIIA of the California Constitution. The United States Supreme Court heard the appeal in Nordlinger v. 
Hahn, a challenge relating to residential property. Based upon the facts presented in Nordlinger, the United 
States Supreme Court held that the method of property tax assessment under Article XIIIA did not violate 
the federal Constitution. The Authority cannot predict whether there will be any future challenges to 
California’s present system of property tax assessment and cannot evaluate the ultimate effect on the 
Agency’s receipt of tax increment revenues should a future decision hold unconstitutional the method of 
assessing property. 

 
Statutory Revenue Limitations – Proposition 62.  Proposition 62 is a statewide statutory 

initiative adopted by the voters at the November 4, 1986 general election. It added Sections 53720 to 53730 
to the Government Code to require that all new local taxes be approved by the voters. The statute provides 
that all local taxes are either general taxes or special taxes. General taxes are imposed for general 
governmental purposes. Special taxes are imposed for specific purposes only. General taxes may not be 
imposed by local government unless approved by a two-thirds vote of the entire legislative body and a 
majority of the voters voting on the proposed general tax. Special taxes may not be imposed by local 
government unless approved by a majority of the entire legislative body and by two-thirds of the voters 
voting on the special tax. Soon after Proposition 62 was adopted by the voters, legal challenges to taxes 
adopted contrary to its provisions were filed. In 1991, in the most significant case, City of Woodlake v. 
Logan, the California Court of Appeal held that the statutory voter approval requirement for general taxes 
was unconstitutional. The California Supreme Court refused to review Woodlake. 

 



 

35 

 
On September 28, 1995, the California Supreme Court, on a 5-2 vote, in a decision entitled Santa 

Clara County Local Transportation Authority v. Guardino (Case No. S036269), “disapproved” Woodlake 
and held that the voter approval requirements of Proposition 62 are valid. On December 14, 1995, the 
Supreme Court made minor nonsubstantive changes to its written opinion and denied the petition for 
rehearing. The decision provides that the voter approval requirements of Proposition 62 for both general and 
special taxes are valid. The Guardino case fails to say (1) whether the decision is retroactively applicable to 
general taxes adopted prior to the decision; (2) whether taxpayers have any remedies for refund of taxes 
paid under a tax ordinance that was not voter approved; (3) what statute of limitations applies to taxes 
adopted without voter approval prior to Guardino; (4) whether Proposition 62 applies only to new taxes or 
to tax increases as well. 

 
The Court of Appeals in a December 15, 1997 decision entitled McBearty v. City of Brawley (Case 

No. D027877) addressed some of these issues. In Brawley, a taxpayer challenged the city’s utility tax that 
was passed by the city council in 1991 without a vote of the electorate. The Court of Appeals held that (i) a 
three year statute of limitations applies to challenges to a tax ordinance subject to Proposition 62; and (ii) 
the statute of limitations did not begin to run until September 1995 when the Guardino case determined that 
Proposition 62 was constitutional. The effect of the holding in Brawley is that any tax ordinances passed 
between November 1986 and December 1995 that were not approved by the electorate would be subject to a 
challenge until December 1998. The court ordered the city to either cease collecting the tax or seek voter 
approval to continue levying the tax. However, in Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Association v. City of La 
Habra, decided on June 4, 2001, the California Supreme Court overruled part of McBearty, finding that the 
three year statute of limitations applicable to such taxes does not run from the date of the Guardino decision, 
but rather the continued imposition and collection of such tax is an ongoing violation, upon which the 
limitations period begins with each new collection. 

 
Several questions raised by the Guardino decision remain unresolved. Proposition 62 provides that 

if a jurisdiction imposes a tax in violation of Proposition 62, the portion of the one percent general ad 
valorem tax levy allocated to that jurisdiction is reduced by $1 for every $1 in revenue attributable to the 
improperly imposed tax for each year that such tax is collected. The practical applicability of this 
provision has not been fully determined. Potential future litigation and legislation may resolve some or all 
of the issues raised by the Guardino decision. 

 
The Authority cannot predict the outcome of any pending or future litigation concerning the 

validity of Proposition 62, nor can it predict the scope of the Guardino or Brawley decisions discussed 
above. Proposition 62 could affect the ability of the City to continue the imposition of, or to retain, certain 
taxes, and restrict the City’s ability to raise revenue. 

 
Future Initiatives 

 
Articles XIIIA, XIIIB, XIIIC and XIIID were each adopted as measures that qualified for the ballot 

pursuant to California’s initiative process. From time to time other initiative measures could be adopted, 
further affecting revenues of the City or the City’s ability to expend revenues. The nature and impact of 
these measures cannot be anticipated by the Authority or the City. 
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State Budget Deficit 

 
The State has been experiencing serious budgetary shortfalls for the past three fiscal years, and it is 

currently projected to experience budgetary shortfalls in the current fiscal year. The State General Fund 
Budgets for fiscal year 2002/03 and fiscal year 2003/04 were both adopted over two months late, and 
required the Legislature to close multi-billion dollar deficits. The State’s 2003/04 budget, in addition to 
suspending, deferring or eliminating certain State mandated local programs, reduced the vehicle license fee 
backfill to cities and counties by approximately $662 million. However, Assembly Bill 1768 was 
subsequently adopted by the Legislature, and required the State to repay this transferred amount of vehicle 
license fees by August 15, 2006. 

 
2006/07 Adopted State Budget. Governor Schwarzenegger signed a $131.4 billion 2006/07 State 

Budget (the “2006/07 Budget”) into law on June 30, 2006 which aims to improve the State’s fiscal health 
by paying down debt and building a reserve; and fully funding education while also providing funding for 
law enforcement, disaster readiness and services for abused and neglected children. The 2006/07 Budget 
sets aside a combined total of more than $4.9 billion, or 4.7 percent of total General Fund resources 
available, to address the State’s debt by establishing a budget reserve of $2.1 billion and early debt 
repayments of $2.8 billion. 

 
The 2006/07 Budget provides a record level of funding for the State’s K-12 schools and community 

colleges providing $55.1 billion in education spending under Proposition 98, an increase of $8.1 billion, or 
17 percent compared to the 2004 Budget Act. This funding increases total per-pupil spending from $9,977 
in 2004/05 to $11,264 in the 2006/07 Budget, an increase of $1,287 or 13 percent. The 2006/07 Budget also 
provides new resources to protect the public, including $256 million ($163 million General Fund) to 
improve services to abused and neglected children; $214 million ($180 million General Fund) to improve 
the capacity of hospitals to handle disaster and epidemic related surges in healthcare demand; $196 million 
for law enforcement initiatives, enhancements to law enforcement subventions, funding for 
methamphetamine eradication, funding for sexual assault felony enforcement grants to local governments, 
and grants to help county sheriffs and probation officers manage mentally ill offenders. 

 
In addition, the 2006/07 Budget provides $1.4 billion to fully fund Proposition 42 for the second 

consecutive year and provides an additional $1.4 billion for the early repayment of past loans from 
Proposition 42, for a total of $2.8 billion. Of the $1.4 billion repayment, $446 million is designated for 
cities and counties for local road and street maintenance. The 2006/07 Budget also provides $250 million 
for deferred maintenance in the State park system. 

 
With regard to local government, the 2006/07 Budget includes $232.5 million (General Fund) and 

$1.7 million (special funds) to pay 2005/06 and 2006/07 claims for 38 noneducation mandates, including 
the Peace Officer’s Procedural Bill of Rights mandate. Funding for the AB 3632 mental health mandate is 
provided separately in the budget. The 2006/07 Budget suspends local agency obligations to carry out 29 
mandates in the budget year and directs the Commission on State Mandates to reconsider two previous 
mandate determinations that found state reimbursable costs. The 2006/07 Budget starts the process of 
paying local governments for the large backlog of pre-2004/05 mandate claims. Specifically, the 2006/07 
Budget provides $169.9 million (General Fund) to make the 2006/07 and 2007/08 payments towards the 
State’s 15-year plan to retire this mandate debt. 
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The 2006/07 Budget provides $565 million for major local public safety programs. This represents 

an increase of $146 million, or 35 percent, above the 2005/6 funding level. Notable initiatives for local law 
enforcement include those targeting mentally ill offenders and local booking fees. Specifically, the 2006/07 
Budget provides $45 million to reestablish the Mentally Ill Offender Crime Reduction Grant Program. In 
addition, the 2006/07 Budget provides $35 million to reimburse cities for jail booking fees paid to counties 
in 2005/06 and revamps county authority to collect fees starting in 2007/08. 

 
Earthquakes 

 
The City, like much of California, is subject to seismic activity. The City is located in a seismically 

dynamic region featuring active fault systems. 
 
The City is not obligated under the Lease to procure and maintain, or cause to be procured and 

maintained, earthquake insurance on the Leased Facilities. Depending on its severity, an earthquake could 
result in abatement of Lease Payments under the Lease. See “RISK FACTORS – Abatement” above. 

 
Loss of Tax Exemption 

 
As discussed under the caption “TAX EXEMPTION,” in order to maintain the exclusion from 

gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds, the City has covenanted in the 
Lease not to take any action, or fail to take any action, if such action or failure to take such action would 
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds under section 103 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Interest on the Bonds could become includable in gross income for 
purposes of Federal income taxation retroactive to the date the Bonds were issued, as a result of acts or 
omissions of the City in violation of the Code. Should such an event of taxability occur, the Bonds are not 
subject to early redemption and will remain outstanding to maturity or until prepaid under the optional 
redemption or mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions of the Indenture 

 
Limited Secondary Market 

 
As stated herein, investment in the Bonds poses certain economic risks which may not be 

appropriate for certain investors, and only persons with substantial financial resources who understand the 
risk of investment in the Bonds should consider such investment. There can be no guarantee that there will 
be a secondary market for purchase or sale of the Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that the Bonds can 
or could be sold for any particular price. 

 
Bond Insurance Policy 

 
The Policy does not insure any risk other than Nonpayment, as defined in the Policy. Specifically, the 

Policy does not cover: 
 
1. payment on acceleration, as a result of a call for redemption (other than mandatory sinking fund 
redemption) or as a result of any other advancement of maturity; 
 
2. payment of any redemption, prepayment or acceleration premium; or 
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3. nonpayment of principal or interest caused by the insolvency or negligence of any Trustee. 
 
In the event that the Insurer were to become insolvent, any claims arising under the Policy would be 

excluded from coverage by the California Insurance Guaranty Association, established pursuant to the laws of 
the State of California. 

 
Secondary Market for Bonds 

 
There can be no guarantee that there will be a secondary market for the Bonds or, if a secondary 

market exists, that any Bonds can be sold for any particular price.  Occasionally, because of general market 
conditions or because of adverse history or economic prospects connected with a particular issue, secondary 
marketing practices in connection with a particular issue are suspended or terminated.  Additionally, prices 
of issues for which a market is being made will depend upon then-prevailing circumstances.  Such prices 
could be substantially different from the original purchase price. 

 
 

THE AUTHORITY 
 
The Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority is a joint exercise of powers authority duly organized 

and existing under and pursuant to that certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated April 2, 1991 by 
and between the City and the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pismo Beach and under the provisions 
of Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the 
California Government Code (the “Act”). The Authority is authorized pursuant to Article 4 (commencing 
with Section 6584) of the Act (the “Bond Law”) to borrow money for the purpose, among other things, of 
financing and refinancing public capital improvements of the City. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
The City’s financial statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2006 were prepared by the City 

and audited by Terry E. Krieg, Certified Public Accountant, and excerpts from such report are contained in 
APPENDIX B hereto. The financial report should be read in its entirety. At the time of the execution and 
delivery of the Bonds, the City will certify that there has been no material adverse change in the City’s 
financial position since June 30, 2006. The information set forth herein does not purport to be a summary of 
the City’s financial report. 

 
TAX MATTERS 

 
In the opinion of the Law Offices of Cameron A. Weist, Scotts Valley, California, Bond Counsel, 

under existing law, interest on the Bonds is exempt from personal income taxes of the State of California, 
interest on the Bonds is excluded pursuant to section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the 
“Code”) from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel is also 
of the opinion that, assuming compliance with the aforementioned covenant, the Bonds are not “specified 
private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 57(a)(5) of the Code and, therefore, the interest on the 
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Bonds will not be treated as an item of tax preference for purposes of computing the alternative minimum 
tax imposed by section 55 of the Code. The receipt or accrual of interest on Bonds owned by a corporation 
may affect the computation of its alternative minimum taxable income, upon which the alternative 
minimum tax is imposed, to the extent that such interest is taken into account in determining the adjusted 
current earnings of that corporation (75 percent of the excess, if any, of such adjusted current earnings over 
the alternative minimum taxable income being an adjustment to the alternative minimum taxable income 
(determined without regard to such adjustment or to the alternative tax net operating loss deduction)). 

 
The opinions set forth in the preceding paragraph are subject to the condition that the Authority and 

the City comply with all requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the 
Bonds in order that such interest be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. The Authority and the City have covenanted to comply with each such requirement.  Failure to 
comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of such interest in gross income for 
federal income tax purposes to be retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.   

 
To the extent that a purchaser of a Bond acquires that Bond at a price that exceeds the aggregate 

amount of payments (other than payments of qualified stated interest within the meaning of section 1.1273-
1 of the Treasury Regulations) to be made on the Bonds (determined, in the case of a callable Bond, under 
the assumption described below), such excess will constitute “bond premium” under the Code. Section 171 
of the Code, and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder, provide generally that bond premium on 
a tax-exempt obligation must be amortized on a constant yield, economic accrual basis; the amount of 
premium so amortized will reduce the owner’s basis in such obligation for federal income tax purposes, but 
such amortized premium will not be deductible for federal income tax purposes. In the case of a purchase of 
a Bond that is callable, the determination whether there is amortizable bond premium, and the computation 
of the accrual of that premium, must be made under the assumption that the Bond will be called on the 
redemption date that would minimize the purchaser’s yield on the Bond (or that the Bond will not be called 
prior to maturity if that would minimize the purchaser’s yield). The rate and timing of the amortization of 
the bond premium and the corresponding basis reduction may result in an owner realizing a taxable gain 
when a Bond owned by such owner is sold or disposed of for an amount equal to or in some circumstances 
even less than the original cost of the Bond to the owner. 

 
Any person considering purchasing a Bond at a price that includes bond premium should consult 

his or her own tax advisors with respect to the amortization and treatment of such bond premium, including, 
but not limited to, the calculation of gain or loss upon the sale, redemption or other disposition of the Bond. 

 
Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of 

issuance of the Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the Bonds or the tax consequences of the 
ownership of the Bonds. No assurance can be given that future legislation, or amendments to the Code, if 
enacted into law, will not contain provisions that could directly or indirectly reduce the benefit of the 
exemption of interest on the Bonds from personal income taxation by the State of California or of the 
exclusion of interest on the Bonds from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax 
purposes. Furthermore, Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to any federal, state or local tax law 
consequences with respect to the Bonds, or the interest thereon, if any action is taken with respect to the 
Bonds or the proceeds thereof permitted or predicated upon the advice or approval of counsel if such advice 
or approval is given by other counsel. 
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The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing the tax-exempt 
status of the interest on municipal obligations. If an audit of the Bonds is commenced, under current 
procedures the Service is likely to treat the City as the “taxpayer,” and the owners of Bonds would have no 
right to participate in the audit process. In responding to or defending an audit of the tax-exempt status of 
the interest with respect to the Bonds, the City may have different or conflicting interest from such owners. 
Further, the disclosure of the initiation of an audit may adversely affect the market price of the Bonds, 
regardless of the final disposition of the audit. 

 
Bond Counsel’s opinion is not a guarantee of a result, but represents its legal judgment based upon 

its review of existing statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions and the representations and 
covenants of the City and the Authority described above. No ruling has been sought from the Service with 
respect to the matters addressed in the opinion of Bond Counsel, and Bond Counsel’s opinion is not binding 
on the Service. 

 
The proposed form of the opinion of Bond Counsel is attached as APPENDIX E. 
 
 

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS 
 
Law Offices of Cameron A. Weist, Scotts Valley, California, Bond Counsel, will render an opinion 

with respect to the validity of the Bonds, the form of which opinion is set forth in APPENDIX E.  The Law 
Offices of Cameron A. Weist is serving as Disclosure Counsel. Payment of the fees and expenses of Bond 
Counsel and Disclosure Counsel are contingent upon the sale and issuance of the Bonds.  Certain legal 
matters will be passed upon for the City and the Authority by Hanley & Fleishman, LLP. 

 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
 
The City has covenanted in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the benefit of the Owners and 

beneficial owners of the Certificates to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to 
the City by not later than nine months following the end of the City’s Fiscal Year (currently, the City’s 
fiscal year ends on June 30) (the “Annual Report”), commencing with the report of Fiscal Year ending June 
30, 2007, and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if material. The Annual 
Report and notices of material events will be filed by the City with each Nationally Recognized Municipal 
Securities Information Repository. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual 
Report and the notice of material events is set forth in “APPENDIX C – FORM OF CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE,” hereto. These covenants have been made in order to assist the 
Underwriter in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b) (5) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended. 

 
VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL ACCURACY 

 
In connection with the execution and delivery of the Bonds, Grant Thornton, LLP, Minneapolis, 

Minnesota, (the “Verification Agent”) will verify from the information provided to it the mathematical 
accuracy as of the date of the closing on the Bonds of (1) the computations contained in the provided 
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schedules to determine that the anticipated receipts from the securities and cash deposits listed in the 
underwriter’s schedules, to be held in escrow, will be sufficient to pay, when due, the principal, interest and 
call premium payment requirements, if any, of the 1999 Obligation, and (2) the computations of yield on 
both the securities and the Bonds contained in the provided schedules used by Bond Counsel in its 
determination that the interest on the Bonds is exempt from tax. The Verification Agent will express no 
opinion on the assumptions provided to it, nor as to the exemption from taxation of the interest on the 
Bonds. The report of the Verification Agent, will include the statement that the scope of their engagement is 
limited to verifying the mathematical accuracy of the computations contained in such schedules provided to 
them, and have they no obligation to update their report because of events occurring, or data or information 
coming to their attention, subsequent to the date of their report. 

 
 

LITIGATION 
 
There is no action, suit or proceeding known to the Authority to be pending or threatened, 

restraining or enjoining the execution or delivery of the Bonds, the Indenture, or the Lease, or in any way 
contesting or affecting the validity of the foregoing or any proceedings of the Authority taken with respect 
to any of the foregoing. The City has pending against it claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of 
City operations. The City is of the view that, if determined adversely to the City, such claims and lawsuits 
would not, in the aggregate, materially impair the City’s ability to make Base Rental Payments and 
Additional Payments when due. 

 
RATINGS 

 
Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. (“Moody’s”) and Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) have assigned their 

municipal bond ratings of “Aaa” and “AAA,” respectively, to the Bonds with the understanding that upon 
delivery of the Bonds, the Policy insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds will be issued by the Bond Insurer.  There is no assurance that any credit ratings given to the Bonds 
will be maintained for any period of time or that the ratings may not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by 
such rating agencies if, in their judgment, circumstances so warrant.  Any such downward revision or 
withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.  Such ratings reflect 
only the views of such organizations and an explanation of the significance of such ratings may be obtained 
from such rating agencies. 

 
FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

 
The Authority has entered into an agreement with Northcross, Hill & Ach, San Rafael, California 

(the “Financial Advisor”), whereunder the Financial Advisor provides financial recommendations and 
guidance to the Authority with respect to preparation and sale of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor has 
read and participated in the drafting of certain portions of this Official Statement and has supervised 
the completion and editing thereof. The Financial Advisor has not audited, authenticated or otherwise 
verified the information set forth in the Official Statement, or any other related information available to 
the Authority, with respect to accuracy and completeness of disclosure of such information, and the 
Financial Advisor makes no guaranty, warranty or other representation respecting accuracy and 
completeness of the Official Statement or any other matter related to the Official Statement. 



 

42 

UNDERWRITING 
 
The Bonds are being purchased by E.J. De La Rosa & Co., Inc. (the “Underwriter”).  The 

Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Bonds at a price of $5,117,344.65 (which price is equal to the 
$5,185,000 aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, less Original Issue Discount of $15,805.35, and less 
Underwriter’s Discount of $51,850). 

 
The Bond Purchase Contract pursuant to which the Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Bonds 

provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the Bonds if any are purchased, the obligation to make 
such purchase being subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Purchase Contract, 
including the approval of certain legal matters by counsel and certain other conditions. 

 
The Underwriter intends to offer the Bonds to the public at the offering prices set forth on the cover 

page of this Official Statement.  The Underwriter may offer and sell to certain dealers and others at a price 
lower than the offering prices stated on the cover page hereof.  The offering price may be changed from 
time to time by the Underwriter. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
So far as any statements made in this Official Statement involve matters of opinion, assumptions, 

projections, anticipated events or estimates, whether or not expressly stated, they are set forth as such and 
not as representations of fact, and actual results may differ substantially from those set forth herein.  Neither 
this Official Statement nor any statement which may have been made verbally or in writing is to be 
construed as a contract with the Owners of the Bonds. 

 
This Official Statement does not constitute a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds. 
 
The summaries of certain provisions of the Bonds, statutes and other documents or agreements 

referred to in this Official Statement do not purport to be complete, and interested parties must refer to each 
of them for a complete statement of their provisions.  Copies are available for review by making requests to 
the City. 

 
The Appendices are an integral part of this Official Statement and must be read together with all 

other parts of this Official Statement.  The audited financial statements of the City, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies, for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2006 is contained in APPENDIX B.  

 
The execution of this Official Statement and its delivery have been authorized by the Authority and 

the City. 
 

PISMO BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 
 
 

By: /s/ Kevin Rice  
      Executive Director 
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APPENDIX A 
 

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS 
 

The following statements are summaries of certain provisions of the Indenture and the Lease. 
These statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full terms of such documents, copies of 
which may be obtained from the Trustee. 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
As used in this summary, the following terms have the meanings herein specified: 
 
“Act”  means the provisions of Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500), Chapter 5, 

Division 7, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California. 
 
“Additional Bonds”  means all bonds of the Authority authorized by and at any time Outstanding 

pursuant to the Indenture and executed, issued and delivered in accordance with Section 3.05 of the 
Indenture. 

 
“Additional Rental Payments”  means the additional rental payable by the City under and pursuant 

to the Lease 
 
“Agency”  means the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pismo Beach. 
 
“Agreement”  means that certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated as of April 2, 1991, 

entered into under the Act by the City of Pismo Beach and the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pismo 
Beach, together with any amendments thereof and supplements thereto. 

 
“Assignment Agreement”  means the Assignment Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2007, by and 

between the Authority as assignor and the Trustee as assignee, as originally executed or as thereafter 
amended pursuant to any duly authorized and executed amendments thereto. 

 
“Authority”  means the Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority, a joint powers authority and 

public body duly organized and existing under the Agreement and the laws of the State of California.  
 
“Authority Board”  means the governing Board of the Authority. 
 
“Authority Representative”  means the Chair, Secretary or Treasurer of the Authority, or any other 

person authorized by resolution of the Board of the Authority to act on behalf of the Authority under or with 
respect to the Indenture.  

 
“Base Rental Payments”  means all payments required to be paid by the City pursuant to Section 3 

of the Lease including any prepayment thereof pursuant to Section 12 of the Lease. 
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“Bond Counsel”  means (a) the Law Offices of Cameron A. Weist, and (b) any other attorney or 
firm of attorneys of nationally recognized expertise with respect to legal matters relating to obligations the 
interest on which is excludable from gross income pursuant to Section 103 of the Tax Code. 

 
“Bond Insurance” “Insurance Policy” or “Bond Insurance Policy”  means the financial guaranty 

insurance policy insuring the scheduled payment of the amounts of principal of and interest on the Bonds, 
issued by the Insurer. 

 
“Bond Insurer” or “Insurer” means MBIA Insurance Corporation, and its successors assigns. 
 
“Bond Law” means the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, constituting Article 4 of the 

Act, as in existence on the Closing Date or as thereafter amended from time to time. 
 
“Bond Year” means each twelve-month period extending from December 2 in one calendar year to 

December 1 in the succeeding calendar year, both dates inclusive, except that the first Bond Year will 
extend from the Closing Date to December 1, 2007. 

 
“Bond Register”  means the registration books for the ownership of Bonds maintained by the 

Trustee pursuant to Section 2.12 of the Indenture. 
 
“Bondowner” or “Owner”  means, with respect to a Bond, the registered owner of such Bond as set 

forth in the Bond Register. 
 
“Bonds”  means the Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority, Series 2007A Lease Revenue 

Refunding Bonds, issued pursuant to terms and provisions of the Indenture. 
 
“Business Day”  means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, on which banking 

institutions in the State of California, or in any state in which the Office of the trustee is located, are not 
closed. 

 
“City”  means the City of Pismo Beach, a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under 

the laws of the State of California. 
 
“City Representative”  means the City Manager or the Administrative Services Director of the City, 

or any other person authorized by resolution of the City Council of the City to act on behalf of the City 
under or with respect to the Indenture. 

 
“Closing Date”  means April __, 2007, being the day when the Bonds, duly executed by the 

Trustee, are delivered to the Original Purchaser. 
 
“Code” or “Tax Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Any reference 

herein to a provision of the Tax Code will include all applicable Tax Regulations promulgated with respect 
to such provision. 
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“Continuing Disclosure Certificate”  means that certain Continuing Disclosure Certificate executed 
by the City and dated the date of original execution and delivery of the Bonds, as originally executed and as 
it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the term thereof. 

 
 “Costs of Issuance”  means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or reimbursable 

to the City or the Authority relating to the execution and delivery of the Lease or the execution, sale and 
delivery of the Bonds, including but not limited to filing and recording costs, settlement costs, printing 
costs, reproduction and binding costs, initial fees and charges of the Trustee and the Escrow Bank (which 
will include legal fees and the first annual administration fee of the Trustee), financing discounts, legal fees 
and charges, insurance fees and charges, financial and other professional consultant fees, costs of rating 
agencies for credit ratings, bond insurance premium and fees, costs of any guarantee or surety, fees for 
execution, transportation and safekeeping of the Bonds and charges and fees in connection with the 
foregoing. 

 
“Costs of Issuance Fund”  means the fund by that name created pursuant to Section 4.02 of the 

Indenture. 
 
“County”  means the county of San Luis Obispo, California. 
 
“Depository”  means (a) initially, DTC, and (b) any other Securities Depositories acting as 

Depository pursuant to Section 2.13 of the Indenture. 
 
“Depository System Participant”  means any participant in the Depository’s book-entry system. 
 
“DTC”  means The Depository Trust Company, a limited purpose trust company organized under 

the laws of the State of New York or its successors and assigns. References in the Indenture to DTC will 
include any Nominee of DTC in whose name any Bond is registered. 

 
“Escrow Bank”  means U.S. Bank National Association, acting as escrow bank under the Escrow 

Deposit and Trust Agreement. 
 
“Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement”  means the Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement, dated as 

of April 1, 2007, between the Authority and the Escrow Bank. 
 
“Escrow Fund”  means the fund by that name created and held under the terms of the Escrow 

Deposit and Trust Agreement. 
 
“Event of Default”  means an event of default under the Lease, as defined in Section 8.1 thereof. 
 
“Facilities” means, collectively, those certain parcels of real property, together with the 

improvements constructed or to be constructed thereon, leased by the Authority to the City pursuant to the 
Lease, as more fully described in Exhibit A to the Lease, as such Exhibit A may be revised and amended 
from time to time pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and of the Lease. 

 
“Fair Market Value”  means the price at which a willing buyer would purchase the investment from 

a willing seller in a bona fide, arm’s length transaction (determined as of the date the contract to purchase or 
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sell the investment becomes binding) if the investment is traded on an established securities market (within 
the meaning of Section 1273 of the Code) and, otherwise, the term “Fair Market Value” means the 
acquisition price in a bona fide arm’s length transaction (as referenced above) if (i) the investment is a 
certificate of deposit that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, (ii) the 
investment is an agreement with specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment provisions and a 
specifically negotiated interest rate (for example, a guaranteed investment contract, a forward supply 
contract or other investment agreement) that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations under the 
Code, (iii) the investment is a United States Treasury Security – State and Local Government Series that is 
acquired in accordance with applicable regulations of the United States Bureau of Public Debt, or (iv) any 
commingled investment fund in which the City and related parties do not own more than a ten percent 
(10%) beneficial interest therein if the return paid by the fund is without regard to the source of the 
investment. 

 
“Federal Securities”  means any direct, noncallable obligations of the United States of America 

(including obligations issued or held in book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury of 
the United States of America), or other noncallable obligations for which the faith and credit of the United 
States of America are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 

 
“Fiscal Year”  means the twelve-month period beginning on July 1 of any year and ending on June 

30 of the next succeeding year, or any other twelve-month period by the City as its fiscal year pursuant to 
written notice filed with the Trustee. 

 
“Fitch”  means Fitch Ratings, its successors and assigns. 
 
“Indenture”  means the Indenture, by and between the Authority and the Trustee, dated as of April 

1, 2007, as originally executed or as thereafter amended pursuant to any amendments hereto permitted to be 
made thereunder. 

 
“Independent Certified Public Accountant” means any accountant or firm of such accountants duly 

licensed or registered or entitled to practice and practicing as such under the laws of the State of California, 
appointed by the Authority, and who, or each of whom: 

 
 (1) is in fact independent and not under domination of the City or Authority; 
 
 (2) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the City or Authority; 

and 
 

(3) is not connected with the City or Authority as an officer or employee of the City or 
Authority, but who may be regularly retained to make reports to the City or Authority. 
 
“Independent Financial Consultant” means any financial consultant or firm of such consultants 

appointed by the City or Authority, and who, or each of whom: 
 
 (1) is in fact independent and not under domination of the City or Authority; 
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 (2) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the City or Authority; 
and 

 
(3) is not connected with the City or Authority as an officer or employee of the City or 

Authority, but who may be regularly retained to make reports to the City or Authority. 
 
“Information Services”  means any of the following services which has been designated in a 

certificate of the Authority delivered to the Trustee: Financial Information, Inc.’s “Daily Called Bond 
Service”, 30 Montgomery Street, 10th Floor, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, Attention: Editor; 
FIS/Mergent, Inc., 5250 77 Center Drive, Suite 150, Charlotte, North Carolina 28217, Attn: Call 
Notification; Standard & Poor’s Securities Evaluation, Inc., 55 Water Street, 45th Floor, New York, New 
York 10041, Attention: Notification Department; Xcitek, 5 Hanover Square, New York, New York 10004; 
or such other services providing information with respect to called bonds as the Authority may designate in 
a certificate of the Authority delivered to the Trustee. 

 
“Insurance and Condemnation Fund”  means the fund by that name to be established and held by 

the Trustee pursuant to Section 6.01 of the Indenture. 
 
“Interest Account” means the account by that name established and held by the Trustee pursuant to 

Section 4.02 of the Indenture. 
 
“Interest Payment Date”  means December 1 and June 1 of each year, commencing December 1, 

2007, so long as any Bonds are Outstanding. 
 
“Lease”  means the Lease agreement dated as of April 1, 2007, by and between the Authority as 

lessor and the City as lessee, as originally executed or as thereafter amended pursuant to any duly 
authorized and executed amendments thereto. 

 
 “Lease Revenue Fund”  means the fund by that name established and held by the Trustee pursuant 

to Section 4.02 of the Indenture. 
 
“Maximum Annual Debt Service”  means the largest of the sums obtained for any Bond Year after 

totaling the following for each such Bond Year: 
 
A. The principal amount of all Outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds maturing or required 

to be redeemed by mandatory sinking account redemption in such Bond Year; and 
 
B. The interest which would be due during such Bond Year on the aggregate principal amount 

of Bonds and Additional Bonds which would be Outstanding in such Bond Year if the Bonds and 
Additional Bonds Outstanding on the date of such computation were to mature or be redeemed in 
accordance with the applicable maturity or mandatory sinking account redemption schedule. At the time and 
for the purpose of making such computation, the amount of Bonds and Additional Bonds already retired in 
advance of the above mentioned schedule or schedules will be deducted pro rata from the remaining 
amounts thereon. 

 
“Moody’s”  means Moody’s Investors Service, its successors and assigns. 
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“Net Proceeds”  means insurance proceeds or an eminent domain award (including any proceeds of 

sale to a governmental entity under threat of the exercise of eminent domain powers), paid with respect to 
the Facilities or Site, to the extent remaining after payment therefrom of all expenses incurred in the 
collection thereof. 

 
“Nominee”  means (a) initially, Cede & Co. as nominee of DTC, and (b) any other nominee of the 

Depository designated pursuant to Section 2.13(a) of the Indenture. 
 
“Office” or “Corporate Trust Office”  means the office of the Trustee in Los Angeles, California 

provided that for the purposes of the registration, transfer, exchange, payment or surrender of the Bonds, the 
term “Office” or “Corporate Trust Office” means the corporate Office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, 
or at such other address or addresses designated by the Trustee in written notice filed with the City, the 
Authority and the Owners, including such other office for registration, transfer, exchange, or payment of 
Bonds. 

 
“Original Purchaser”  means E.J. De La Rosa & Co., Inc., San Francisco, California. 
 
“Outstanding”  means used as of any particular time with respect to Bonds, means (subject to the 

provisions of Section 13.04) all Bonds theretofore executed and delivered by the Trustee under the 
Indenture, including Bonds the principal of or interest on which is paid pursuant to the Bond Insurance 
Policy, except: 

 
(a) Bonds theretofore cancelled by the Trustee or surrendered to the Trustee for 

cancellation; 
 
(b)  Bonds deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 13.01 of the Indenture; and 
 
(c) Bonds in lieu of or in exchange for which other Bonds will have been executed and 

delivered by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.08 of the Indenture. 
 
“Owner” or “Bond Owner” when used with respect to a Bond, means the person in whose name the 

ownership of such Bond will be registered on the Registration Books. 
 
“Participating Underwriter”  has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure 

Certificate. 
 
 “Permitted Investments”  means the following, but only to the extent that the same are acquired at 

Fair Market Value (provided, that the Trustee will have no duty to investigate the Fair Market Value of any 
Permitted Investments), if and to the extent that they are permissible investments of funds of the City as 
stated in its current investment policy (the Trustee may rely on the investment directions of the City that the 
investment is approved by the City’s investment policy) and to the extent then permitted by law: 

 
A. The following obligations are Permitted Investments for all purposes, including defeasance 

investments in refunding escrow accounts: 
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(1) Cash (insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or 
otherwise collateralized with obligations described in paragraph (2) below), or 

 
(2) Direct obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on 

the books of) the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America, including State and 
Local Government Series. 

 
B. The following obligations are Permitted Investments for all purposes other than defeasance 

investments in refunding escrow accounts: 
 

(1) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations represent 
the full faith and credit of the United States of America, including: 
 

- Export-Import Bank 
- Farm Credit System Financial Assistance Corporation 
- Rural Economic Community Development Administration (formerly the  Farmers 

Home Administration) 
- General Services Administration 
- U.S. Maritime Administration 
- Small Business Administration 
- Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) 
- U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (PHA’s) 
- Federal Housing Administration 
- Federal Financing Bank; 
 
(2) Direct obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations are 

not fully guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America: 
 

- Senior debt obligations rated “Aaa” by Moody’s and “AAA” by S&P issued by the 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation (FHLMC) 

- Obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP) 
- Senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank System 
- Senior debt obligations of other Government Sponsored Agencies  
- Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) 
- Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) 
 
(3) U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds and bankers’ acceptances 

with domestic commercial banks which have a rating on their short term certificates of deposit on 
the date of purchase of “A-1” or “A-1+” by S&P and “P-1” by Moody’s and maturing no more than 
360 days after the date of purchase.  (Ratings on holding companies are not considered as the rating 
of the bank); 

 
(4) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single highest 

classification, “A-1” by S&P or “P-1” by Moody’s and which matures not more than 270 days after 
the date of purchase;  
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(5) Investments in a money market fund rated “AAAm” or “AAAm-G” or better by 

S&P, including any such funds for which the Trustee or an affiliate provides investment advice or 
other services; 

 
(6) Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations defined as follows:  Any bonds or other 

obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or local 
governmental unit of any such state which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to 
maturity or as to which irrevocable instructions have been given by the obligor to call on the date 
specified in the notice; and 

 
(A) which are rated, based on an irrevocable escrow account or fund (the 

“escrow”), in the highest rating category of S&P and Moody’s or any successors thereto; or 
 
(B) (i) which are fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption 

premium, if any, by an escrow consisting only of cash or obligations described in 
paragraph A(2) above, which escrow may be applied only to the payment of such principal 
of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the 
maturity date or dates thereof or the specified redemption date or dates pursuant to such 
irrevocable instructions, as appropriate, and (ii) which escrow is sufficient, as verified by a 
nationally recognized independent certified public accountant, to pay principal of and 
interest and redemption premium, if any, on the bonds or other obligations described in this 
paragraph on the maturity date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to 
above, as appropriate; (Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations meeting the requirements of 
subsection (B) of the Indenture may not be used as Permitted Investments for annual 
appropriation lease transactions without the prior written approval of S&P) 

 
(7) General obligations of states with a rating of at least “A2/A” or higher by both 

Moody’s and S&P; 
 

(8) Investment agreements approved in writing by the City and supported by 
appropriate opinions of counsel, with notice to S&P; and 
 

(9) Repurchase agreements with any commercial bank, which has a long-term, 
unsecured rating of “A” or better by S&P and A2 or better by Moody’s, provided that (i) the term 
of such repurchase agreement is not greater than thirty years, (ii) the Trustee or third party acting 
solely as agent for the Trustee has possession of the collateral, (iii) the collateral is valued weekly 
and the market value of the collateral is maintained at an amount equal to at least 103% for those 
securities defined in paragraphs (A) and (B)(1) above and 104% for those securities defined in 
paragraph (B)(2) above of the amount of cash transferred by the Trustee to the commercial bank 
under the repurchase agreement plus interest, (iv) failure to maintain the requisite collateral levels 
will permit the Trustee to liquidate the collateral immediately, (v) the repurchase securities are free 
and clear of any third-party lien or claim; and (vi) in the case of PSA Master Repurchase 
Agreements, there will have been delivered to the Trustee, the Authority and the Corporation an 
opinion of counsel to the effect that such repurchase agreement meets all guidelines under State law 
for legal investment of the funds to be invested. 
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(10) The Local Agency Investment Fund of the State or any state administered pool 

investment fund in which the City is statutorily permitted or required to invest will be deemed a 
permitted investment. 
 
C. The value of the above investments will be determined as follows: 
 
“Value”, which will be determined as of the end of each month, means that the value of any 

investments will be calculated as follows: 
 
(a) For securities: 
 
  (1) the closing bid price quoted by Interactive Data Systems, Inc.; or 
 

  (2) a valuation performed by a nationally recognized and accepted pricing service 
acceptable to the City whose valuation method consists of the composite average of various bid 
price quotes on the valuation date; or 

 
(3) the lower of two dealer bids on the valuation date.  The dealers or their parent 

holding companies must be rated at least investment grade by Moody’s and S&P and must be 
market markers in the securities being valued. 

 
(b) As to certificates of deposits and bankers acceptances: the face amount thereof, plus 

accrued interest; and 
 
(c) As to any investment not specified above: the value thereof established by prior agreement 

between the City and the Trustee. 
 
“Principal Account” means the account by that name established and held by the Trustee pursuant 

to Section 4.02 of the Indenture. 
 
“Project” means the acquisition, construction or improvement of public capital improvements 

designated by the City to be financed with the proceeds of the Bonds, or any additional project to be 
financed with the proceeds of Additional Bonds. 

 
“Project Costs” means any costs or expenses incurred in connection with the Project. 
 
 “Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument” means an irrevocable standby or direct-pay letter 

of credit or surety bond issued by a commercial bank or insurance company and deposited with the Trustee 
pursuant to Section 4.02, provided that all of the following requirements are met: (i) at all times during the 
term of such letter of credit or surety bond, the long-term credit rating of such bank is within the highest 
rating category of Moody’s and S&P, or the claims paying ability of such insurance company is rated within 
the highest rating category of A.M. Best & Company and S&P, (ii) such letter of credit or surety bond has a 
term which ends no earlier than the last Interest Payment Date of the series of Bonds to which the Reserve 
Requirement applies; (iii) such letter of credit or surety bond has a stated amount at least equal to the 
portion of the Reserve Requirement with respect to which funds are proposed to be released pursuant to 
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Section 4.02 of the Indenture; and (iv) the Trustee is authorized pursuant to the terms of such letter of 
credit or surety bond to draw thereunder amounts necessary to carry out the purposes specified in Section 
4.02 of the Indenture, including the replenishment of the Interest Account or the Principal Account, 

 
“Record Date”  means the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding each 

Interest Payment Date, whether or not such fifteenth (15th) day is a Business day. 
 
“Registration Books”  means the records maintained by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09 of the 

Indenture for registration of the ownership and transfer of ownership of the Bonds. 
 
“Rental Payments”  means collectively the Base Rental Payments and the Additional Rental 

Payments. 
 
“Request of the Authority”  means a request in writing signed by the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the 

Authority or by any other officer of the Authority duly authorized by the Chairman or by the Authority for 
that purpose, as evidenced in writing to the Trustee. 

 
“Request of the City”  means a request in writing signed by the City Manager, Administrative 

Services Director or by any other officer of the City duly authorized for that purpose. 
 
“Reserve Account”  means the fund by that name established and held by the Trustee pursuant to 

Section 4.02 of the Indenture. 
 
“Reserve Requirement”  means as of any calculation date in a Bond Year, an amount equal to the 

least of (i) ten percent (10%) of the sale proceeds (within the meaning of section 148 of the Code) of the 
Bonds, (ii) 125% of average annual debt service on the Bonds for that and every succeeding Bond Year, or 
(iii) Maximum Annual Debt Service; unless, with respect to the issuance of Additional Bonds, it is 
determined to maintain a pooled Reserve Account, then it will mean, as of as of any calculation date in a 
Bond Year, an amount equal to the least of (i) ten percent (10%) of the sale proceeds (within the meaning of 
section 148 of the Code) of the Bonds and Additional Bonds, (ii) 125% of average annual debt service on 
the Bonds and Additional Bonds for that and every succeeding Bond Year, or (iii) Maximum Annual Debt 
Service. 

 
“Revenues” means (a) all Base Rental Payments payable by the City pursuant to the Lease 

(including prepayments); (b) any proceeds of Bonds originally deposited with the Trustee and all moneys 
and accounts established hereunder; (c) investment income with respect to any moneys held by the Trustee; 
and (d) any insurance proceeds or condemnation awards received by or payable to the Trustee relating to the 
Base Rental Payments, including rental interruption insurance. 

 
“Securities Depositories”  means The Depository Trust Company, 711 Stewart Avenue, Garden 

City, New York 11530, Fax (516) 227-4039 or 4190; and, in accordance with then current guidelines of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission; such other addresses and/or such other securities depositories as the 
Authority may designate in a Written Request of the City or Authority delivered to the Trustee. 

 
“S&P”  means Standard & Poor’s Authority, its successors and assigns. 
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“Site Lease”  means that certain Site Lease, dated as of April 1, 2007, by and between the City and 
the Authority, pursuant to which the Authority leases the Facilities from the City. 

 
“State” means the State of California. 
 
“Substituted Property”  will have the meaning given to such term in the Lease. 
 
“Substitution”  means the release of all or a portion of the Facilities from the leasehold of the 

Indenture, and the lease of substituted real property and improvements under the Lease as provided in the 
Lease. 

 
“Supplemental Indenture”  means any resolution, agreement or other instrument then in full force 

and effect which amends or supplements the Indenture, and which has been duly adopted or entered into by 
the City or Authority; but only if and to the extent that such Supplemental Indenture is specifically 
authorized under the Indenture. 

 
“Surety Bond” means the Qualified Reserve Fund Credit Instrument issued by the Insurer on the Closing 

Date guaranteeing certain payments into the Reserve Account with respect to the Bonds as provided therein 
and subject to the limitations set forth therein. 

 
“Tax Regulations”  means temporary and permanent regulations promulgated under the Tax Code. 
 
“Term Bonds”  means the Bonds that are payable on or before their specified maturity dates from 

mandatory sinking account payments established for that purpose and calculated to retire such Bonds on or 
before their specified maturity dates. 

 
“Trustee”  means U.S. Bank National Association, or any successor thereto acting as Trustee 

pursuant to the Indenture. 
 

THE INDENTURE 
 

Transfer and Exchange of Bonds 
 
The Bonds may be transferred or exchanged at the Trust Office of the Trustee. The Trustee will 

not be required to make any such exchange or transfer of Bonds during the period established by the 
Trustee for selection of Bonds for redemption or to make any such exchange or transfer after the 
applicable Bond has been selected for redemption. 

 
Bonds Mutilated, Lost, Destroyed or Stolen 

 
If any Bond shall become mutilated, the Authority, at the expense of the Owner of said Bond, 

shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like tenor, maturity and 
aggregate principal amount in exchange and substitution for the Bond so mutilated, but only upon 
surrender to the Trustee of the Bond so mutilated. Every mutilated Bond so surrendered to the Trustee 
shall be canceled by it. If any Bond shall be lost, destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or 
theft may be submitted to the Trustee and, if such evidence be satisfactory to it and indemnity 
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satisfactory to it shall be given, the Authority, at the expense of the Bond Owner, shall execute, and the 
Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like tenor and series in lieu of and in 
substitution for the Bonds so lost, destroyed or stolen (or if any such Bond shall have matured or shall 
have been called for redemption, instead of issuing a substitute Bond, the Trustee may pay the same 
without surrender thereof upon receipt of indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee). The Authority may 
require payment of a reasonable fee for each new Bond issued and of the expenses which may be incurred by 
the Authority and the Trustee. Any Bond issued under these provisions in lieu of any Bond alleged to be 
lost, destroyed or stolen shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation on the part of the 
Authority whether or not the Bond so alleged to be lost, destroyed or stolen be at any time enforceable by 
anyone, and shall be entitled to the benefits of the Indenture with all other Bonds secured by the 
Indenture. 

 
Establishment of Funds and Accounts; Flow of Funds 

 
Lease Revenue Fund; Receipt, Deposit and Application of Revenues. All Revenues shall be 

deposited by the Trustee in a special fund designated as the “Lease Revenue Fund,” which the Trustee 
shall establish, maintain and hold in trust under the Indenture. 

 
On or before each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall transfer from the Lease Revenue Fund 

and deposit into the following respective accounts (each of which the Trustee shall establish and maintain 
within the Lease Revenue Fund), the following amounts in the following order of priority, the 
requirements of each such account (including the making up of any deficiencies in any such account 
resulting from lack of Revenues sufficient to make any earlier required deposit) at the time of deposit to be 
satisfied before any transfer is made to any account subsequent in priority: 

 
(a) Interest Account.   On or before each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall 

deposit in the Interest Account an amount required to cause the aggregate amount on deposit in 
the Interest Account to equal the amount of interest becoming due and payable on such Interest 
Payment Date on all Outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds. No deposit shall be made into the 
Interest Account if the amount contained therein is at least equal to the interest becoming due and 
payable upon all Outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds on each succeeding Interest Payment 
Date within the then current Bond Year.  All moneys in the Interest Account shall be used and 
withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest on the Bonds and 
Additional Bonds as it shall become due and payable (including accrued interest on any Bond and 
Additional Bond redeemed prior to maturity). 

 
(b) Principal Account.   On or before each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall deposit in 

the Principal Account an amount required to cause the aggregate amount on deposit in the Principal 
Account to equal the principal amount of the Bonds and any Additional Bonds maturing or required to be 
redeemed through mandatory sinking account redemption on such Interest Payment Date pursuant to the 
Indenture or pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture, as the case may be. All moneys in the Principal Account 
shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the principal of the Bonds and 
any Additional Bonds. 

 
(c) Reserve Account. 
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(1) On the Closing Date, the Trustee shall receive the Surety Bond which will fund the 
Reserve Account in an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. On or before each Interest 
Payment Date, the Trustee shall, as appropriate, first reimburse the insurer under the Guaranty 
Agreement for any draws on the Surety Bond, so as to reinstate the Surety Bond, and, second, 
deposit in the Reserve Account such amount as may be necessary to maintain a balance therein 
equal to the Reserve Requirement. No deposit will made in the Reserve Account so long as there 
shall be on deposit an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. All money in (or available to) the 
Reserve Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of replenishing 
the Interest Account or the Principal Account in such order, in the event of any deficiency at any 
time in either of such accounts, or for the purpose of paying the interest on or principal of or 
redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds or any Additional Bonds in the event that no other 
money of the Authority is lawfully available therefor, or for the retirement of all Bonds and any 
Additional Bonds then Outstanding. Draws on the Surety Bond shall be made by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Guaranty Agreement by presenting a Demand For Payment (as defined in the 
Guaranty Agreement) at least three (3) days prior to the date such amounts are scheduled to be 
deposited into the Interest Account or the Principal Account. 

 
(2) The Reserve Requirement may be satisfied by crediting to the Reserve Account 

moneys or a Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument or any combination thereof as approved 
by the Insurer, which in the aggregate make funds available in the Reserve Account in an amount 
equal to the Reserve Requirement. Upon the deposit with the Trustee of such Qualified Reserve 
Account Credit Instrument, the Trustee shall release moneys then on hand in the Reserve Account 
to the City, to be used for any lawful purpose, in on amount equal to the face amount of the 
Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument. The Trustee shall provide notice to the Original 
Purchaser of any deposit in the Reserve Account of a Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument. 

 
(3) In any case where the Reserve Account is funded with a combination of cash and a 

Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument, the Trustee shall deplete all cash balances before 
drawing on the Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument. With regard to replenishment, any 
available moneys provided by the Authority or the City shall be used first to reinstate the Qualified 
Reserve Account Credit Instrument and second, to replenish the cash in the Reserve Account. In the 
event the Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument is drawn upon, the Authority shall make 
payment of interest on amounts advanced under the Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument 
after making any payments pursuant to this subsection. 

 
(d) Surplus.  On June 15 and December 15 of each year the Trustee shall determine the 

amount, if any, remaining in the Lease Revenue Fund after making the deposits required by the Indenture 
and the transfers of investment earnings pursuant to Section 4.03 of the Indenture, and shall apply such 
amount as a credit against the next following Base Rental Payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 
directed in a Request of the City, the Trustee shall, with respect to all or any portion of such amount, pay, or 
set aside an amount for the payment of, any Rebate Requirement (as defined in the Tax Certificate) in 
accordance with a computation made by the City. 

 
Project Fund. There shall be established a separate fund to be held and maintained by the Director 

of Administrative Services to be known as the “Project Fund.” The Director of Administrative Services 
shall disburse or transfer all amounts in the Project Fund, as stated in a Request of the City for the payment 



 

A-14 

of the cost of the construction of the Project. Upon receipt of each such requisition, the Director of 
Administrative Services shall pay the amount set forth in such requisition as directed by the terms thereof. 
When the construction of the Project has been completed, a Certificate of the City shall be delivered to the 
Director of Administrative Services, stating the fact and date of such completion and stating that all the 
Project Costs have been determined and paid (or that all such costs have been paid less specified claims 
which are subject to dispute and for which a retention in the Project Fund is to be maintained in the full 
amount of such claim until such dispute is resolved). Following the delivery of such certificate, the Director 
of Administrative Services shall transfer amounts then on deposit in the Project Fund (but less the amount 
of any such retention) to the Trustee for deposit in the Lease Revenue Fund. 

 
Costs of Issuance Fund. The Costs of Issuance Fund shall be held and maintained by the Trustee. 

The moneys in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be used to pay Costs of Issuance from time to time and 
shall be disbursed by the Trustee upon delivery to the Trustee of a requisition. 
 
Investment of Funds 

 
All moneys in any of the funds or accounts established with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture 

shall be invested by the Trustee solely in Permitted Investments pursuant to the written direction of the 
Authority or the City given to the Trustee two Business Days in advance of the making of such investments. 
In the absence of any such direction from the Authority or the City, the Trustee shall invest any such 
moneys in money market funds described in clause (B)(5) of the definition of Permitted Investments. 
Moneys in the Reserve Account shall not be invested in investments having maturities extending beyond 5 
years; provided, however, that if such Permitted Investments may be redeemed at par so as to be available 
on each Interest Payment Date, any amount in the Reserve Account may be invested in such redeemable 
Permitted Investments maturing on any date on or prior to the final scheduled payment date of the Bonds 
and/or Additional Bonds. Obligations purchased as an investment of moneys in any fund or account shall be 
deemed to be part of such fund or account. 

 
For purposes of acquiring any investments hereunder, the Trustee may commingle funds held by it 

under the Indenture. The Trustee may act as principal or agent in the acquisition of any investment and may 
impose its customary charges therefor. The Trustee may act as manager, sponsor, advisor or depository with 
respect to any Permitted Investment. The Trustee shall incur no liability for losses arising from any 
investments made pursuant to the Indenture. The Authority acknowledges that regulations of the 
Comptroller of the Currency grant the Authority the right to receive brokerage confirmations of security 
transactions to be effected by the Trustee hereunder as they occur. The Authority specifically waives the 
right to receive such confirmation to the extent permitted by applicable law and agrees that it will instead 
receive periodic cash transaction statements which include detail for the investment transactions effected by 
the Trustee under the Indenture; provided, however, that the Authority retains its right to receive brokerage 
confirmation on any investment transaction requested by the Authority. 
 
Covenants of the Authority 

 
Punctual Payment. The Authority shall punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal, interest 

and premium (if any) to become due in respect of all the Bonds and Additional Bonds, in strict conformity 
with the terms of the Bonds, the Additional Bonds, the Indenture and of any Supplemental Indenture, 
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according to the true intent and meaning thereof, but only out of Revenues and other assets pledged for such 
payment as provided in the Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. 

 
Extension of Payment of Bonds. The Authority shall not directly or indirectly extend or assent to 

the extension of the maturity of any of the Bonds or Additional Bonds or the time of payment of any claims 
for interest by the purchase of such Bonds or Additional Bonds or by any other arrangement, and in case the 
maturity of any of the Bonds or Additional Bonds or the time of payment of any such claims for interest 
shall be extended, such Bonds or Additional Bonds or claims for interest shall not be entitled, in case of any 
default under the Indenture, to the benefits of the Indenture, except subject to the prior payment in full of 
the principal of all of the Bonds then Outstanding and of all claims for interest thereon which shall not have 
been so extended. Nothing in the Indenture shall be deemed to limit the right of the Authority to issue 
Additional Bonds for the purpose of refunding any Outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds, and such 
issuance shall not be deemed to constitute an extension of maturity of the Bonds or Additional Bonds. 

 
Against Encumbrances. The Authority shall not create, or permit the creation of, any pledge, lien, 

charge or other encumbrance upon the Revenues and other assets pledged or assigned under the Indenture 
while any of the Bonds or Additional Bonds are Outstanding, except the pledge and assignment created by 
the Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture. Subject to this limitation, the Authority expressly reserves the 
right to enter into one or more other indentures for any of its corporate purposes, including other programs 
under the Bond Law, and reserves the right to issue other obligations for such purposes. 

 
Power to Issue Bonds and Make Pledge and Assignment. The Authority is duly authorized 

pursuant to law to issue the Bonds and Additional Bonds and to enter into the Indenture and to pledge and 
assign the Revenues, the Lease and other assets purported to be pledged and assigned, respectively, under 
the Indenture in the manner and to the extent provided in the Indenture. The Bonds and Additional Bonds 
and the provisions of the Indenture are and will be the legal, valid and binding special obligations of the 
Authority in accordance with their terms, and the Authority and the Trustee (subject to the provisions of the 
Indenture) shall at all times, to the extent permitted by law, defend, preserve and protect said pledge and 
assignment of Revenues and other assets and all the rights of the Bond Owners under the Indenture against 
all claims and demands of all persons whomsoever. 

 
Accounting Records and Financial Statements. The Trustee shall at all times keep, or cause to be 

kept, proper books of record and account, prepared in accordance with corporate trust industry standards, in 
which complete and accurate entries shall be made of all transactions by the Trustee relating to the proceeds 
of Bonds, the Revenues, the Lease and all funds and accounts established pursuant to the Indenture. Such 
books of record and account shall be available for inspection by the Authority, the Bond Insurer and the 
City during regular business hours with reasonable prior notice. 

 
Additional Obligations. The Authority covenants and agrees that it will not issue any other bonds, 

notes or other obligations (other than Additional Bonds), enter into any agreement or otherwise incur any 
indebtedness, which is any case payable, as to either principal or interest, from all or any part of the 
Revenues. 

 
Lease. The Trustee shall receive amounts due from the City pursuant to the Lease with respect to 

the Revenues. The Authority will faithfully comply with, keep, observe and perform all the agreements, 
conditions, covenants and terms contained in the Lease required to be complied with, kept, observed and 
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performed by it and, together with the Trustee, will enforce the Lease against the City in accordance with its 
terms. 

 
So long as any Bond remains Outstanding, the Authority will not alter, amend or modify the Lease 

without the prior written consent of the Trustee, which consent shall be given only (i) if the Trustee first 
obtains the written consent of the Bond Insurer and if the Trustee receives an opinion of counsel selected by 
the Authority that such alteration, amendment or modification will not result in any material impairment of 
the covenants made or the security given or intended to be given for the payment of the Base Rental 
Payments, or (ii) if the Trustee first obtains the written consents of the Bond Insurer and the Owners of at 
least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding to such alteration, amendment 
or modification. 

 
Tax Covenants. The Authority will not use, permit the use of, or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any 

other amounts (or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed 
directly or indirectly with Gross Proceeds) in a manner that if made or omitted, respectively, would cause 
the interest on any of the Bonds to fail to be excluded pursuant to section 103(a) of the Code from the gross 
income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. 

 
Further Assurances. The Authority will adopt, make, execute and deliver any and all such further 

resolutions, instruments and assurances as may be reasonably necessary or proper to carry out the intention 
or to facilitate the performance of the Indenture, and for the better assuring and confirming unto the Owners 
of the Bonds the rights and benefits provided in the Indenture. Furthermore, the Authority shall not enter 
into contracts or take any action by which the rights of the Bond Insurer or security for sources of payment 
of the Bonds may be impaired or prejudiced except upon obtaining the prior written consent of the Bond 
Insurer. 

 
Amendments to the Indenture 

 
The Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Authority and of the Owners of the Bonds may 

be modified or amended at any time by a Supplemental Indenture which shall become binding upon 
adoption, with notice to the Bond Insurer but without consent of any Owner, to the extent permitted by law, 
but only for any one or more of the following purposes: 

 
(1) to issue Additional Bonds in accordance with the Indenture; 
 
(2) to add to the covenants and agreements of the Authority in the Indenture 

contained, other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed, or to limit or surrender any 
rights or powers herein reserved to or conferred upon the Authority so long as such limitation or 
surrender of such rights or powers shall not materially adversely affect the Owners; 

 
(3) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, or of curing, 

correcting or supplementing any defective provision contained in the Indenture, or in any other 
respect whatsoever as the Authority may deem necessary or desirable, provided under any 
circumstances that such modifications or amendments shall not materially adversely affect the 
interests of the Owners in the reasonable judgment of the Authority; 
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(4) for any other purpose that does not materially adversely affect the interests of the 
Owners. 

 
Except as set forth in the preceding paragraphs above, upon the prior written consent of the Bond 

Insurer, the Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Authority and of the Owners may only be 
modified or amended at any time by a Supplemental Indenture which shall become binding when the 
written consent of the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding 
are filed with the Trustee. No such modification or amendment shall (a) extend the maturity of or reduce the 
interest rate on any Bond or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Authority to pay the principal, 
interest or redemption premiums (if any) at the time and place and at the rate and in the currency provided 
therein of any Bond without the express written consent of the Owner, (b) reduce the percentage of Bonds 
required for the written consent to any such amendment or modification, or (c) modify any of the rights or 
obligations of the Trustee without its written consent thereto. 

 
After the effective date of any action taken as hereinabove provided, the Authority may determine 

that the Bonds and Additional Bonds shall bear a notation, by endorsement in form approved by the 
Authority, as to such action, and in that case upon demand of the Owner at such effective date and 
presentation of such Bond for that purpose at the Trust Office of the Trustee, a suitable notation as to such 
action shall be made on such Bond. If the Authority shall so determine, new Bonds and Additional Bonds so 
modified as, in the opinion of the Authority, shall be necessary to conform to such Owners’ action shall be 
prepared and executed, and in that case upon demand of the Owner at such effective date such new Bonds 
and Additional Bonds shall be exchanged at the Trust Office of the Trustee, without cost to each Owner, for 
Bonds and Additional Bonds then Outstanding, upon surrender of such Outstanding Bonds and Additional 
Bonds. 

 
Events of Default and Remedies 

 
Events of Default Defined. The following events are Events of Default under the Indenture: 
 

(a) Default in the due and punctual payment of the principal of or premium on any 
Bond or Additional Bonds when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at 
maturity as therein expressed, or by proceedings for redemption. 
 

(b) Default in the due and punctual payment of any installment of interest on any 
Bond or Additional Bond when and as such interest installment shall become due and payable. 

 
(c) Failure by the Authority to observe and perform any  of the covenants, agreements 

or conditions on its part in the Indenture or in the Bonds or Additional Bonds contained, other than 
as referred to in the preceding clauses (a) and (b), for a period of 30 days after written notice, 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to the Authority by the 
Trustee, or to the Authority and the Trustee by the Owners of not less than 25% in aggregate 
principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds; provided, however, that if in the 
reasonable opinion of the Authority the failure stated in such notice can be corrected, but not within 
such 30-day period, the Trustee and such Owners shall not unreasonably withhold their consent to 
an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by the Authority within such 30-day 
period and diligently pursued until such failure is corrected. 
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(d) The filing by the Authority of a petition or answer seeking reorganization or 

arrangement under the Federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States 
of America, or if a court of competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition, filed with or without 
the consent of the Authority, seeking reorganization under the Federal bankruptcy laws or any 
other applicable law of the United States of America, or if, under the provisions of any other law 
for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control 
of the Authority or of the whole or any substantial part of its property. 
 
Remedies Upon Event of Default; No Acceleration. Subject to the rights of the Bond Insurer, upon 

the occurrence of an Event of Default the Trustee shall have the right: 
 

(a) by mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to enforce 
its rights against the Authority or any member, officer or employee thereof, in order to compel the 
Authority or any such member, officer or employee to perform and carry out its or his or her 
duties under law and the agreements and covenants required to be performed by it or him 
contained in the Indenture; 
 

(b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate the 
rights of the Trustee; or 

 
(c) by suit in equity upon the happening of an Event of Default to require the 

Authority and its members, officers and employees to account as the trustee of an express trust. 
 
If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and if requested to do so by the 

Owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds and 
indemnified as provided in the Indenture, the Trustee shall be obligated to exercise such one or more of the 
rights and powers conferred by the Indenture, as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most 
expedient in the interests of the Owners. 

 
No remedy by the terms of the Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee (or to the 

Owners) is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be 
cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy given to the Trustee or the Owners under the 
Indenture or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. 

 
No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Event of Default shall 

impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver or any such Event of Default or 
acquiescence therein; such right or power may be exercised from time to time as often as may be deemed 
expedient. 

 
The Trustee shall have no right to declare the principal of or interest on the Bonds to be due and 

payable immediately. 
 
Application of Revenues and Other Funds After Default. All amounts received by the Trustee 

pursuant to any right given or action taken by the Trustee under the provisions of the Indenture and any 
funds then held or thereafter received by the Trustee shall be applied by the Trustee in the following order 
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upon presentation of the Bonds and Additional Bonds, and the stamping thereon of the amount of the 
payment if only partially paid, or upon the surrender thereof if fully paid: 

 
First, to the payment of the fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee, including reasonable 

compensation to its agents, attorneys and counsel;  
 
Second, to the payment of the whole amount of interest on and principal of the Bonds and 

Additional Bonds then due and unpaid, with interest on overdue installments of principal and interest to the 
extent permitted by law at the lesser of 12% per annum or the maximum rate permitted by law, provided, 
however, that in the event such amounts shall be insufficient to pay in full the full amount of such interest 
and principal, then such amounts shall be applied to the payment of such principal and interest without 
preference or priority of principal over interest, or interest over principal, or of any installment of interest 
over any other installment of interest, ratably to the aggregate of such principal and interest; and 

 
Third, to the extent not already paid, to the reimbursement of any provider of a Qualified Reserve 

Account Credit Instrument in accordance with the terms thereof. 
 
Power of Trustee to Control Proceedings. Subject to the rights of the Bond Insurer, in the event 

that the Trustee, upon the happening of an Event of Default, shall have taken any action, by judicial 
proceedings or otherwise, pursuant to its duties under the Indenture, whether upon its own discretion or 
upon the request of the Owners of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and 
Additional Bonds then Outstanding, it shall have full power, in the exercise of its discretion for the best 
interests of the Owners of the Bonds and Additional Bonds, with respect to the continuance, discontinuance, 
withdrawal, compromise, settlement or other disposal of such action; provided, however, that the Trustee 
shall not, unless there no longer continues an Event of Default, discontinue, withdraw, compromise or 
settle, or otherwise dispose of any litigation pending at law or in equity, if at the time there has been filed 
with it a written request signed by the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the 
Outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds under the Indenture opposing such discontinuance, withdrawal, 
compromise, settlement or other disposal of such litigation and if the Trustee is indemnified as provided in 
the Indenture. Any suit, action or proceeding which any Owner shall have the right to bring to enforce any 
right or remedy under the Indenture may be brought by the Trustee for the equal benefit and protection of 
all Owners similarly situated and the Trustee is hereby appointed (and the successive respective Owners 
issued under the Indenture by taking and holding the same, shall be conclusively deemed so to have 
appointed it) the true and lawful attorney-in-fact of the respective Owners for the purpose of bringing any 
such suit, action or proceeding and to do and perform any and all acts and things for and on behalf of the 
respective Owners as a class or classes, as may be necessary or advisable in the opinion of the Trustee as 
such attorney-in-fact. 

 
Appointment of Receivers. Subject to the rights of the Bond Insurer, upon the occurrence of an 

Event of Default under the Indenture, and upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial 
proceedings to enforce the rights of the Trustee and of the Owners under the Indenture, the Trustee shall be 
entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the Revenues and other 
amounts pledged under the Indenture, pending such proceedings, with such powers as the court making 
such appointment shall confer. 

 
Non-Waiver. A waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Trustee or any Owners 

shall not affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract, or impair any rights or remedies on any 
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such subsequent default or breach. No delay or omission of the Trustee or any Owner of any of the Bonds to 
exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be 
construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy 
conferred upon the Trustee or Owners by the Bond Law or by the Indenture may be enforced and exercised 
from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the Trustee or the Owners, as the case may 
be. 

 
Rights of Owners. Subject to the rights of the Bond Insurer, no Owner shall have the right to 

institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity, for any remedy under or upon the Indenture, 
unless (a) such Owner shall have previously given to the Trustee written notice of the occurrence of an 
Event of Default; (b) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all the Bonds and 
Additional Bonds then Outstanding shall have made written request upon the Trustee to exercise the powers 
hereinbefore granted or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name; (c) said Owners shall 
have tendered to the Trustee indemnity reasonably acceptable to the Trustee against the costs, expenses and 
liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; and (d) the Trustee shall have refused or omitted 
to comply with such request for a period of 60 days after such written request shall have been received by, 
and said tender of indemnity shall have been made to, the Trustee. 

 
Such notification, request, tender of indemnity and refusal or omission are declared, in every case, 

to be conditions precedent to the exercise by any Owner of Bonds of any remedy under the Indenture; it 
being understood and intended that no one or more Owners of Bonds shall have any right in any manner 
whatever by his or their action to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner provided in 
the Indenture, and that all proceedings at law or in equity to enforce any provision of the Indenture shall be 
instituted, had and maintained in the manner herein provided and for the equal benefit of all Owners. 

 
The right of any Owner of any Bond to receive payment of the principal of and interest and 

premium (if any) on such Bond as provided in the Indenture or to institute suit for the enforcement of any 
such payment, shall not be impaired or affected without the written consent of such Owner, notwithstanding 
the foregoing provisions of the Indenture or any other provision of the Indenture. 

 
Discharge of the Indenture 

 
Subject to the Indenture, and so long as all amounts due or to become due to the Bond Insurer have 

been paid in full or duly provided for, if the Authority shall pay and discharge any or all of the Outstanding 
Bonds of a Series in any one or more of the following ways: 

 
(a) by well and truly paying or causing to be paid the principal of and interest and 

premiums (if any) on such Bonds of a Series, as and when the same become due and payable; 
 
(b) by irrevocably depositing with the Trustee, in trust, at or before maturity, money 

which, together with the available amounts then on deposit in the funds and accounts established 
with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, is fully sufficient to pay such Bonds of a Series, 
including all principal, interest and redemption premiums (if any); or 
 

(c) by irrevocably depositing with the Trustee or any other fiduciary, in trust 
pursuant to an escrow deposit agreement (which shall be acceptable in form and substance to the 
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Bond Insurer), Federal Securities in such amount as an Independent Certified Public Accountant 
shall determine in a written report acceptable in form and substance, and addressed, to the 
Authority, the Trustee and the Bond Insurer, filed with the Trustee (upon which report the Trustee 
may conclusively rely) will, together with the interest to accrue thereon and available moneys then 
on deposit in the funds and accounts established with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, be fully 
sufficient to pay and discharge the indebtedness on such Bonds of a Series (including all principal, 
interest and redemption premiums) at or before their respective maturity dates; 
 
and delivering an opinion of Bond Counsel acceptable in form and substance, and addressed, to the 

Authority, the Trustee and the Bond Insurer to the effect that the Bonds are no longer Outstanding under the 
Indenture, and if such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof notice of such redemption 
shall have been mailed pursuant to the Indenture or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been 
made for the mailing of such notice, then, at the Request of the Authority, and notwithstanding that any of 
such Bonds shall not have been surrendered for payment, the pledge of the Revenues and other funds 
provided for in the Indenture with respect to such Bonds, and all other pecuniary obligations of the 
Authority under the Indenture with respect to all such Bonds, shall cease and terminate, except only the 
obligation of the Authority to pay or cause to be paid to the Owners not so surrendered and paid all sums 
due thereon from amounts set aside for such purpose as aforesaid, and all amounts due the Trustee. Any 
funds held by the Trustee following any payment or discharge of the Outstanding Bonds of a Series 
pursuant to the Indenture, which are not required for said purposes, shall after payment of amounts due the 
Trustee under the Indenture be paid over to the Authority. 

 
Removal of Trustee 

 
The Trustee may be removed at any time by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, 

filed with the Trustee and signed by the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the 
Outstanding Bonds. The Authority or the Bond Insurer may also remove the Trustee at any time upon 30 
days notice, except during the existence of an Event of Default. The Trustee may be removed at any time 
for any breach of the Trustee’s duties set forth herein. 

 
 

THE LEASE 
 

Term 
 
The Authority leases to the City and the City leases from the Authority, on the terms and conditions 

set forth in the Lease, the Leased Property. 
 
The term of the Lease shall commence on the later of April __, 2007, or the date on which the 

Lease is filed of record in the Official Records of San Luis Obispo County. The Lease shall constitute a 
sublease of the Authority’s leasehold interest in the Leased Property arising under the Site Lease. 

 
The Lease shall end on December 1, 2024, unless such term is sooner terminated or is extended as 

provided in the Lease. If on December 1, 2024, the Indenture shall not be discharged by its terms or if the 
rental payable thereunder shall have been abated at any time and for any reason, then the term of the Lease 
shall be extended until ten (10) days after all Bonds shall be fully paid. If prior to December 1, 2024, the 
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Indenture shall be discharged by its terms, the term of the Lease shall thereupon end. The Lease will 
terminate upon the earlier of either of the following events: (a) a default by the City and the Authority’s 
election to terminate the Lease pursuant to the provisions of the Lease; or (b) the payment by the City of all 
Base Rental Payments, Additional Rental and all other amounts authorized or required to be paid by it 
under the Lease. 

 
Throughout the term of the Lease, title to the Leased Property shall remain in the City. 
 

Rental 
 
Subject to the provisions of the Lease, the City agrees to pay to the Authority, its successors or 

assigns, as rental for the use and possession of the Leased Property, the following amounts at the following 
times: 

 
Base Rental. The City shall pay to the Authority as base rental Base Rental Payments with interest 

and principal components in accordance with the Base Rental Payment Schedule set forth in Exhibit B 
attached to the Lease. Base Rental Payments shall be made by the City on each Lease Payment Date, which 
shall be sufficient in both time and amount to pay when due the principal of the Bonds, as set forth in 
Exhibit B thereto, as such Exhibit B may be amended and supplemented from time to time. The interest 
components of the Base Rental Payments payable by the City under the Lease shall be paid by the City as 
and shall constitute interest paid on the principal components of the Base Rental Payments payable by the 
City thereunder. Payment of Base Rental Payments and Additional Rental for each rental payment period 
during the term of the Lease shall constitute the total rental for such rental payment period, and shall be paid 
by the City in each rental payment period for and in consideration of the right to the use and occupancy, and 
the continued quiet enjoyment, of the Leased Property during the rental payment period for which such 
rental is paid. 

 
If the term of the Lease shall have been extended, Base Rental Payments shall continue to be due 

on Lease Payment Dates, and payable as described in the Lease, continuing to and including the date of 
termination of the Lease. Upon such extension of the Lease, the principal and interest components of the 
Base Rental Payments shall be established so that the principal components will in the aggregate be 
sufficient to pay all unpaid principal components with interest components sufficient to pay all unpaid 
interest components plus interest on the extended principal components at a rate equal to the rate of interest 
on the principal component of the Base Rental Payments payable on December 1 of the year after the date 
of such extension. 

 
The parties have agreed and determined that the Base Rental Payments shown in the Base Rental 

Payment Schedule represent the fair market value of the Leased Property. In making such determination, 
consideration has been given to the costs of the Leased Property, the fair market value thereof, the other 
obligations of the parties, the uses and purposes which may be served by the Leased Property and the 
benefits therefrom which will accrue to the City, its residents and the general public. 

 
The City covenants that it shall not permit an increase in the Base Rental Payments without first 

obtaining an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that the resulting aggregate Base 
Rental Payments are not greater than the fair rental value of the Leased Property, and that the increase in the 
Base Rental Payments will not impair the validity and enforceability of the Lease or impair the exclusion of 
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interest on bonds payable from Base Rental Payments from the gross income of the owners thereof for 
federal income tax purposes. 

 
Additional Rental. The City shall pay to the Authority as Additional Rental under the Lease such 

amounts in each year as shall be required by the Authority for the payment in full of all costs and expenses 
incurred by the Authority, and the Trustee in connection with the execution, performance or enforcement 
thereof or any assignment thereof, of the Indenture and of the lease of the Leased Property to the City, 
including but not limited to payment of all fees, costs and expenses and all administrative costs of the 
Authority, amounts paid or to be paid by the Authority to the Bond Insurer relating to the Bond Insurance or 
the Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument, and the Trustee in connection with the Leased Property, 
the Lease, and the Indenture and all taxes, assessments and governmental charges of any nature whatsoever 
levied or imposed by any governmental authority against the Authority, the Leased Property, or the rentals 
and the other payments required to be made by the City under the Lease.  Such Additional Rental shall be 
billed to the City by the Authority or the Trustee from time to time, together with a statement certifying that 
the amount so billed has been paid by the Authority or the Trustee for one or more of the items above 
described, or that such amount is then payable by the Authority or the Trustee for one or more of such 
items, and all amounts so billed shall be due and payable by the City within thirty (30) days after receipt of 
each bill therefor by the City. 

 
Annual Budgets; Reporting Requirements 

 
The City covenants to take action as may be necessary to include all such rental payments due 

under the Lease in its annual budgets and to make the necessary annual appropriations for all such rental 
payments. For this budgetary purpose, the City shall furnish to the Trustee at least 15 days before final 
adoption of the proposed budget for each Fiscal Year a certificate stating that it has included in the proposed 
budget all Base Rental Payments and Additional Rental due under the Lease in the Fiscal Year covered by 
such proposed budget and following adoption of the final budget a certificate stating that the Base Rental 
Payments and Additional Rental was included in the final budget as adopted. The City shall file with the 
Trustee the certificate regarding adoption of the final budget by July 1 of each year unless the City is 
permitted by applicable law to adopt its final budget after such date, and has in fact not adopted its final 
budget by July 1, in which event, the City will file with the Trustee by July 1 a certificate stating the 
specified later date by which the City may adopt its final budget under applicable law and will file with the 
Trustee by such specified later date such certificate following such adoption. 

 
To the extent that the amount of any such payment becomes known after the adoption of the annual 

budget, such amounts shall be included and maintained in such budget as amended. The City covenants to 
take such action as is necessary to include such amounts in a supplemental budget of the City. The 
covenants on the part of the City contained in the Lease shall be deemed to be and shall be construed to be 
ministerial duties imposed by law and it shall be the ministerial duty of each and every public official of the 
City to take such action and do such things as are required by law in the performance of the official duty of 
such officials to enable the City to carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in the Lease agreed 
to be carried out and performed by the City. 

 
The obligation of the City to pay Base Rental Payments and Additional Rental shall constitute a 

current expense of the City and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt of the City, or the State, or 
any political subdivision thereof, in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or 
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requirements concerning the creation of indebtedness by the City, the State, or any political subdivision 
thereof, nor shall anything contained in the Lease constitute a pledge of general revenues, funds or 
moneys of the City beyond the Fiscal Year for which the City has appropriated funds to pay Base Rental 
Payments and Additional Rental thereunder or an obligation of the City for which the City is obligated to 
levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which the City has levied or pledged any form of taxation. 

 
Maintenance and Use of the Leased Property 

 
The City agrees that, at all times during the term of the Lease, it will, at its own cost and expense, 

maintain, preserve and keep the Leased Property and every portion thereof in good repair, working order 
and condition and that it will from time to time make or cause to be made all necessary and proper repairs, 
replacements and renewals. The Authority shall have no responsibility in any of these matters or for the 
making of additions or improvements to the Leased Property. The parties hereto contemplate that the 
Leased Property will be used primarily for public purposes by the City and, therefore, that the Leased 
Property will be generally exempt from all taxes presently assessed and levied with respect to real and 
personal property. In the event that the use, possession or acquisition by the City or the Authority of the 
Leased Property is found to be subject to taxation in any form, the City will pay during the term of the 
Lease, as the same respectively become due, all taxes and governmental charges of any kind whatsoever 
that may at any time be lawfully assessed or levied against or with respect to the Leased Property and any 
other property acquired by the City in substitution for, as a renewal or replacement of, or a modification, 
improvement or addition to the Leased Property, as well as all gas, water, steam, electricity, heat, power, air 
conditioning, telephone, utility and other charges incurred in the operation, maintenance, use, occupancy 
and upkeep of the Leased Property; provided, that with respect to any governmental charges or taxes that 
may lawfully be paid in installments over a period of years, the City shall be obligated to pay only such 
installments as are accrued during such time as the Lease is in effect. 

 
The City and the Authority will not create or suffer to be created any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge 

or encumbrance upon the Leased Property, except Permitted Encumbrances. The City and the Authority 
will not sell or otherwise dispose of the Leased Property or any property essential to the proper operation of 
the Leased Property, except as otherwise provided herein. The City shall have the ability to sublease any 
portion of the Leased Property. 

 
Substitution and Changes to the Leased Property 

 
The City, with the consent of the Bond Insurer, may amend the Lease to substitute additional real 

property and/or improvements (the “Substituted Property”) for existing Leased Property, or to remove real 
property or improvements from the definition of Leased Property, upon compliance with all of the 
conditions set forth in the Lease. After a Release, Substitution or Removal, the part of the Leased Property 
for which the Release, Substitution or Removal has been effected shall be released from the leasehold 
hereunder and all right, title and interest in and to such Leased Property shall vest in the City. In connection 
with such release of part of the Leased Property, the Authority shall execute such conveyances, deeds, and 
other documents, and shall take or cause to be taken all actions that are necessary to provide that such 
released Leased Property constitutes a valid legal parcel, the ownership of which is recordable in the real 
property records of the County of Los Angeles for which a title insurance policy may be legally obtained, as 
may be necessary to effect such vesting of record. 
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Except as set forth in the Lease, no Substitution or Removal shall take place until the City delivers 
to the Authority and the Trustee certain items, including (i) a Certificate of the City containing, in the event 
of a Removal, a description of all or part of the Leased Property to be released and, in the event of a 
Substitution, a description of the Substituted Property to be substituted in its place and a certification that 
the remaining useful life of the Substituted Property is not less than the remaining term of the Lease; (ii) a 
Certificate of the City stating that the fair rental value of the Leased Property after a Substitution or 
Removal, in each year during the remaining term of this Lease is at least equal to the Base Rental Payments 
in each such year attributable to the Leased Property prior to said Substitution or Removal, as determined 
by the City on the basis of an appraisal of the Leased Property (taking into account such Substitution or 
Removal) performed by a qualified, independent consultant; (iii) an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that 
the amendments hereto contemplating Substitution or Removal have been duly authorized, executed and 
delivered and constitute the valid and binding obligations of the City and the Authority enforceable in 
accordance with their terms; (iv) in the event of a Substitution, a policy of title insurance in an amount 
sufficient to maintain compliance with the Lease, insuring the City’s leasehold interest in the Substituted 
Property (except any portion thereof which is not real property) subject to Permitted Encumbrances, 
together with an endorsement thereto making said policy payable to the Trustee for the benefit of the 
Owners of the Bonds; and (v) an Opinion of Counsel that the Substitution or Removal does not cause the 
interest on the Bonds to fail to be excluded from the gross income of the Owners thereof for federal income 
tax purposes. 

 
Subject to the Lease, the City shall, at its own expense, have the right to remodel the Leased 

Property or to make additions, modifications and improvements to the Leased Property. All such additions, 
modifications and improvements shall thereafter comprise part of the Leased Property and be subject to the 
provisions of the Lease. Such additions, modifications and improvements shall not in any way damage the 
Leased Property or cause it to be used for purposes other than those authorized under the provisions of state 
and federal law; and the Leased Property, upon completion of any additions, modifications and 
improvements made pursuant to this Section, shall be of a value which is at least equal to the value of the 
Leased Property immediately prior to the making of such additions, modifications and improvements. 

 
Insurance 

 
The City shall procure or cause to be procured and maintain or cause to be maintained through the 

term hereof for the Leased Property insurance against the following risks in the following respective 
amounts: 

 
(1) insurance against loss or damage to the Leased Property caused by fire or lightning, with 

an extended coverage endorsement and vandalism and malicious mischief insurance, and such other perils 
as the City may determine should be insured against and as are normally covered by such insurance. The 
insurance required by this paragraph shall be in an amount equal to the replacement cost (subject to 
deductible clauses not in excess of $400,000 for any one loss) of improvements located or to be located 
on the Leased Property but shall be not less than the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds (except 
that such insurance may be subject to deductible clauses of not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the amount 
of any one loss); 

 
(2) rental interruption insurance against the Authority’s loss of income due to events giving 

rise to the right of abatement on the part of the City under this Lease in an amount sufficient to pay the 
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total Base Rental Payments attributable to the Leased Property for a 24 month period (measured by the 
Base Rental Payments for the 24 months following the month in which the insurance commences; 
provided, that the amount of such insurance need not exceed the total remaining Base Rental Payments 
attributable to the Leased Property; 

 
(3) workers’ compensation insurance covering all employees working in or on the Leased 

Property, in the same amount and type as other workers’ compensation insurance maintained by the City 
for similar employees doing similar work; and the City shall also require any other person or entity 
working in or on the Leased Property to carry the foregoing amount of workers’ compensation insurance; 

 
(4) a standard comprehensive public entity liability insurance policy or policies in protection 

of the City, the Authority, and their respective directors, officers and employees and the Trustee, 
indemnifying and defending such parties against all direct or contingent loss or liability for damages for 
personal injury, death or property damage occasioned by reason of the possession, operation or use of the 
Leased Property.   Such public liability and property damage insurance shall be in the form of a single 
limit policy in the amount of not less than three million dollars ($3,000,000), subject to a deductible 
clause of not to exceed $400,000, covering all such risks; and 

(5) a CLTA standard coverage leasehold policy of title insurance issued by a company of 
recognized standing duly authorized to issue the same on any Substituted Property, in an amount at least 
equal to the aggregate principal amount of unpaid Base Rental Payments. The title policy or policies shall 
insure the City’s leasehold estate hereunder with respect to such Leased Property, subject only to 
Permitted Encumbrances. 

 
Insurance coverage required by paragraphs (1), (2), (3) and (4) may be maintained as part of or in 

conjunction with any other insurance coverage carried by the City, and may be maintained in whole or in 
part in the form of insurance maintained through a joint exercise of powers agency created for such purpose 
or other program providing pooled insurance. 

 
Notwithstanding the above provisions, as an alternative to providing the insurance required by 

paragraphs (1), (2) and (4) above, the City may provide a self-insurance method or plan of protection. Any 
such self-insurance maintained by the City pursuant to the foregoing sections, shall be similar in nature and 
scope to self-insurance programs maintained by other California cities of comparable size and operations, 
and shall be reviewed annually by an Insurance Consultant. 

 
The City is not required to maintain or cause to be maintained any insurance which is not available 

from reputable insurers on the open market or more insurance than is specifically required under this Lease. 
 
Any fire and extended coverage insurance policy issued shall be so written or endorsed as to make 

losses, if any, payable to the City, the Authority, and the Trustee as their respective interests may appear 
and the net proceeds of such insurance shall be applied as provided in the Lease. The net proceeds, if any, of 
rental interruption insurance shall be payable to the Trustee and deposited in the Lease Revenue Fund. Each 
insurance policy shall contain a provision to the effect that the insurance company shall not cancel the 
policy or modify it materially and adversely to the interests of the Authority or the Trustee without first 
giving written notice thereof to the Authority and the Trustee at least sixty (60) days in advance of such 
intended cancellation or modification; provided, that the Trustee shall not be responsible for the sufficiency 



 

A-27 

of any insurance herein required and shall be fully protected in accepting payment on account of such 
insurance or any adjustments, compromise or settlement of any loss agreed to by it. 

 
Damage, Destruction and Condemnation; Application of Net Proceeds 

 
If prior to the termination of the term hereof (a) the Leased Property or any portion thereof is 

destroyed (in whole or in part) or is damaged by fire or other casualty; or (b) title to, or the temporary use 
of, the Leased Property or any portion thereof or the estate of the City or the Authority in the Leased 
Property or any portion thereof is defective or shall be taken under the exercise of the power of eminent 
domain by any governmental body or by any person or firm or corporation acting under governmental 
authority, then the City shall, as expeditiously as possible, continuously and diligently cause the repair or 
replacement thereof (unless the City elects not to repair or replace), and the City and the Authority will 
cause the Net Proceeds remaining after such work has been completed to be paid to the City; provided, that 
the City, at its option and provided the Net Proceeds together with any other moneys then available for the 
purpose are at least sufficient to prepay the aggregate annual amounts of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds attributable to the portion of the Leased Property so destroyed, damaged, defective or condemned 
(determined by reference to the proportion which the fair rental value of the entire Leased Property bears to 
the fair rental value of the remaining portion of the Leased Property, and such that the fair rental value of 
the remaining portion of the Leased Property is sufficient to pay the Principal Components and Interest 
Components), may elect not to repair, reconstruct or replace the damaged, destroyed, defective or 
condemned portion of the Leased Property and thereupon shall cause said Net Proceeds to be used for the 
redemption of Outstanding Bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture. 

 
Default 

 
The following events shall be events of default under this Lease: 
 
(a)        the City shall fail to pay any item of Additional Rental as and when the same shall become 

due and payable pursuant to the Lease; or 
 
(b) the City shall fail to deposit with the Trustee any Base Rental Payment required 

to be so deposited by the close of business on the day such deposit is required pursuant to the 
Lease, provided, that failure to pay any Base Rental Payments abated shall not constitute an event 
of default; 

 
(c) the City shall breach any other terms, covenants or conditions contained herein, 

and shall fail to remedy any such breach with all reasonable dispatch within a period of thirty (30) 
days after written notice thereof from the Authority or the Trustee to the City; provided, however, 
that if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within such period, then the Authority 
shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is 
instituted by the City within such period and is diligently pursued until the default is corrected. 

 
In addition to any default resulting from breach by the City of any agreement, condition, covenant 

or term of the Lease, if (1) the City’s interest in the Lease or any part thereof be assigned, sublet or 
transferred without the written consent of the Authority, either voluntarily or by operation of law; or (2) the 
City or any assignee shall file any petition or institute any proceedings under any act or acts, state or federal, 
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dealing with or relating to the subject of bankruptcy or insolvency or under any amendment of such act or 
acts, either as a bankrupt or as an insolvent or as a debtor or in any similar capacity, wherein or whereby the 
City asks or seeks or prays to be adjudicated a bankrupt, or is to be discharged from any or all of its debts or 
obligations, or offers to its creditors to effect a composition or extension of time to pay its debts, or asks, 
seeks or prays for a reorganization or to effect a plan of reorganization or for a readjustment of its debts or 
for any other similar relief, or if the City shall make a general or any assignment for the benefit of its 
creditors; or (3) the City shall abandon or vacate the Leased Property or any portion thereof; then in each 
and every such case the City shall be deemed to be in default hereunder. 

 
Upon the happening of any of the events specified in subsection (a) or (b) above (in either case an 

“Event of Default”), then it shall be lawful for the Authority to exercise any and all remedies available or 
granted to it pursuant to law or hereunder. Upon the breach of any agreement, condition, covenant or 
term contained herein required to be observed or performed by the City, the Authority may exercise any and 
all rights of entry upon or repossession of the Leased Property, and also, at its option, with or without such 
entry, may terminate this Lease; provided, that no termination shall be effected either by operation of law 
or acts of the parties hereto except upon express written notice from the Authority to the City terminating 
the Lease, as provided below. In the event of such default and notwithstanding any entry by the Authority, 
the Authority may at any time thereafter (with or without notice and demand and without limiting any other 
rights or remedies the Authority may have): 

 
(1)  Maintain this Lease in full force and effect and recover rent and other monetary charges as 

they become due without terminating the City’s right to possession of the Leased Property, regardless of 
whether or not the City has abandoned the Leased Property. In the event the Authority elects not to 
terminate this Lease, it shall have the right and the City irrevocably appoints the Authority as its agent and 
attorney-in-fact for such purpose to attempt to relet the Lease Property at such rent, upon such conditions 
and for such term, so long as the Trustee is furnished an Opinion of Counsel that the tax-exempt status of 
the interest components of Base Rental Payments will be preserved, and to do all other acts to maintain or 
preserve the Leased Property, including removal of persons or property therefrom or taking possession 
thereof, as the Authority deems desirable or necessary, and the City hereby waives any and all claims for 
any damages that may result to the Leased Property thereby; provided, that no such actions shall be deemed 
to terminate this Lease and the City shall continue to remain liable for any deficiency that may arise out of 
such reletting, taking into account expenses incurred by the Authority due to such reletting, payable at the 
same time and manner as provided for Base Rental Payments. 

 
(2)  Terminate the City’s right to possession of the Leased Property by giving a written notice 

of termination to the City. On the date specified in such notice (which shall be not less than three (3) days 
after the giving of such notice) the City’s right to possession under this Lease shall terminate and the City 
shall surrender possession of the Leased Property, as the case may be, to the Authority, unless on or before 
such date all arrears of rental and all other sums payable by the City under the Lease, and all costs and 
expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Authority thereunder, including attorney’s fees incurred in 
connection with such defaults, shall have been paid by the City and all other defaults or breaches thereunder 
by the City at the time existing shall have been fully remedied to the satisfaction of the Authority. Upon 
such termination, the Authority may recover, in addition to all other damages available by contract or at 
law, to the extent permitted by law, from the City: (i) the worth at the time of award of the unpaid rental 
which had been earned at the time of termination; and (ii) the worth at the time of award of the amount by 
which the unpaid rental which would have been earned after termination until the time of award exceeds the 
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amount of such rental loss that the City proves could have been reasonably avoided. The “worth at the time 
of award” of the amounts referred to in clauses (i) and (ii) above is computed by allowing interest at the rate 
of twelve per cent (12%) per annum. 

 
Without otherwise limiting any of the rights or remedies of the Authority set forth herein, the 

Authority expressly waives the right to receive any amount from the City pursuant to Section 1951.2(a)(3) 
of the California Civil Code. 

 
Each and all of the remedies given to the Authority under the Lease or by any law now existing or 

hereafter enacted are cumulative and the exercise of any one remedy shall not impair the right of the 
Authority to any or all other remedies. 

 
Neither the City nor the Authority shall be in default in the performance of any of its obligations 

under the Lease (except for the obligation to pay Base Rental Payments and Additional Rental) unless and 
until it shall have failed to perform such obligation within thirty (30) day after notice by the City or the 
Authority, as the case may be, to the other party properly specifying wherein it has failed to perform such 
obligation. 

 
Prepayment 

 
Prepayment from Net Proceeds. The City may prepay, from Net Proceeds received by it pursuant 

to the Lease, all or any portion of the components of Base Rental Payments relating to any portion of the 
Leased Property then unpaid, in whole or in part on any date in Authorized Denominations. 

 
Optional Prepayment. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Lease, the Authority hereby grants 

an option to the City to prepay in whole or in part the principal components of Base Rental Payments 
relating to the Leased Property, to the extent, on the dates and at the redemption prices provided in the 
Indenture. The City shall execute said option by giving written notice to the Trustee thereof at least 45 days 
(or such shorter period acceptable to the Trustee) prior to the date of redemption of Bonds from such 
prepayment and by depositing prior to the date of redemption cash in the minimum amount of (1) accrued 
interest on the principal component of Base Rental Payments to be prepaid to the date of redemption of 
Bonds with the proceeds of such prepayment, plus (2) the principal component of any Base Rental 
Payments to be prepaid, plus (3) the applicable redemption premium (if any) described in the Indenture. 

 
Liens 

 
In the event the City shall at any time during the term of the Lease cause any improvements to the 

Leased Property to be constructed or materials to be supplied in or upon or attached to the Leased Property, 
the City shall pay or cause to be paid when due all sums of money that may become due or purporting to be 
due for any labor, services, materials, supplies or equipment furnished or alleged to have been furnished to 
or for the City in, upon, about or relating to the Leased Property and shall keep the Leased Property free of 
any and all liens (except for Permitted Encumbrances) against the Leased Property or the Authority’s 
interest therein. In the event any such lien attaches to the Leased Property, the City shall cause such lien to 
be fully discharged and released at the time the performance of any obligation secured by any such lien 
matures or becomes due. If any such lien shall be reduced to final judgment and such judgment or any 
process as may be issued for the enforcement thereof is not promptly stayed, or if so stayed and such stay 
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thereafter expires, the City shall forthwith pay and discharge or cause to be paid and discharged such 
judgment. The City shall, to the maximum extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold the Authority, the 
Trustee, and their respective directors, officers and employees harmless from, and defend each of them 
against, any claim, demand, loss, damage, liability or expense (including attorneys’ fees) as a result of any 
such lien or claim of lien against the Leased Property or the Authority’s interest therein. 

 
Quiet Enjoyment 

 
The parties hereto mutually covenant that the City, so long as it keeps and performs the covenants 

and agreements contained in the Lease, shall at all times during the term of the Lease peaceably and quietly 
have, hold and enjoy the Leased Property without suit, trouble or hindrance from the Authority. 

 
Assignment 

 
The parties understand that certain of the rights of the Authority, as assignee under the Lease, will 

be assigned to the Trustee pursuant to the Assignment Agreement, and accordingly the City agrees to make 
all payments due thereunder to the Trustee, notwithstanding any claim, defense, setoff or counterclaim 
whatsoever (whether arising from a breach thereof or otherwise) that the City may from time to time have 
against the Authority or the Trustee. The City agrees to execute all documents, including notices of 
assignment and chattel mortgages or financing statements which may be reasonably requested by the 
Authority or the Trustee to protect their interests in the Leased Property during the term of the Lease. 

 
Abatement of Rental 

 
Except to the extent (i) amounts held by the Trustee in the Lease Revenue Fund, (ii) amounts 

received in respect of rental interruption insurance, and (iii) amounts, if any, otherwise legally available to 
the Trustee for payments in respect of the Bonds, during any period in which, by reason of material damage, 
destruction, title defect or condemnation there is substantial interference with the use and possession by the 
City of any portion of the Leased Property, rental payments due under the Lease with respect to such 
portion of the Leased Property shall be abated proportionately by an amount such that the portion of Base 
Rental Payments remaining unabated represents the fair rental value of the remaining portion of the Leased 
Property, as calculated by the City and set forth in writing to the Authority and the Trustee. Any such 
abatement of rental payments shall not be considered an event of default. The City waives the benefits of 
Civil Code Sections 1932(1), 1932(2) and 1933(4) and any and all other rights to terminate the Lease by 
virtue of any such interference and the Lease shall continue in full force and effect.    Such abatement shall 
continue for the period commencing with the date of such damage, destruction, title defect or condemnation 
and ending with the substantial completion of the work of repair or replacement of the portions of the 
Leased Property so damaged, destroyed, defective or condemned. 

 
In the event that rental is abated, in whole or in part, due to damage, destruction, title defect or 

condemnation of any part of the Leased Property and the City is unable to repair, replace or rebuild the 
Leased Property from the proceeds of insurance, if any, the City agrees to apply for and obtain, if 
reasonably available, any appropriate state and/or federal disaster relief in order to obtain funds to repair, 
replace or rebuild the Leased Property. 
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APPENDIX B 
 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE CITY 
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2006 
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Administrative Services Department
760 Mattie Road
Pismo Beach CA 93449
Ph 805 773 4655 Fax 805 773 7065

October20 2006

To the Honorable Mayor Members of
the City Council and Citizens of the City
of Pismo Beach

The City follows a policy of preparing a complete set of financial statements in conformity with U S generallyaccepted accounting principles after the endof each fiscal year This report is pubHshed to fulfi that policyfor the fiscal year ended June 30 2006

Management ofthe City ofPismo Beach assumes full responsibility for the completenessand reHabUity of the
informatton contained in this report based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controIihat the Cityhas established for this purpose Because thecostof intemalcontrol should notexceed anticipated benefits
theobjective is toprovide reasonable ratherthan absolute assurance that theCitys financiallIrnenls arefree of material misstatements

The firm ofTerry E Krieg Certified PublicAccountant has issued an unqualified independentauditors reporton the City of Pismo Beach s financial statements for the fiscal yearended June 3D 2006 The independentauditors report is located at the front ofthe financial section of this report

Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis MDA immediately follows the independent auditors report and
provides a narrative introduction overview and analysis of the basic financial statements The MDA
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it

PROFILE OF THE CITY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The City of Pismo Beachwas incorporated 1946 The City is located on the Central Coastof Califomia about200 milesnorth of LosAngeles The city is visitedannually by a substantial numberof touristsseeking to enjoythe area s moderate climate ocean views and sunsets finerestaurants and the relaxing atmosphere uniquato coastal communities The Citys downtown core area and hotel areas areanchored by the City owned Pier
extending into the PacifIC Ocean The City is home to about 8 700 individuais and most of the City is
residential with a continuing trend of new homes being built with spectacular ocean views

TheCity operates undera councilmanager form of govemment Policy making and Iegislalive authority are
vested in the City Council consisting of the Mayor and four other elected Council members The Council is
responsible among other matters for passing ordinances adopting the City budget appointing committeesand hiring the City Manager The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances ofthe City Council for overseeing the daily operations of the City and for appointing other employees and
otherwise managingdaily operations ofthe City TheCouncil is elected tofouryear staggered terms with twomembers elected every two years
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The City provides a full range of municipal services including fire and police protection construction and

maintenance ofCity streets sloI1n drains bridges and similar infrastructure type assets park maintenance

community recreation activities and public facHities In terms of business type activities the City provides
water wastewater pier and transit services through the operation of its utility enterprises The City s

redevelopment agency and public financing authority are blended component units and are reported in this

report as partof the Citys operations

The City s annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Pismo Beachs financial planning and

control system Alldepartmentsof theCity submit requests for appropriations tothe City Manager each year
The Manager uses these requests as a starting point for developing a proposed budget The Manager
presents a proposed budget totheCity Council each year The CouncHholds public hearings on theproposed
budget and then ultimately adopts a formal budget The budget is adopted by fund function department and

object The CouncH periodically reviews during the fiscal year the Citys actual financial activity in relationship
to the original budget and as necessary amends the original budget to refIecl changing conditions

The general fund s comparison a major governmental type fund under the new reporting standards is

presented as required supplementary information in a separate section of this report immediately following
the notes to the financial statements For the Citys other govemmentaltype funds a budget to actual

comparison schedule is presented as optional Information in the section of this report containing combining
financial statements and individual fund schedules

Local Economy

About 74 percent of theCity s general fund revenues come from the local hotel tax sales tax revenues and

local property taxes In fiscal 2006 tax revenues increased by about 870 000 despite slate mandated

revenue shifts The hotel tax was strong and increased about 374 400 or about76 percent in fiscal 2006

The City expects that hotel tax and sales tax revenues will not grow significantly in the 2007 fiscal year but

we do expect that these revenues wiH remain stable with modest growth The City plans to monitor closely
these revenue sources in 2007 given recent economic and national events in order to evaluate the v1abHity
of the Citys 2007 financial plan

Long Tenn Financial Planning

The City in fiscal year2006 expects the local economy toremain stablewith no significant drop offs in major
City revenue sources

The City has identified some 25 million in capitalprojects to be completed by the year 201 O These include

about 12 million for the wastewater system improvements already in progress and about 6mHtion for the
Dinosaurs Caves Bluff Stabilization an open space project 36 million in street improvements and 64

million in parks andother improvements While thegeneral fundended fiscal 2006 with abouta 6 18 million

fund balance the City believes that someofthis can be used for Mure capital improvements There was also

about 4 17 million available in the City s impact fee funds with most of this restricted for street

improvements While some financial resources are currently available to meet the City s long range needs

the City will need to evaluate Its capital and infrastructure improvement needs and may find it necessary to

obtain long term debt financing to be able to complete the planned projects
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Major Initiatives

The State Budget situation was such in fiscal 2006 that the City did experience a reduction in property tax
revenues as a result of mandated State reductions However this was offset by growth in our property tax
revenues There were additional reductions to our local sales tax and motor vehicle in lieu fee revenues in
fiscal 2006 However these reductions were also offset by State mandated sales tax in lieu payments and
motor vehicle in lieu payments There was no overall adverse impact as a result of these State mandated
reductions and offsets However the extent to which they may affect the2007 fiscal year is of concern to the
City and will be monitored closely as part of the budget review process

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association GFOA awarded a Certificate ofAchievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting to theCity of Pismo Beach for its comprehensive annual financial reportCAFR for the
fiscal year ended June 30 2005 In order to receive this award the City published an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR This report satisfied both U S generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements A Certificate ofAchievement is valid for a one year period only We believe that
our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA todetermine Its eligibility for another certificate

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services of
the entire staff of the finance and administration departments We would like to express our appreciation to
ali members of the departments who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report Credit must
also be given to the Mayor and the Members of the City Council and the City Manager for their continued
support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Pismo
Beach s financial affairs

Respectfully Submitted

t r
Accounting Manager
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Indeoendent Auditor s ReDort

Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
City of Pismo Beach
Pismo Beach California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities the business type activities each major
fund and theaggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Cityof PismoBeach California the City asof and for the yearended
June 30 2006 which collectively comprise the Citys basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Cityof Pismo Beach s management Our responsibility is to express anopinion
on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in United Slates of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General ofthe
United States Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe
financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit Includes examining on a test basis evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financialstatement presentation We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the respective financial position
ofthe governmental activities the businesstype activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Pismo Beach California as of June 30 2006 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows where
applicable thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Statesof
America

The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison lnfonnation on pages 2 through 11 and pages 40

through 42 are not a required partof the basic financial statements but are supplementary infonnation required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America We have applied certain limited procedures which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information However we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it

Our audit wasconducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements thatcollectively comprise the City
of Pismo Beach s basic financial statements The accompanying introductory section combining nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules and statistical schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
partof the basic financial statements The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and in our opinion are fairly presented in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole The introductory section and statistical
schedules have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
accordingly we express no opinion on them

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated October 20 2006 on our

consideration oftheCity of Pismo Beach s internal control over financial reporting andon our testsofits compliance with certain
provisions of laws regulations contracts and grant agreements andother matters The purpose ofthat report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and notto provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting oron compliance That report is an integral partof an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit

The City in the 2006 fiscalyear implemented the provisions ofStatement Number440fthe GovernmentalAccounting Standards

7
titled Economic Condition Reporting The Statistical Section which Statement changed the fonnat and content of

1 7j
dOO
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Over time increases or decreases in the City s net assets are an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating respectively

The government wide financial statements of the City are reported in two categories

Governmental activities All of the City s basic services are included here such as general
government police fire streets public works and community services Property taxes sales
taxes transient occupancy taxes special and other taxes user charges and fees and state
local and federal grants help to finance these activities

Business Type activities The City charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of

certain services The City s water wastewater pier and transit enterprises are reported here

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City s most significant
funds not the City as awhole Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of

specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes

Some funds are required by State law such as the State Gas Tax Fund and Redevelopment
Low and Moderate Income Housing Funds

The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes
such as the Citys Capital Project Fund

Some funds are maintained to demonstrate that the City is properly using certain specific fees
for their intended purpose such as the City s Impact Fee Funds

Other funds are maintained for similar purposes but in addition demonstrate the City s ability to
repay its long term debt obligations such as the revenue bonds and tax allocation bonds

The City has two kinds of funds

Governmental funds The City s basic services are included in governmental funds which
focus on 1 how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in
and out and 2 the balances left at yearend that are available for spending Consequently the

govemmental funds statements provide a detailed shoTt tenn view that helps you in

determining whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the City s programs Because this information does not encompass the
additional long term focus of the govemment wide statements we provide additional
information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement or on the subsequent page that
explains the reiationship or differences between them

Proprietary funds The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions reported as business type activities in the government
wide financial statements the City s water wastewater pier and transit operations Internal
service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the City of Pismo Beach s various functions The City uses an intemal service fund to account
for its fleet of vehicles Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather than
businesstype functions they have been included within the governmental activities in the
govemment wide financial statements Proprietary funds provide the same type of Information
as the government wide statements only in more detail The proprietary fund statements

provide separate information for the City s water and wastewater operations both of which are
considered to be major funds of the City The vehicle internal service fund is presented in a

separate column alongside the totals for the City s proprietary enterprise funds

4



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets The City s combined net assets increased about 3 16 million between fiscal years
2005 and 2006 See Table A 1

Table A1

City of PlsmoIle8ch e Net

In millions ofdollers

Total Percentage
Govemmental Activitles Buslneeetype Activities Total Chenge

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 20052006

18 96 18 17 922 946 28 18 27 63 2 0
37 32 36 18 29 45 24 72 66 n 60 95 9 5
56 28 5435 38 87 34 23 9495 56 7 2

5 82 609 17 27 13 36 23 09 19 45 18 7
2 03 2 16 71 1 01 2 74 3 17 13 6
7 85 8 25 17 18 1437 25 83 22 82 142

Current and other assets

Capital
Totel

Longterm debt outatanding
Other liebllille8

Totelllabll

Net assets

In led In capltal
Res

Unrestricted

Totel net

31 51 30 09 15 28 14 96 46 79 45 05 3 9
8 20 8 33 0 68 0 60 8 68 8 93 0 8
8 72 7 68 4 70 4 30 13 42 11 98 12 0

48 43 48 10 20 88 18 88 1808 15 88 47

Net assets of the City s govemmental and business type activities increased 4 7 percent to
69 09 million About 70 of the net assets of the City is represented by the City s net
investment in its capital assets such as buildings land equipment street systems and facilities
The remaining 30 is essentially represented by cash investments and receivables About 89
of the Citys total liabilities are represented by longterm obligations including revenue bonds tax
allocation bonds employee compensated absences and self insured portions of claims

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Changes In net assets The City s 2006 total revenues of about 2271 million was about 1 3
million more than in 2005 about a 6 19 percent increase See Table A 2 About 56 percent of
the City s revenue comes from some type of taxes including property sales transient occupancy
taxes the hotel tax and other taxes The rest comes from fees charged for services state local
and federal aid and contributions

The total cost of all programs and services in 2006 was about 19 55 million and includes a wide
range of services such as police and fire protection streets publiC works general administration
community services water wastewater and the pier operations

5



MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Sources of the City s major types of revenue and the areas where such resources are used
is shown below in summary graphiC form

Sources ofRevenue for Fiscal Year 2006 Functional Expel B I for FISC8I Year 2006

Gnntli
contributions11

0 0023

Ch o

rvlce
32

p porty nd
1 wartaxOther tax

S tax
5 20

9
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7 war 8nd 28

1lI 1
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Palke1lldth930

Governmental Actlvitl88

Revenues from all governmental type activities in fiscal year 2006 increased by about 1 04
million compared to fiscal 2005 About 370 000 of the increase was from higher transient
occupancy tax revenues and 1 million was from Property Sales and other taxes

As the above graph shows the City s primary source of revenue comes from some kind of tax
About 56 of all City revenues come from taxes such as property sales transient occupancy
and othertaxes

Because the City of Pismo Beach is a tourist community about 33 of all governmental type
revenues come from the local hotel tax There was about a 370 000 increase in such tax
revenues in fiscal 2006 as a result of hotel rate changes and occupancy rates

The majority of the City s governmental type operating expenses are incurred to provide police
protection and fire protection services with these two departments accounting for about 41
percent of the City s total 2006 governmental operating expenses Another 14 of the City s
2006 governmental activities operating expenses were incurred to provide a variety of cultural
and recreation services including planning and the remaining 45 was spent on general
administration public works and streets

When all operations were concluded the governmental activities function generated a 2 25
million decrease in net assets for 2006 compared to 3 22 million in 2005 The reason for the
decrease in profitability was related to higher costs related to negotiations for salaries and
benefits and additional retirement costs

6



MANAGEMENrS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Table A 2

Changes in the City of Plsmo Beach s Net Assets

In millions of dollars

Total
Governmental Business type Percentage

Activities Activities Total Change

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 20052006

Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services 2 25 248 5 07 4 80 732 7 28 55

Operating grants and contributions 63 65 01 51 64 1 16 44 8

Capital grants and contributions 1 38 1 15 37 35 1 75 1 50 16 7

General revenues

Transient occupancy taxes 5 29 4 92 5 29 4 92 7 5

Properly sales and other taxes 6 38 5 15 1 04 57 7 42 572 2 3

Other 29 83 29 83 65 1

Total revenues 16 22 15 18 6 49 6 23 22 71 21 41 6 1

Expenses
General government 3 03 2 54 3 03 2 54 19 3
Public safety 5 77 5 33 5 77 5 33 8 3
Streets 1 90 1 63 1 90 1 63 16 6

Public works 73 72 73 72 1 4

Community services 2 05 1 31 2 05 1 31 55 7

Water 3 22 3 08 3 22 3 08 4 5
Wastewater 2 27 1 80 2 27 1 80 26 1

Other 49 43 09 09 58 52 11 5
Total expenses 13 97 11 96 5 58 4 97 19 55 16 93 15 5

Excess deficiency before transfers 2 25 3 22 0 91 1 26 3 16 4 48 29 5
Transfers 0 08 0 07 0 08 07

Increase decrease in net assets 2 33 3 15 0 83 1 33 3 16 448 29 5

Table A 3 presents the cost of each of the City s governmental activities largest programs
administration or general government public safety community services and streets

The cost of all programs this year was 13 97 million compared to 11 96 million in fiscal 2005

7



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Governmental Activities

While users and contributors funded about 4 26 million of the costs of the city s governmental
activity programs through related program revenues the City still had to make up the short fall
from general revenues such as taxes and this short fall was about 9 71 million Major sources
of program revenues were

Those who directly benefited from or used the programs 2 25 million or

Other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and
contributions about 2 01 million

The City paid for the 9 71 million public benefif portion out of the 11 96 million in general
revenues such as property taxes transient occupancy taxes sales taxes and with other tax
revenues and investment earnings

Table A 3

Cost of City of Plsmo Beschs Programs
In millions of dollars

Total Cost of Services
Percentage

Change

2006 2005 20052006

General Government

Public Safety

Community services

Streets

All other

Total

3 03

5 77

2 05

1 90

1 22

13 97

2 54

5 33

1 31

1 63

1 15

11 96

19 3
8 3

56 5

16 6

6 1

16 8

Expenses increased in the general government function as a result of higher salary and benefit
costs resulting from negotiations Safety costs increased as a result of higher employer pension
costs about 97 000 higher fire contract costs about 91 000 and higher operating expenses

Business Type Activities

The City s business type activities primarily water and wastewater were responsible for about
0 83 million of the total 3 16 million increase in net assets of the City in 2005 Revenues in total

increased in 2006 by a net 260 000 primarily because of the rate increases in the wastewater
fund to pay for the debt service costs related to the new Wastewater Treatment Plant Overall
operating expenses increased by about 610 000

8



MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY S FUNDS

As the City completed the year its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
146 million about 593 879 more than the last fiscal year The City s general fund operations

generated about 143 million more in revenues than was spent on governmental activities From
this excess the City transferred a total of 14 million out of the general fund and into other funds
About 356 140 of those transfers went to the debt service funds for the revenue bonds another

365 700 was transferred to the vehicle intemal service fund and another 619 000 was

transferred out to fund capital projects At year end the City s general fund had a fund balance of
about 6 18 million Of the 6 18 million about 2 1 million was designated for future use such as

projects and unanticipated emergencies

In addition the City s non major governmental funds ended the 2006 fiscal year with a combined
fund balance of 844 million Of this 8 44 million about 323 000 is In debt service funds used
to pay principal and interest on the revenue and tax allocation bonds 4 99 million is restricted
for use for only impact fee related projects Another 24 million can only be used for

redevelopment projects the remaining 1 million is also set aside for specific uses

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Over the course of the year the City Council revised the City budget several times These budget
amendments fall into two categories changes made at the midyear budget review for
unanticipated revenues and costs and increases in appropriations to prevent budget overruns
Even with these adjustments actual general fund expenditures were 2 5 million less than final

budget amounts The more significant budget changes were 303 000 more for police and fire
services and a 100 000 increase in Administration for professional services expenditures

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2006 the Cijy had invested 66 73 million in a broad range of capijal assets
including land vehicles equipment the City Pier water and wastewater system streets and
other capital assets See Table A4 This amount represents a net increase including additions
and deductions ofabout 5 81 million or about 9 5 percent over last year

Table A4

Plsmo Beach s Capital Assets
net of depreciation In millions of dollars

Total
Percentage

Governmental Activities Business typeActivities Total Change

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2005 2006
Land and right of ways 12 01 12 01 37 37 12 38 12 38 0 0
Construction in progress 1 50 70 14 6 9 72 16 10 10 42 54 5
Buildln9s 4 30 4 16 33 33 4 63 4 49 3 1
Machinery and equipment 1 50 1 50 1 18 1 14 2 68 2 64 1 5
Vehicles 3 00 2 74 0 0 0 0 3 00 2 74 9 5
Improvements 4 74 4 38 0 0 0 0 4 74 4 38 8 2
Tenks wells and system 0 0 0 0 6 74 6 73 6 74 6 73 0 15

Pipelinescolledion system 0 0 0 0 14 79 1442 14 79 14 42 2 6
Pier 0 0 0 0 1 92 1 92 1 92 1 92 0 0
I nfrastructurestreets 28 90 27 61 28 90 27 61 4 7
Accumulated depreciation 18 61 1692 10 54 9 86 29 15 26 78 8 8

Total 37 34 36 18 29 39 24 77 88 73 80 95 9 5

9



MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This year s major capital asset additions Included

The City in fiscal 2006 added 2 82 million in capital assets for governmental operational
purposes and about 5 36 in water and wastewater improvements The more significant additions

were

Added about 4 623 016 to construction in progress in the wastewater fund as part ofthe plant
upgrade project

Added about 1 million to construction in progress in the Governmental Funds of which is

primarily for overlay and slurryprojects Promenade 4 and the Fire Station 2 Upgrade

Add ional information on capital assets of the C y can be found starting on page 29 of the notes

to the financial statements

Long Term Debt

At the end of fiscal 2006 the City had 4 140 000 in revenue bonds 1 565 000 in

redevelopment tax allocation bonds and 110 000 in special assessment bonds outstanding
Debt outstanding on those three bond issues was reduced by 221 000 during the fiscal year
The revenue bonds are being retired from general fund revenues and special assessments and
the tax allocation bonds are paid for from the Agency s incremental property taxes DUring fiscal
2006 the City received 4 069 151 in loan proceeds from the State Revolving Loan Fund as part
of a 10 154 284 State Loan provided to help the City finance the wastewater treatment plant
upgrade project Add ional information on the City s long term debt can be found starting on page
34 of the notes to the financial statements

Under previous arrangements the City was self insured for the first 300 000 for each workers

compensation claim and 50 000 for each general liability claim the statement of net assets also
shows a Iiabil y of about 487 000 for estimated claim obligations This liability was fully funded
at the end of 2006 as the 809 056 in deposits in the statement of net assets is set aside to pay
such claims The City s general fund pays all insurance related costs

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR S BUDGET AND RATES

For the 2007 fiscal year general fund revenue projections have been conservative compared to

higher revenue projections in the past years

Overall general fund revenues are projected to increase by a net 4 0 percent over fiscal year
2006 There are no significant planned changes in tax rates or in other forms of revenue

subject to adjustment by the City
The City expects that generai fund revenues will exceed general fund spending in fiscal 2007

by about 200 000

The City expects to complete its wastewater treatment plant upgrade project in 2007

In 2007 the Water Rates will increase by 5 in June and the Wastewater Rates will
increase by 2 5 in June

In 2007 all Impact Fees and User Fees will be increased according to the Consumer Price
Index for the designated month and area as indicated by Council Ordinance or Resolution

10
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l IIlmJ MANAGEMENTS
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTACTING THE CITY S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens taxpayers customers and investors and

creditors with a general overview of the City s finances and to demonstrate the Citys

accountability for the money it receives If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information contact the Administrative Services Director City of Pismo Beach 760
Mattie Road Pismo Beach Califomia 93449
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

StatementofActivities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Grants

Charges for Grants and and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
FunctionsPrograms

City government
Governmental activities

General government 3 028 986 446454 17 007

Public safety
Police protection 4 095 962 276 477 126 616

Fire protection 1 673 442 33 174

Public works 732 548

Streets 1 901 366 143 034 407 876 1 375 100

Community services 2 053 754 1 067 802 2 720

Redevelopment and housing 168 091 285 503 75 557

Interest on iong term debt 324 013

Total governmental activities 13 978 162 2 252 444 629 776 1 375 100

Business Type Activities

Water 3223 335 2 446 613 244 357
IAI un l nn I 7 1 OA



Net Expenses Revenue and

Changes In Net Assets

City Government

Governmental Business type
Activities Activities Total

2 565 525 2 565 525

3 692 869 3 692 869

1 640 268 1 640 268

732 548 732 548

24 644 24 644

983 232 983 232

192 969 192 969
324 013 324 013

9 720 842 9 720 842

532 365 532 365

459 149 459 149
64 712 64 712
6 092 6 092

131 836 131 836

9 720 842 131 836 9 852 678

2 937 753 2 937 753

570 689 570 689
2 134 638 2 134 638

1 038 399 1 038 399
5 295 777 5 295 777

738 257 738 257

58 595 58 595

201 501

34 751 34 751
78 977 78 977

12 050 938 959 422 13 010 360

2 330 096 827 586 3 157 682

46 104 057 19 864 017 65 968 074
48434 153 20 691 603 69 125 756
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30 2006

other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and investments 6 062 892 8 297 876 14 360 768
Taxes receivable 962 099 9 186 971 285
Accounts receivable 205 075 17 936 223 011
Due from other governments 204 664 204 664
Accrued interest receivable 15 848 76 280 92 128
Prepayments 25 249 25 249
Internal balancesdue from other funds 45 303 45 303
Special assessments receivable 110 000 110 000

Total assets 7 316 466 8 715 942 16 032408

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts payable 439 279 116 353 555 632
Accrued Iiabiltties 238 552 979 239 531
Internal balancesdue to other funds 45 303 45 303
Deposits 458 120 2 000 460 120
Deferred revenue 110 000 110 000

Totalliabilttles 1 135 951 274 635 1410 586

Fund balances
Reserved 495 570 828 046 1 323 616
Unreserved designated for

other purposes 2 069630 2 069 630
Unreserved undesignated 3 615 315 3 615 315
Unreserved reported in nonmajor

Special revenue funds 3 681 329 3 681 329
Capital projects funds 3 608 605 3 608 605
Debtservice fundds 323 327 323 327

Total fund balances 6 180 515 8 441 307 14 621 822

Totalliabiltties and fund balances 7 316466 8 715 942 16 032408

Total Governmental Fund Balances 14 621 822

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement ofnet assets are different because

Capttal assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported In the funds 36 278 529

Long term receivables used in governmental activities are not
current financial resources and therefore are deferred in the funds 110 000

Depostts with insurance pools used in governmental activities are not
current financial resources and therefore not reported in the funds 809 056

The assets and liabilities ofthe internal service fund are included in the governmental
activities in the statement of net assets 3 184 505

Some liabilities including bonds leases compensated absences claims
and accrued interest are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds 6 569 759

NetAssets ofGovernmental Activities 48 434 153

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Statements of Revenues Expenditures and

Changes In Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES

Property taxes 2 937 753 570689 3 508 442
Sales taxes 2 134 638 2 134 638
Transient occupancy taxes 5 295 777 5 295 777
Other taxes 738 257 738 257

Special assessments 36 494 38 494
Licenses and permtts 496 717 496 717
Fines and forfeits 142 390 142 390

Intergovemmental 104 175 845 989 950 164

Interest and renls 256 343 254 918 511 261
Charges for services 824 702 464 422 1 289 124
Miscellaneous 113 379 105 977 219 356

Total revenues 13 044 131 2 278 489 15 322 620

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 2 843 670 2 843 670
Public safety 5 725 715 2 426 5 728 141

Highways and streets 557 761 316 609 874 370

Communtty services 1 750 662 1 750 662
Public works 732 548 732 548

Redevelopment 168 091 168 091
Debt service

Principal 221 000 221 000
Interest 328 131 328 131

Capital outlay 1 576 001 1 576 001

Total expendttures 11 610 356 2 612 258 14 222 614

Excess deficiency of revenues over

expendttures 1 433 775 333 769 1 100 006

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Transfers in 291 132 1 646 343 1 937 475
Transfers out 1 381 693 1 061 909 2 443 602

Total other financing sources uses 1 090 561 584 434 506 127

Net change In fund balances 343 214 250 665 593 879

Fund balances July 1 5 837 301 8 190 642 14 027 943

Fund balances June 30 6 180 515 8 441 307 14 621 822

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Reconciliation of the Statement ofRevenues

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of

Govemmentel Funds to the Stetement ofActivities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D 2006

Net Change in Fund Balances Total Govemmental Funds

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the

statement of activtties are different because

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures
However in the statement of activtties the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as

depreciation expense This is the amount by which capttal outlays
1 736 018 exceed depreciation 1 507 931 in the current period

Capital assets contributed by developers are not current financial resources

and are therefore not reported in the funds

Proceeds of long term debt provide financial resources to govemmental
funds but issuing debt increases long term liabilities in the statement of

net assets Repayment of long term debt principal is an expendnure
in the governmental funds but the repayment reduces liabilities in the
statement of net assets This is the amount ofdebt repayments
during the period on the bonds and leases

Some expenses in the statement of activities for noncurrent liabilities

such as long term compensated absences and accrued interest do not require
the use of or provide current financial resources and therefore are not reported as

expenditures or revenues in the governmental funds

Some expenses in the statement of activities for self insured claims

do not require the use of current financial resources and are not reported as

expendttures in the governmental funds changes in liabilities and deposits

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities such as vehicle pool management and operation to Individual funds
I nvestment income of the Internal service fund and net transfers are reported
with governmental activtties

Internal service funds are closed by charging addttlonal amounts or reducing
charges to participating governmental actlvtties to completely cover

the internal service funds costs for the year

Special assessments are deferred in the funds until collected and

available and are not reported as revenues in the statement of activities

Net differences

Change in NetAssets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notesto the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30 2006

tnterpnse tunds

Governmental
ActivitiesIntemal

Water Wastewater Other Funds Totals ServIce Fund

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2 797 191 430 135 15 112 3 242438 2 141 865
Receivables net 363432 370 932 893 735 257 21 153

Prepayments 1 071 098 1 071 098

Total current assets 4 231 721 801 067 16 005 5 048793 2 163 018

Noncurrent assets
Other assets

Restrtcted cash and cash equivalents 3 855 909 3 855 909

Debt issuance costs net 319 303 319 303

Total other noncurrent assets 4 175 212 4 175 212
Capital assets

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 129 591 209 759 33425 372 775
Construction in progress 405 910 14 232 039 14 637 949

Total 535 501 14 441 798 33425 15 010 724

Capital assets being depreciated

Improvements and buildings 1 645 294 513 102 127 357 2 285 753 2 995 284

Distrtbution and collection systems 7 801 921 12 027 650 19 829 571
Pier 1 922411 1 922411
Capacity rtghts 939 838 939 838

Less accumulated depreciation 4 888060 4 765 635 881 550 10 535 245 1 952 385
Net capital assets

being depreciated 5 498 993 7 775 117 1 168 218 14 442 328 1 042 899

Net capital assets 6034 494 22 216 915 1 201 643 29453 052 1 042 899

Total noncurrent assets 6 034494 26 392 127 1 201 643 33 628 264 1 042 899

Total assets 10 266 215 27 193 194 1 217648 38 677 057 3 205 917

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 91 783 239 719 4 455 335 957 17 709

Compensated absences 27 499 22 999 50 498 2 231
Accrued interest payable 148 653 148 653

Other current liabilities 13 123 13441 26 564 1472

Capital leases and revenue bonds

Total current liabilities 132405 424 812 4 455 561 672 21412

Noncurrent liabilities

Deposits 54 654 54654
Fines and penalties 96 750 96 750

State revolving loan 9 994 932 9 994 932

Revenue bonds 7 300 000 7 300 000
Loss on advance refunding 22 554 22 554

Total noncurrent liabilities 54654 17 369 128 17423 782

Total liabilities 187 059 17 793 940 4 455 17 985 454 21 412

NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets net of related debt 6 034 494 8 043 677 1 201 643 15 279814 1 042 899

Restricted for capital improvements 677 773 677 773
Unrestrtcted 4 044 662 677 804 11 550 4 734 016 2 141 606

Total net assets 10 079 156 9 399 254 1 213 193 20 691 603 3 184 505

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Statement of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For theFiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities Intema

Water Wastewater Other Funds Totals SeNice Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales ofwater 1 994 991 1 994 991
Service fees 289 143 2 424 053 19 512 2 732 708 352 669
Miscellaneous 41 105 84 616 125 721 4 487

Total operating revenues 2 325 239 2 508 669 19 512 4 853 420 357 156

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 540 071 763 953 1 304 024 100 463
Purchased power 125 738 200 257 325 995
Services and supplies 421 875 667 221 49 405 1 138 501 249 293
Customer accounting 46 191 14 928 61 119
Joint operating expenses 1 764 329 1 764 329
Depreciation and amortization 325 131 314 212 40 882 680 225 285 919

Total operating expenses 3 223 335 1 960 571 90 287 5 274 193 635 675

Operating income loss 898 096 548 098 70 775 420 773 278 519

NONOPERATlNG
REVENUES EXPENSES

Property and special taxes 1 038 399 1 038 399

Operating subsidies 12 000 12 000
Interest and investment revenue 121 374 90 898 155 212 427 67 247
Interest expense 305 688 305 688 633

Netnonoperating revenues

expenses 1 159 773 214 790 12 155 957 138 66 614

Income loss before contributions

and transfers 261 677 333 308 58 620 536 365 211 905

Contributions and transfers
Capitalcontributions 244 357 125 841 370 198
Transfers in 43 539 13 346 22 167 79 052 585 104
Transfers out 71 584 86465 158 029

Netcontributions and transfers 216 332 52722 22 167 291 221 585 104

Change in net assets 478 009 386 030 36 453 827 586 373 199

Total net assets July 1 9 601 147 9 013 224 1 249 646 19 864 017 2 811 306

Total net assets June 30 10 079 156 9 399 254 1 213 193 20 691 603 3 184 505

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Statement of Cesh Flows

Proprielaly Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Enterprise Funds

Governmental

ActIvities
Other Internal Service

Water Wastewater Funds Totals Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 2 183 120 2 495 604 19 280 4 698 004

Payments to suppliers 2 267 613 1 007406 48 811 3 323 830 248 901

Payments to other funds for services 130 926 64 658 215 584

Payments from other funds for services 357 155

Payments of fines and pena ies 32 250 32 250

Payments to employees 527 275 760 070 1 287 345 102 053

Net cash provided by used for

operating activities 742 694 611 220 29 531 161 005 6201

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Operating subsidies 12 000 12 000
Property and special taxes 1 017 761 1 017 761
Transfers from other funds 43 539 13 346 22 167 79 052 565 104
Transfers to other funds 71 564 86 465 158 029

Net cash provided by used for noncapital
financing activities 989 736 73 119 34 167 950 764 565 104

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of Slate Revolving Fund loan 4 069 151 4 069 151

Payments on long term debt prinCipal 159 503 159 503 58 182
Interest paid on long term debt 302 034 302 034 633
Purchases of cap al assets 362 324 4 622 916 4 985 240 257 640

Net cash provided by used for capital and
related financing activities 362 324 1 015 302 1 377 626 316455

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest receipts 112 801 60 160 47 172 808 59 237

Net cash provided by investing activities 112801 60 160 47 172 808 59 237

Net increase decrease in cash and

cash equivalents 2 681 417 041 4 683 415 039 334 087

Balances beginning ofthe year 2 799 872 4 703 085 10429 7 513 386 1 807 778

Balances end of the year 2 797 191 4 286 044 15 112 7 098 347 2 141 865

See accompanying notesto the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 3D 2006

Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities

Other Internal
Water Wastewater Funds Totals Service Fund

Reconciliation of operating income loss to

net cash provided by operating activities

Operatihg income loss 898 096 548 098 70 775 420 773 278 519

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation expense 325 131 309 008 40 882 675 021 285 919

Change in assets and liabilities

Decrease increase in prepayments 101 474 101 474
Decrease increase in accounts receivable 14 816 13 065 232 28 113
Increase decrease in other liabilities 12 796 23 163 10 367 1 590

Increase decrease in accounts payable 61 068 209 658 594 147 996 391
Increase decrease in deposits 127 303 127 303

Net cash provided by used for

operating activities 742 694 611 220 29 531 161 005 6 201

Noncash capital financing activities

During the 2006 fiscal year the Cty recognized as capital contributions 244 357 in the water enterprise and 125 841 in the
wastewater enterprise related to system improvements completed by developers and dedicated to the City

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30 2006

1 Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies

A Reporting Entity

The City of Pismo Beach is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five member City
Council The accompanying financial statements present the government its component units
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable

The Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority Public Facilities Corporation and Pismo Beach

Redevelopment Agency are legally separate Corporate entities for which the City is financially
accountable and they are governed by the elected City Council The Authority and Corporation
were fomned to provide a method of financing public improvements The financial activities of the

Authority Corporation and Agency are blended with those of the City and are reported in the

City s governmental funds and as capital assets ofthe City and debt obligations of the City

B Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government wide financial statements I e the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets report infomnation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City For the
most part the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements Governmental
activities which normally are supported by taxes and Intergovernmental revenues are reported
separately from business type activities which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment Program revenues include 1 charges to
customers or applicants who purchase use or directly benefit from goods services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2 grants and contributions that are restricted to

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements

C Measurement Focus Basis ofAccounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund financial
statements Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting Revenues are recognized as

soon as they are both measurable and available Revenues are considered to be available when

they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period For this purpose the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred as under accrual accounting However debt service

expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments are recorded only when payment is due
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 3D 2006

Note 1 Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies continued

C Measurement Focus Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Continued

Property taxes sales taxes transient occupancy taxes licenses and interest associated with the

current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized
as revenues of the current fiscal period Only the portion of special assessments receivable due

within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current

period All otherrevenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is

received by the government

The City reports the following major governmental funds

The General Fund is the governments primary operating fund It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except those required to be accounted for in another
fund

The City reports the following major proprietary funds

The water fund accounts for the operations of the City s water treatment and distribution

system

The wastewater fund accounts for the operation of the City s wastewater treatment plant and

collection facilities

Additionally the City reports the following fund type

The intemal service fund is used to account for the City s vehicle fleet and services provided to
other City departments on acost reimbursement basis

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1 1989

generally are followed in the government wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
ex1ent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental

Accounting standards Board Governments also have the option of following subsequent private
sector guidance for their business type activities and enterprise funds subject to this same

limitation The government has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government wide

financial statements Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and other

charges between the City s water and wastewater function and other functions of the City
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1 charges to customers or applicants for goods
services or privileges provided 2 operating grants and contributions and 3 capital grants and

contributions including special assessments Internally dedicated resources are reported as

general revenues rather than as program revenues Likewise general revenues include all taxes

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund s principal ongoing operations The

principal operating revenues of the City s enterprise and internal service funds are charges to

customers for sales and services Operating expenses for the enterprise and intemal service
funds inClude the costs of sales and services administration costs and depreciation on capital
assets All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 3D 2006

D

Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies Continued

Assets Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

Note 1

1 Deposits and Investments

The City is authorized by its most recent investment policy to invest in the State of Califomla
Local Agency Investment Fund U S Treasury bonds bills and notes obligations issued by US
Government agencies bankers acceptances repurchase agreements and time deposits and

savings and demand accounts

The City s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand demand deposits and
short term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of

acquisition

Investments for the City are reported at fair value The State Treasurers Investment Pool

operate in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations The reported value of the pool
is thesame as the fair value ofthe pool shares

2 Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending borrowing anrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either due to from other funds ie the current

portion of interfund loans or advances tofrom other funds i e the noncurrent portion of
interfund loans All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to from other
funds Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business type
activities are reported in the government wide financial statements as internal balances

Advances between funds as reported in the fund financial statements are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable government funds to indicate that they are not available for

appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources

All trade and property tax receivables are not shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles

Property taxes are levied as of March 1 on property values assessed as of the same date State
statutes provide that the property tax rate be limited generally to one percent of market value be
levied by only the County and be shared by applicable jurisdictions The County of San Luis

Obispo collects the taxes and distributes them to taxing jurisdictions on the basis of assessed
valuations subject to voter approved debt Property taxes are due on November 1 and March 1
and become delinquent on December 10 and April 1 O The City receives property taxes pursuant
to an anrangement with the County known as the Teeter Plan Under the plan the County
assumes responsibility for the collection of delinquent taxes and pays the full allocation to the

City The City recognizes property tax revenues in the fiscal year in which they are due to the

City

3 Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first in first out FIFO method Inventories of

govemmental funds are recorded as expenditures when used or consumed

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government wide and fund financial statements
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30 2006

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

D Assets Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity Continued

4 Capital Assets

Capital assets which include property plant equipment and infrastructure assets e g roads

bridges sidewalks and similar items are reported in the applicable governmental type or

business type activities columns in the government wide financial statements Capital assets are

defined by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than 2 500 50 000
for infrastructure type assets and an estimated useful life in excess of one year Such assets are

recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed Donated

capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation Under the
GASB 34 Implementation Rules the City is a Phase 2 entity and was not required to record
infrastructure assets existing or acquired prior to July 1 2002 at the date these new financial

reporting standards were implemented The City has recorded such assets The costs of normal

maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of asset or materially extend assets lives
are not capitalized

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of the business type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value ofthe assets constructed

Property plant and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight line method over the

following estimated useful lives

Assets

Buildings and improvements
Public domain infrastructure
System infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Years

15 40
50
50

7 10

5 Compensated Absences

It is the government s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits There is a liability for a portion of unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City
does have a policy to pay certain amounts when employees separate from service with the City
All vacation pay and applicable sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government wide and

proprietary fund financial statements A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental
funds only if they have matured for example as a result of employee resignations and
retirements

6 Long term Obligations

In the government wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements long term debt and other long term obligations are reported as liabilities in the

applicable governmental activities business type activities or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets

7 FundEquity

In the fund financial statements governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use
for a specific purpose Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that
are subject to change
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 3D 2006
8 Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in order to provide an

understanding of the changes in net assets Also certain amounts presented in the prior year
data have been reclassified to be consistent with the current years presentation

2 Reconciliation ofGovernment wide and Fund Financial Statements

A Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
and the Government wide Statement of Net Assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance total

governmental funds and net assets govemmental activities as reported in the govemment
wide statements of net assets One element of that reconciliation explains that capital
assets are not financial resources and are not reported in the fundsThe details of this

36 278 529 difference are as follows

Capital assets
Less Accumulated depreciation
Net adjustment to increase fundbalance total governmental

funds to arrive at net assets govemmental activities 36 278 529

52 935 721

116 657 192

Another element of the reconciliation explains that long term liabilities are not due and

payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds The details of this
6 569 759 difference are as follows

Lona Term Debt Obliaations and Related Interest
Revenue bonds
Tax allocation bonds

Special assessment bonds

Compensated absences
Accrued interest on bonds
Claims covered by self insurance

4 140 000
1 565 000

110 000
224 362

43 397
1 487 000

Net adjustment to decrease fund balance total governmental
Funds to arrive at net assets governmental activities 6 569 759

B Explanation ofCertain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of
Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Governmentwide

Statement ofActivities

The governmental fund statement of revenues expenditures and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances total govemmental funds
and changas in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government wide
statement of activities One element of that reconciliation explains that Governmental funds

report capital outlays as expenditures However in the statement of activities the cost of
these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense The details of this 1 736 217 difference and other significant components of the
difference are as follows

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Repayment of long term debt principal
Contributed capital assets
Other items

1 736 018
1 507 931

221 000

937 661
349 469

Net adjustment to increase netchanges in fund balances
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in netassets
ofgovernmental activities Ii 1736217
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30 2006

3 Stewardship Compliance and Accountability

A Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for all governmental funds Appropriations lapse at fiscal year end The

appropriated budget is prepared by fund function and department The City Manager may
make transfers of appropriations within a department Transfers between departments and
otherchanges require City Council approval The legal level of control is the department and

fund level The Council made supplemental appropriations during the fiscal year

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds Encumbrances outstanding
at year end are reported as a reservation of fund balances and do not constitute

expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored

during the subsequent year

4 Detailed Notes on All Funds

A Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments at June 30 2006 consisted of the following

Pooled demand deposits
Pooled investments

Investments with trustees

Total deposits and investments

1423 433
21 245 805

931 742

23 600 980

Custodial Credit Risk Deposits Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure the City s deposits may not be returned to it The City s policy for deposits is that they
will be made only in institutions in California they shall be insured or collateralized with United
States backed securities and time certificates of deposit shall have a maturity of less than
three years At June 30 2006 2 101 282 of the City s bank balances of 2 266 283 was

exposed to credit risk as follows

Uninsured and collateral held by pledging banks agent
but not in the City s name 2101282

Investments At June 30 2006 the City had the following investments

Type Investment Average Maturity Fair Value

State Investment Pool LAIF
FHLMC FHLB and FNMA

Corporate commercial paper
Mutual funds

152 Days
3 16 Years
6 months

10 months

16 618 941
4 628 260

455 059

475 287

22 177 547

Interest Rate Risk As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising
interest rates the City s investment policy limits the City s investment portfolio to maturities

prescribed in Sections 53600 through 53609 of the California Government Code

Credit Risk State law limits investments in various securities to certain level of risk ratings
issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations It is the City s policy to comply
with State law as regards securities ratings The City s investment in mutual funds was rated
AAA by Moody s Investor Service All government agency investments were rated AAA by
Standard and Poors and Moody s Investor Services The State Investment Pool is unrated
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30 2006

4 Detailed Notes on All Funds Continued

A Deposits and Investments Continued

Custodial Credit Risk For an investment custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the
failure of a counterparty the City will not be able to recover the value of ijs investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party Of the Citys 5 558 606
investment other than the State Pool the entire 5 558 606 in underlying securities are held by
the investmenfs counterparty in the name of the City The City s investment policy specifies that
securities are to be held by a third party other than the counterparty in the Citys name
whenever possible

B Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the government s individual major and nonmajor funds in the

aggregate net of the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows

General
Fund

Internal
Service

Nonma or Tolal Water
Funds Governmental Wastewater

17 936 244 164 633 478
9 188 971 285 26 659

76 280 92 128 74 227
204 664 204 664

308 088 1 512 241 734 364

Nonmajor
ProPrietary

Accounts
Taxes
Interest
Governments

205 075
962 099

15 848

21 153 785

108

Totals 1 183 022 21 153 893

C Interfund Transfers Receivables and Payables

1 The composition of interfund transfers of June 30 2006 is as follows

Internal Pier Major Total
General Non Major Service Enterprise Enterprise Transfers

Transfers In Fund Funds Fund Fund Funds Out

Transfers Out
General fund 976 906 382 620 22 167 1 361 693
Nonmajor funds 291 132 669 437 44 455 56 885 1 061 909
Waterlwastewater 158 029 158 029

Totals 291 132 1 646 343 585 104 22 167 56 885 2 601 631

The primary purpose of the transfers out of the general fund were to provide 356 138 for debt
service requirements 976 906 for capital projects and to provide 22 167 to subsidize pier
operational costs

2 The composition of internal balances was

Receivable Fund
General
For cash flow needs

Payable Fund Amount

Special reuenue CDBG
Leeward Windward debt service
Reassessment debt service

2 956
5 181

37 166

45 303Total
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30 2006

4 Detailed Notes on All Funds Continued

D Capital Assets

Capital asset activity relating to governmental activities for the year ended June 30 2006 was as

follows

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities

Capital assets not being depreciated
land 6 957 294 6 957 294

Rights of way street system 5 068 528 5 068 528

Construction in progress 698 030 1 038 779 256 641 1480 168

Total capital assets not being depreciated 12 723 852 1 038 779 256 641 13 505 990

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 4 157 738 113 448 4 271 186

Machinery and equipment 1 501 149 82 198 110 638 1 472 709

Vehicles internal service fund 2 737 644 257 640 2 995 284

Improvements 4 381 193 354 675 4 735 868

Infrastructure street system 27 606 487 1 343 481 28 949 968

Total capital assets being depreciated 40 384 211 2 151 442 110 638 42 425 015

less accumulated depreciation for

Buildings 1 629 583 59 686 1 689 269

Machinery and equipment 1 040 341 77 780 108 198 1 009 923

Vehicles 1 666 467 285 918 1 952 385

Improvements 507 076 225 339 732 415

Infrastructure street system 12 080 459 1 145 126 13 225 585

Total accumulated depreciation 16 923 926 1 793 849 108 198 18 609 577

Total capital assets being depreciated net 23 460 285 357 593 2 440 23 815 438

Governmental activities capital assets net 36 184 137 1 396 372 259 081 37 321 428
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June 30 2006

4 Detailed Notes on All Funds Continued

D Capital Assets Continued

Capital asset activity relating to business type activities for the year ended June 30 2006was as

follows

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Businesstype activities

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 372 775 372 775

Construction in progress 9714 741 5 279 061 355 853 14 637 949

Total capital assets not being depreciated 10 087 516 5 279 061 355 853 15 010 724

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 333 726 333 726

Capacity rights 939 838 939 838

Tanks wells and improvements 5783 906 21 200 5 805 106

Equipment 1 142 681 40 834 1 183 515

Pipelines and collection system 14 422 779 370 198 14 792 977

Pier 1 922411 1 922411

Total capital assets being depreciated 24 545 341 432 232 24 977 573

Less accumulated depreciation for

Buildings 333 726 333 726

Tanks wells and improvements 3 037 266 332 991 3 370 257

Equipment 510 979 28 520 539 499

Pipelines and collection system 5 138 577 271 636 5410 213
Pier 840 668 40 882 881 550

Total accumulated depreciation 9 861 216 674 029 10 535 245

Total capital assets being depreciated net 14 684 125 241 797 14 442 328

Business type activities capital assets net 24 771 641 5 037 264 355 853 29 453 052

Construction in progress in the proprietary funds relates primarily to the Wastewater Treatment Plant

Expansion Project In connection with the operation of the wastewater facility regulatory agencies
had originally assessed 750 000 in penalties against the City for alleged violations of discharge
regulations The City had accrued a liability for these amounts in its wastewater enterprise and

expects to cure the cause of such discharge problems in connection with its expansion and
modernization project During the 2005 fiscal year the City and regulatory agencies reached an

agreement whereby the 750 000 in penalties were reduced by 507 000 to a total of 243 000
The City paid 114 000 of those penalties during the 2005 fiscal year and 32 250 during the 2006
fiscal year
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D Capital Assets Continued

Depreciation and amortization expense wascharged to functionsprograms of the City as follows

Governmental activities

General govemment
Public safety

Par1s

I nfrastructure5treets

Vehicles Internal service fund

6 068

107 274

249 463

1 145 126

285 918

Total depreciation expensegovemmental activities 1 793 849

Businesstype activities

Water

Wastewater

Pier

325 131

308 016

40 882

Total depreciation expensegovemmenlal activ ies 674 029

E Capital Leases

The City has entered into lease agreement for 239 520 as lessee for financing the acquisition of
vehicles and equipment for the vehicle internal service fund and the wastewater fund The lease
agreement qualifies as capital lease for accounting purposes and therefore has been recorded at
the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date The assets have
been capitalized in the respective funds and the related accumulated depreciation is recorded also in
such funds This lease obligation was completely liquidated in the 2006 fiscal year with a 58 182

principal payment by the internal service fund and a 4 503 principal payment by the wastewater

enterprise fund
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F Long Term Debt

Revenue Bonds

1999 Series

The City s Financing Authority in 1999 issued 4 950 000 in lease revenue refunding bonds to

advance refund and retire prior revenue bonds The bonds bear interest at rates from 3 15 to 5 25

percent and principal on the bonds is due each December 1 The bonds consisted of 3 505 000 in

term bonds due 2024 and 1445 000 in serial bonds maturing each December 1 through 2009 The
bonds are secured by a covenant of the City to make provisions in its annual budget to provide for

funding the retirement of principal and payment of interest on the bonds The City uses its general
fund to provide for the debt service payments A lease payable by the City and City receivable by the

City s Financing Authority have been eliminated from these financial statements The term bonds
due in 2024 are subject to redemption prior to maturity commencing 2010 as specified in the bond
resolution Future debt service on the lease revenue refunding bonds is

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2007 150 000 207 398 357 398
2008 155 000 201 220 356 220
2009 160 000 194 682 354 682

2010 170 000 187 668 357 668
2011 175 000 179 419 354 419
2012 2016 1 030 000 744 713 1 774 713
2017 2021 1 350 000 434 439 1 784439
2022 2025 950 000 82 424 1 032424

Totals 4 140 000 2 231 963 6 371 963

State Revolving Fund Loan

The City entered into an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board for a

10 154 284 loan with an effective interest rate ofabout 1 8 percent for the purpose of financing
wastewater system improvements At June 30 2006 9 994 932 of the loan proceeds had been
drawn down by the City Future debtservice on the total loan amount is estimated at

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2007 426 178 183 081 609 259
2008 433 862 175 397 609 259

2009 441 684 167 575 609 259
2010 449 648 159 611 609 259
2011 457 755 151 504 609 259
2012 2016 2415 592 630 703 3 046 295
2017 2021 2 641 353 404 942 3 046 295
2022 2026 2 888 212 158 083 3 046 295

Totals 10 154 284 2 030 896 12 185 180
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F Long Term Debt Continued

Special Assessment Bonds

The special assessment bonds originally issued for 370 139 are payable from assessments levied

against property owners within the assessment districts and from monies advanced or provided by
the City The City has a history of providing monies to pay such debt service on special assessment
bonds when necessary The bonds consist of the obligations related to the Indio EI Portal and
WindwardlLeeward areas bear Interest at rates of 4 25 to 7 0 percent and are payable each March
2 and September 2 through 2009 Future debt service is

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2007 25 000 6 523 31 523
2008 25 000 4 867 29 867
2009 30 000 3 031 33 031
2010 30 000 1 013 31 013

Totals 110 000 15 434 125 434

Tax Allocation Bonds

On June 1 2001 The City s Redevelopment Agency issued 1 795 000 in tax allocation bonds
series 2001A to advance refund and retire a long term loan payable by the Agency to the City s

Financing Authority The tax allocation bonds bear interest at an average of 7 15 percent payable
each March and September 15 through 2023 Term bonds maturing September 15 2011 2020 and
2023 are subject to mandatory early redemption from sinking payments on or after 2004 2017 and
2021 respectively The bonds are secured by a pledge of the Agency s Incremental Property Tax
Revenues excluding amounts required to be set aside in the Agencys Low and Moderate Income

Housing Fund Future debt service requirements are

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2007 50 000 87 428 137 428
2008 50 000 84 928 134 928
2009 55 000 82 303 137 303
2010 55 000 79 553 134 553
2011 55 000 76 802 131 802
2012 2016 345 000 333 567 678 567
2017 2021 445 000 221 234 666 234
2022 2024 510 000 57 300 567 300

Totals 1 565 000 1 023 115 2 588 115
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Long TennDebt Continued

Revenue Bonds 2004 Series A

The revenue bonds were issued by the Pismo Beach Financing Authority a component unit of the
City in an original amount of 7 500 000 to obtain financing to advance refund an installment

agreement and obtain additional funding for the City s wastewater treatment plant expansion project
The Authority entered into a lease arrangement with the City wherein the City is obligated to make
all debt service payments on the revenue bonds The transactions between the Authority and the
City have been eliminated from these financial statements and the debt and related proceeds are

reported within the Citys wastewater enterprise fund The obligation is secured by a pledge of the
net revenues of the City s wastewater enterprise bears interest at rates of 2 0 to 4 5 percent and is
payable in semi annual installments each July and January 1 through 2026 Future debtservice is

Fiscal Year Principal Inte Total

2007 155 000 297 305 452 305
2008 160 000 294 205 454 205

2009 160 000 291 005 451 005
2010 170 000 287 005 457 005
2011 175 000 282 330 457 330
2012 2016 940 000 1 324 320 2 264 320
2017 2021 1 140 000 1 133 248 2273 248
2022 2026 1 405 000 837 980 2 242 980
2027 2031 1 745 000 583 520 2 328 520
2032 2034 1 250 000 114 076 1 364 076

Totals 7 300 000 5 444 994 12 744 994

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
value of the old debt of 22 557 which amount is reported as adeduction from long term debt and is

being amortized to expense through 2034

Changes in Long term liabilities

Long term debt activity for the 2006 fiscal year wasas follows
Due

Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental
Activities
Capital leasesinternal service 58 182 58 182
Revenue bonds 4 285 000 145 000 4 140 000 150 000
Tax allocation bonds 1 610 000 45 000 1 565 000 50 000
Special assessment bonds 141 000 31 000 110 000 25 000
Compensated absences 233 722 78 185 85 314 228 593 78 185
Claims 487 000 22 182 22 182 487 000 200 000

Total 6 814 904 100 367 388 678 6 528 593 503 185

Buslnesstype
Actlvlties

Compensated absences 41 360 50 498 41 360 50498 50498
Capital leases 4 503 4 503
Revenue bonds 7 455 000 155 000 7 300 000 155 000
State revolving loan 5 925 781 4 069 151 9 994 932 426 178

Total 13 426 644 4 119 649 200 883 17 345 430 831 676

Intemal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds Accordingly long term liabilities
for them are included as part of the above totals for govemmental activities At year end 2 231 of
the internal service funds compensated absences are included in the above amounts Also for the

governmental activities claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally liquidated
by the general fund
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A Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft of damage to and destruction of
assets errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the City carries insurance The City
due to the costs of available coverage participated as a member in the Central Coast Cities Self
Insurance Fund CCCSIF through June 30 2003 for general liability insurance and through June 30
2004 for workers compensation insurance Thereafter the City joined the California Joint Powers
Insurance Authority California JPIA The California JPIA provides general liability insurance to the

City wtth a 50 million per occurrence and 50 million per year aggregate limit and workers

compensation insurance with statutory benefits and 10 million employers liability coverage The
risk of loss is transferred to the California JPIA The City is subject to retrospective premium
adjustments under the arrangement Insurance transactions are accounted for in the general fund

The City is responsible for payment of its respective claims that were outstanding with the CCCSIF
at the time the City elected to insure with the Califomia JPIA The uninsured risk for these claims
referred to as tailend claims retained by the City was 300 000 per incident for workers

compensation claims 50 000 per incident for general liability claims and 5 000 per property
damage claim The CCCSIF periodically obtains actuarial studies and valuations of the tailend claim
liabilities and the City reports such estimated amounts payable as claim liabilities in the statement of
net assets

Liabilities of the City are reported in the statement of net assets for the governmental activities when
it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated
Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported IBNRs The result
of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on many complex
factors such as inflation changes in legal doctrines and damage awards Accordingly claims are

reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation recent claim settlement trends including
frequency and amount of payouts and other economic and social factors

The estimate of the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment
expenses related to specific claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether
allocated to specific claims Estimated recoveries for example from salvage or subrogation are
another component of the claims liability estimate Settlements have not exceeded coverage for
each of the past three fiscal years

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past two years areas follows
Year Year

Ended Ended
6 3012006 6 30 2005

487 000 704 600

22 182 170 691
22 182 46 909

487 000 487 000

Unpaid claims beginning of fiscal year

Incurred claims including IBNRs

Claim payments

Unpaid claims end of fiscal year

B Contingencies and Commitments

Utigation The City is involved in litigation incurred in the normal course of conducting City business

Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable in the opinion of the City s

counsel the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the City

Grants and allocations Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audtt and
adjustment by grantor agencies principally the federal and state govemment Any disallowed claims

including amounts already collected may constitute a liability of the applicable funds The amount if
any of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the City expects such amounts ifany to be immaterial
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C Jointly Governed Organizations and Operating Agreements

Jointly governed organizations are legal entities or other organizations that result from a

contractual arrangement and that are owned operated or governed by two or more participants
as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants retain an

ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility The City is a participant in the

following organizations other than the insurance authority described in the preceding notes

South County Area Transit and San Luis Obispo Regional Transit Authority The City is a

member of these two Joint Powers Agencies formed to provide fixed route and regional transit

services within the member cities and the County The City s obligalion to these enlities is limited
to the assignment of its Local Transportation Fund allocations to the joint powers agencies

The City has the following water treatment and supply agreements

Water Treatment and Facilities Agreement The City has an agreement with the San Luis Obispo
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District wherein the District and The Central
Coast Water Authority constructed and operate a joint water treatment facility and water

conveyance system The Authority financed the plant and system by selling revenue bonds and
in 1997 issued 198 million in refunding revenue bonds The agreement is a takeor pay
obligation and the City is obligated to pay amounts specified in the agreement whether or not
water is treated or delivered The amounts paid by the City are pledged by the Authority for
repayment of the Authoritys debt obligations The City records these payments as operating
expenses in its water enterprise fund

Water Supply Agreement The City has entered into an agreement with the same Water
Conservation District for the purpose of obtaining additional water for municipal purposes The

City is obligated to make payments even if the City fails or refuses to accept water deliveries
The Conservation s source for such additional water supplies is the California State Water
Project SWP The SWP has constructed facilities to extend the California Aqueduct to the
Central Coast and to the facilities owned by the Central Coast Water Authority The City has
recorded as long term prepayments in its water enterprise payments made under this agreement
while the SWP expansion was under construction and prior to its ability to convey water under
the arrangement These prepayments are being amortized to expense as operating expenses
over the term of the agreement

Lopez Dam Agreement This agreement between the Conservation District and the City relates
to the Lopez Dam storage reservoir water treatment plant main conduits and related facilities
built for the primary purpose of providing a municipal water supply to cities in the County This

agreement is also a takeor pay arrangement and the City is obligated to make payments
regardless of water deliveries In 2000 voters in Zone 3 of the District authorized the District to
issue 13 2 million in general obligation bonds to prOVide funds to construct seismic

improvements to the Lopez Dam and facilities The District is to receive such tax revenues
under the voter approved arrangement and is to also receive payments from the City and other

participating governments in amounts sufficient to pay debt service on the bonds and related

operating and capital costs The City records these joint operating costs as expenses in its
water enterprise

36



CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30 2006

5 Other Information Continued

D Public Employees Retirement System

Plan Description The City of Pismo Beach contributes to the California Public Employees
Retirement System PERS and agent multipleemployer public employee defined benefit

pension plan PERS provides retirement and disability benefits annual costof living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries PERS acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by the State statute and City
ordinance Copies of the PERS annual financial report may be obtained from their executive

office 400 P Street Sacramento California 95814

Funding Poicy and Annual Pension COst The contribution requirements of plan members and
the City are established by and may be amended by PERS The City s annual pension cost for

the most recent year and related information for each plan is as follows

Annual Pension Cost and Related Information

Regular Employees Police Employees Fire Employees

Contribution rates

City 36 692 11 819 74 908

Plan members 7 00 900 900

Annual pension cost 603 528 426 606 76 495

Contributions made 603 528 426 606 76495

Actuarial valuation date June 30 2004 June 30 2004 June 30 2004

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age

Amortization method Level pay closed Level pay closed Level pay closed

Remaining amortization period 14 years 14 years 14 years

Asset valuation method 15 year smoothed 15 year smoothed 15 year smoothed

market market market

Actuarial assumptions
Investment rate of return 7 75 7 75 7 75

Projected salary increases 3 25 to 14 45 3 25 to 14 45 3 25 to 14 45

Payroll growth 3 25 3 25 3 25

Inflation 30 3 0 3 0
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D Public Employees Retirement System

Threeyear Trend of Intonnation

Plan
Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension

Year Ending Cost APC Contributed Obligation

6 30 04 46 970 100

6 30 05 231 129 100

630106 603 528 100

6 30 04 240 774 100
6 30 05 388 219 100
6 30 06 426 606 100

6 30 04 20 929 100
6 30 05 25 389 100

630 06 76 495 100

Regular employees

Police employees

Fire Employees

E Restricted Net Assets and Designated Fund Balances

The 8 203 443 restricted amount in the governmental activities and the 677 773 in the business
type activities statement net assets represent amounts to be used only for specific purposes which
restrictions are imposed by laws formal agreements or other governments

Reserved fund balances consisted of the following

General Nonmajor
Purpose Fund Funds
Encumbrances 425 018 245 894
Debt service requirements 582 152
Prepayments primarily insurance 25 249
Internal balances due from other funds 45 303

495 570 828 046

Portions of unreserved fund balances in the fund financial statements may be designated to indicate
tentative plans for financial resource utilization in a future period such as for general contingencies
or capital projects Such plans are subject to change have not been legally authorized and may not
result in expenditures Unreserved designated fund balances were

Purpose General Fund

Contingencies 2 069 630

2 069 630Totals
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F Contractual Commitments

At June 30 2006 there were 48 565 in uncompleted contractual obligations in regard to the City s

wastewater construction project
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CITYOF PISIIO BEACH

Budgetary Comperison Schedule General Fund
For the FiscalVear Ended June 30 2006

BudgelBd Amounta

Variance with Final

Budget Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts Negative

Fund Balance July 1 5 837 301 5 837 301 5 837 301
Resources inflows

Properly taxes 2 745 900 2 745 900 2 937 753 191 853
Sales taxes 2 039 000 2 039 000 2 134 638 95 638
Transient occupancy taxes 4 892 500 4 892 500 5 295 777 403 277
Other taxes 649 000 649 000 738 257 89 257
License and permits 436 000 436 000 496 717 60 717
Fines and forfeits 107 000 107 000 142 390 35 390
Interest and rents 114 900 114 900 256 343 141 443
Intergovemmental 101 680 150 430 104 175 46 255

Charges for services 814 260 814 260 824 702 10 442
Miscellaneous 10 000 10 000 113 379 103 379
Transfers in 305 000 305 000 291 132 13 868

Amounts available for

charges to appropriations 16 052 541 18 101 291 19 172 564 1 071 273

Charges to appropriations
General Government

City Council 231 365 226 436 234 838 8 402
VISitor Information Center 74 724 74 724 74 724
Administration 526 199 626 644 515 154 111490
Human Resources 85 377 100 103 14 726
Legal 184 200 184 200 199 913 15 713
Conference and Vistors Bureau 474 056 490 586 470 067 20 519
Finance 495 116 528 163 486 800 41 363

Nondepartmental 1 014 718 934 343 518 662 415 681
Govemment buildings 350 849 358 105 243 409 114 696

Public Safety
Police 3 948 321 4 131 987 3 891 143 240 844
Fire 1 688 486 1 807 486 1 721 068 86418
Weed Abatement 11 300 11 300 9 036 2 264
L eguards 99 088 99 068 104 468 5 400

Public Worlcs

Park maintenance 747 452 752 252 732 548 19 704

Community Services

Building 455 441 472 242 333 078 139 164
Planning 605 638 729 151 590 131 139 020
Recneation City Supported 206 093 217 957 199 296 18 661
Recreation Fee Supported 67 011 67 011 48 255 18 756
Pismo Beach Veterans hall 33 241 33 241 34 834 1 593
Shell Beach Veterans Hall 18 815 18 815 13 762 5 053
Margo Dodd Pari 2 997 2 997 2 844 153

Engineering 502 780 546 315 528 462 17 853

S18ets
Maintenance and construction 609 776 618 744 557 761 60 983

Transfers out 2 413 629 2 478 179 1 381 693 1 096 486

Total charges to appropriations 14 761 275 15495 323 12 992 049 2 503 274

Fund Balance June 30 3 291 266 2 605 988 6 180 515 3 574 547
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule General Fund

Note to RSI
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Note A Explanation of Difference between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP

Revenues and expenditures

Sources inflows resources

Actual amounts available for appropriation from budgetary
comparison schedule

Differences budget to GAAP

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary
resource but is not a current year revenue for financial reporting
purposes

19 172 564

5 837 301

Transfers in from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources

but are revenues for financial reporting purposes 291 132

Total revenues as reported in the statement of revenues expenditures
and changes in fund balances governmental funds 13 044 131

Usesoutflows of resources

Actual amounts total charges to appropriations from the budgetary
comparison schedule

Differences budget to GAAP

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but

are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes

12 992 049

1 381 693

Total expenditures as reported in the statement of revenues

expenditures and changes in fund balances governmental funds 11 610 356
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Regular Employees Retirement System
Schedule of Funding Progress

June 30 2006

Amounts in Thousands

Actuarial UAAL Excess
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded as a Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability AAL overfunded Funded Ratio Covered of Covered

Date Assets a Entry Age b AAL ba ab Payroll e Payroll ba e

Miscellaneous Plan

6 3012002 7 300 6 779 521 107 7 2 684 19 4

63012003 2 372 879 2 596 967 224 088 91 4 725 020 30 9

6 30 2004 2460 945 2 746 096 285 151 89 6 743 692 38 3
Police Plan

6 3012002 6 715 7 922 1 207 84 80 1 409 85 60

6 3012003 1 083 690 1 218 083 134 393 89 00 184 098 73 00

6 3012004 4424 587 5 383 922 959 335 82 20 575 296 166 80

Fire Plan

6 30 2002 1 151 1411 260 81 60 123 211 38

6 3012003 1 083 690 1 218 083 134 393 8900 184 098 7300

6 3012004 885 550 996 203 110 653 88 90 149 408 74 10

Note to Schedule ofFunding Progress

Prior to 6 3012003 this schedule presents data for the specific plan of the City After 6 3012002 this

schedule presents data for the funded status and funding progress of the entire PERS Risk Pool for the
Plans of the PERS Since the City had less than 100 active members in its plans it is required
to participate in risk pools
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL AND PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

state Gas Taxfund for revenues allocated by the State of California and rastricted as to use for axpenditure
only for straet and highway purposes

Redevelopment Agency Project Fund of the for tax increment revenues restricted for use to redevelopment
activities of the Agency

Redevelopment Agency Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund for the 20 percent set aside of Agancy
incremental property taxes restriCted for use to improving hOUSing for loiv and moderate inCome individuals

Local Transportation Street Fund for revenues allocated to the City undertheTrensportatlon Development Act
and restricted In use to street related purposes

Community Development Block Grant Fund for Federal Grant revenues restricted for specific purposes as
specified In related grant agreements

NoncapUal Grants Fundfor specific grant revenues allocated to the City for operational programs Housing In
Ueu Fee Fund for in lieu tees restrictedfor use to affordable housing

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Civic Center Fund for resources used to make improvements to the CIty s police facllUies

CompUter Systems Fundfor the acquisition and major improvements to the Citys computerized financial and
management systems

Park Development Fund to account for the financing of major improvements to the City park facllUies

CapUsI Projects Fundused to account for major capital Improvements to City facllUies financed by transfers in
from other governmental funds and by state end Federal Cepital purpose grants

Clrculetion Improvement Fund used to account for Impact fees to be used major improvements to the Citys

Street and Highway infrastructure

Impact Fee Fund used toaccount for impactfees tobeused for major capUal improvements to different types
of City facllitles LeewerdlWlndward and FreewaylFoothills Funds used 10account for Improvements to street
systems in these speclfic areas Developer Impact Fee Fund for impact fees to be used for specific capUsI
projects

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

City of Pismo Beach Financlng Authority Fundused to account for the accumulation ofmonies for payment
of prtnclpaland intereston the Series 1992 and 1999 revenue bonds

Indio EI Portal Vlaalla LeewardWindward and South Palisades C and C Funds used to account for speclal
assessments levied and collected for use In paying principal and interest on the related special assessment
bonds

Freeway Foothills Streets 1992 1 1992 2 Hanford Lemoore 19923Streets and SPY91ass Prtce 19924
Ireet Reassessment DistrictS to account for special assessments levied and collected for the specific
purpose of providing monies forlhe payment ofprincipal and Interest on the Financing Authorities 1992
Revenua Bonds

NONMAJORPROP ETARYFUNDS

Pier Enterprise The pier enlerprlsetund Is used to account ier the operations and malntenence ofthe Citys

Pier located on the Ocean Front In downtown Plsmo Beach

Transit Enterprise The transit enterprise fund is used to aCcount for the financial ectlvltles of the Citys

subsidized dlalarlde system



CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Combining Balance Sheets

NonmaJor Governmental Funds

June 30 2006

Special Revenue Funds

Redevelopment
Redevelopment Agency Low Local

State Agency and Moderate Transportation
Gas Tax Project Income Housing Streets

Assets

Cash and investments 16 881 837 970 1 525 113 255 771
Receivables

Accounts

Taxes 9 186
Intergovemmental 30 622 45 803

Interest 601 6 444 16 591 2 740

Special assessments

Total assets 48 104 853 600 1 541 704 304 314

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabiltties

Accounts payable 1 598
Accrued liabilities 308

Depostts
Deferred revenue

Advances from other funds

Total liabilities 308 1 598

Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances 19 144 30 343
Reserved for debt service 211 101
Unreserved

Undesignated 48 104 642499 1 522 252 272 373

Total fund balances 48 104 853 600 1 541 396 302 716

Totalliabiltties and fund balances 48 104 853 600 1 541 704 304 314
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Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds

Community
Development Noncapital Housing in Public Park Capital
Block Grant Grants Lieu Facilities Development Projects

13 135 1 176 428 364 355 418 079

16 600

128 239
1 069 12 096 4 208

14 204 1 188 524 385 163 546 318
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Combining Balance Sheets

NonmaJor Governmental Funds

June 30 2006

Capital Projects

Circulation Freeway Developer
Improvement Impact Fees Foothills Project Impact Fees

Assets

Cash and investments 734 990 1 952 308 3 271 271 527

Receivables

Accounts

Taxes

Intergovernmental
Interest 7 530 14 832 2 783

Special assessments

Total assets 742 520 1 967 140 3 271 274 310

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Deposits
Deferred revenue

Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances

Reserved for encumbrances

Reservedfor debt service

Unreserved

Undesignated 742 520 1 967 140 3 271 274 310

Total fund balances 742 520 1 967 140 3 271 274 310

Total liabilities and fund balances 742 520 1 967 140 3 271 274 310
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Debt Service

Total

Financing Leeward Nonmajor
Authority IndioJEI Portal Vlsalia Windward Reassessments Funds

200 095 85431 80 563 361 959 8 297 876

1 336 17 936

9 186

204 664
1 986 860 825 3 715 76 280

110 000 110 000

202 081 197 627 81 388 365 674 8 715 942

45 116 353
979

2 000
110 000 110 000

5 181 37 166 45 303

110 045 5 181 37 166 274 635

245 894
202 081 87 582 81 388 582 152

5 181 328 508 7 613 261

202 081 87 582 81 388 5 181 328 508 8 441 307

202 081 197 627 81 388 365 674 8 715 942
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Combining Statement ofRevenues Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Special Revenue

Redevelopment
Redevelopment Agency Low Local

State Agency and Moderate Transportation
Gas Tax Project Income Housing Streets

Revenues

Property taxes 570 689

Intergovernmental 171 823 227472
Charges for services

Special assessments
Miscellaneous

Interest 945 23 916 51 641 7 614

Total revenues 172 768 594 605 51 641 235 086

Expenditures
Current

Public safety
Highways and streets 1 000

Community development 97 960 31 380

Capital outlay 62 787
Debt service

Principal 45 000

Interest and fiscal charges 93 253

Total expenditures 236 213 31 380 63 787

Excess of revenues over

under expenditures 172 768 358 392 20 261 171 299

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in 176 737
Transfers out 142 247 176 737 260 000

Total other financing
sources uses 142 247 176 737 176 737 260 000

Net change in fund balances 30 521 181 655 196 998 88 701

Fund balances July 1 17 583 671 945 1 344 398 391417

Fund balances June 30 48 104 853 600 1 541 396 302 716
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Special Revenue I I Capital Projects

Community
Development Noncapital Housing In Public Park Capital
Siock Grant Grants Lieu Facilities Development Projects

105 607 16 600 324 487

249 532 44 780

25 848 79 915

22 3 310 35 971 15 431

22 108 917 285 503 102 659 404 402

2 426

38 751
1 902 137491 1 373 321
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Debt Service

Total

Financing Leeward Nonmajor
Authority Indio EI Portal Visalia Windward Reassessments Funds

570 689
845 989
464 422

36 494 36494
105 977

13 297 1 954 2 235 10 057 254 918

13 297 38448 2 235 10 057 2 278489

2426
316 609

168 091
1 576 001

145 000 25 000 6 000 221 000

222 911 11 591 376 328 131

367 911 36 591 6 376 2 612 258

354 614 1 857 2 235 6 376 10 057 333 769

356 138 1 646 343
1 061 909

356 138 584434

1 524 1 857 2 235 6 376 10 057 250 665

200 557 85 725 79 153 1 195 318 451 8 190 642

202 081 87 582 81 388 5 181 328 508 8441 307

50



CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Gas Tax

Special Revenue Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Intergovernmental
State Gas Tax 160 000 160 000 171 823 11 823

Interest 945 945

Total revenues 160 000 160 000 172 768 12 768

Expenditures
Current

Streets
Street maintenance

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 160 000 160 000 172 768 12 768

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in
Transfers out 160 000 160 000 142 247 17 753

Total other financing sources uses 160 000 160 000 142 247 17 753

Net change in fund balances 30 521 30 521

Fund balance July 1 17 583 17 583 17 583

Fund balance June 30 17 583 17 583 48 104 30 521
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Redevelopment Agency Projects
Special Revenue Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Property taxes
Incremental property taxes 400 000 400 000 570 689 170 689

Interest 5 000 5 000 23 916 18 916

Total revenues 405 000 405 000 594 605 189 605

Expenditures
Current

Redevelopment
Professional services 15 000 15 000 4 160 10 840

Property tax administration 19 000 17 000 24 988 7 988

Payments to other agencies 60 180 106 673 46 492 60 181

Administration 23 912 22 678 22 320 358

Debt service

Principal 45 000 45 000 45 000

Interest 93 303 95 053 93 253 1 800

Total expenditures 256 395 301 404 236 213 65 191

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 148 605 103 596 358 392 254 796

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in

Transfers out 120 000 120 000 176 737 56 737

Total other financing sources uses 120 000 120 000 176 737 56 737

Net change in fund balances 28 605 16 404 181 655 198 059

Fund balance July 1 671 945 671 945 671 945

Fund balance June 30 700 550 655 541 853 600 198 059
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Redevelopment Agency Low and Moderate Income Housing
Special Revenue Fund

BUdgeted Amounts Variance
With Final Budget

Original Final Actual Positive Negative
Revenues

Interest 20 000 20 000 51 641 31 641

Total revenues 20 000 20 000 51 641 31 641

Expendnures
Current

Redevelopment
Administration 14 140 16 078 17 709 1 631
Administrative overhead 13 671 13 671 13 671

Contract services 269 144 269 143 269 143

Total expenditures 296 955 298 892 31 380 267 512

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 276 955 278 892 20 261 299 153

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in 120 000 120 000 176 737 56 737
Transfers out

Total other financing sources uses 120 000 120 000 176 737 56 737

Net change in fund balances 156 955 158 892 196 998 355 890

Fund balance July 1 1 344 398 1 344 398 1 344 398

Fund balance June 30 1 187 443 1 185 506 1 541 396 355 890
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Local Transportation
Special Revenue Fund

BUQgeted Amounts Variance
With Final Budget

Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Intergovernmental
TDA streets 138 655 138 655 146 866 8 211

TDA bikepaths 5 982 5 982 6 858 876

Traffic congestion 36 124 73 748 37 624

Interest 7 614 7 614

Total revenues 144 637 180 761 235 086 54 325

Expenditures
Current

Streets

Professional services 21 000 21 000 1 000 20 000

Capital outlay
Street projects 526 877 176 877 62 787 114 090

Total expenditures 547 877 197 877 63 787 134 090

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 403 240 17 116 171 299 188415

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in 152 000 17 000 17 000

Transfers out 45 000 296 124 260 000 38 124

Total other financing sources uses 107 000 279 124 260 000 19 124

Net change in fund balances 296 240 296 240 88 701 207 539

Fund balance July 1 391417 391 417 391 417

Fund balance June 30 95 177 95 177 302716 207 539
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Community Development Block Grant

Special Revenue Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Intergovernmental
CDBG grants
Interest 22 22
Miscellaneous

Total revenues 22 22

EXpenditures
Capital outlay
Capital projects

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 22 22

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in

Total other finacing sources uses

Net change in fund balances 22 22

Fund balance July 1 2 978 2 978 2 978

Fund balance June 30 2 978 2 978 2 956 22
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

NonCapital Grants

Special Revenue Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance
With Final Budget

Original Final Actual Positive Negative
Revenues

Intergovemmental
State local lawenforcement allocation 100 000 100 000 100 000
State technology grant
Other state grants 87 223 87 223 5 607 81 616

Interest 3 310 3 310

Total revenues 187 223 187 223 108 917 78 306

Expenditures
Current

Public safety
Interagency contracts 87 223 87 223 2 426 84 797

Capital outlay
Police equipment 1 902 1 902 1 902

Total expenditures 89 125 89 125 4 328 84 797

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 98 098 98 098 104 589 6491

Other financing sources uses

Transfers out 120 000 120 000 188 359 68 359

Total other financing sources uses 120 000 120 000 188 359 68 359

Net change in fund balances 21 902 21 902 83 770 61 868

Fund balance July 1 97 974 97 974 97 974

Fund balance June 30 76 072 76 072 14 204 61 868
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Housing In Lieu

Special Revenue Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Charges for services

Housing in Lieu impact fees 250 540 250 540 249 532 1 008

Interest 35 971 35 971

Total revenues 250 540 250 540 285 503 34 963

Expenditures
Current
Community development
Affordable housing 40 000 40 000 38751 1 249

Total expenditures 40 000 40 000 38 751 1 249

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 210 540 210 540 246 752 36 212

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in

Transfers in

Total other financing sources uses

Net change in fund balances 210 540 210 540 246 752 36 212

Fund balance July 1 941 101 941 101 941 101

Fund balance June 30 1 151 641 1 151 641 1 187 853 36 212
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Park Development
Capital Projects Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Posijive Negative

Revenues

Charges for services

Park development fees 243 740 243 740 44 780 198 960

Intergovernmental 16 600 16 600 16 600
Interest 10 000 10 000 15431 5431
Miscellaneous 25 323 25848 525

Total revenues 270 340 295 663 102 659 193 004

Expenditures
Capital outlay
Professional services 10 000 10 000 10 000
Contributions 1 000 1 000 1 000

Capijal construction projects 136 212 187 535 137491 50 044

Total expendijures 147 212 198 535 137491 61 044

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 123 128 97 128 34 832 131 960

Other financing sources uses

Transfers out 175 812 189 180 4 980 184200

Total other financing sources uses 175 812 189 180 4 980 184200

Net change in fund balances 52 684 92 052 39 812 52 240

Fund balance July 1 387 170 387 170 387 170

Fund balance June 30 334486 295 118 347 358 52 240
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

City Wide

Capital Projects Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Intergovernmental
Local agency 220 000 13 581 233 581

State park bonds 65 000 65 000 65 000
Coastal conservatory 17 703 17 703 34 953 17 250

other state grants 10 537 10 537 10 537

State Transportation program 401 673 401 673 49 814 351 859

TEA 1 federal grants 81 530 81 530 123 297 41 767

TEA 3 federal grants 252 000 252 000 252 000

TEA 21 federal grants 60 000 60 000 54 234 5 766

Federal grant 99450 75 770 23 680

High Priority CAPP s 720 000 720 000 720 000

Miscellaneous 84 812 74 133 79 915 5 782

Total revenues 1 693 255 2 002 026 404402 1 597 624

Expenditures
Capital outlay
Government bldgs City hall 204 705 204 705 204 705

Police department 90 000 90 000 90 000

Fire Department 866 088 966 588 166 502 800 086

Pismo Veteran s Hall 27 165 27 165 500 26 665

Parks 89 674 89 674 89 674

Park Development 343 050 565 739 128 772 436 967

Street construction and reconstruction 2 266 625 2 740 649 1 077 547 1 663 102

Total expenditures 3 887 307 4 684 520 1 373 321 3 311 199

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 2 194 052 2 682 494 968 919 1 713 575

Other financing sources uses

Transfers out

Transfers in 2 337 591 2 788 133 880 767 1 907 366

Total other financing sources uses 2 337 591 2 788 133 880 767 1 907 366

Net change in fund balances 143 539 105 639 88 152 193 791

Fund balance July 1 555 565 555 565 555 565

Fund balance June 30 699 104 661 204 467 413 193 791
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Circulation Impact Fee

Capital Projects Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Miscellaneous 214 214
Interest 10 000 10 000 19 873 9 873

Total revenues 10 000 10 000 20 087 10 087

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Street construction 500 500 500

Total expenditures 500 500 500

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 9 500 9 500 19 587 10 087

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in 232 701 232 701
Transfers out

Total other financing sources uses 232 701 232 701

Net change in fund balances 9 500 9 500 252 288 242 788

Fund balance July 1 490 232 490 232 490 232

Fund balance June 30 499 732 499 732 742 520 242 788
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Impact Fee

Capital Projects Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance
With Final Budget

Original Final Actual Positive Negative
Revenues

Charges for services

Impact fees

4th street bridge 19 306 19 306

James way extension 4 645 4 645

Civic Center 13 815 13 815
WWTP upgrade 31 683 31 683

Station three 18 666 18 666
Other impact fees 81 995 81 995

Interest 40 000 40 000 56 439 16 439

Total revenues 40 000 40 000 226 549 186 549

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess defiCiency of revenues over

under expenditures 40 000 40 000 226 549 186 549

Other financing sources uses

Transfers out 1 021 198 1 021 198 289 586 731 612

Total other financing sources uses 1 021 198 1 021 198 289 586 731 612

Net change in fund balances 981 198 981 198 63 037 918 161

Fund balance July 1 2 030 177 2 030 177 2 030 177

Fund balance June 30 1 048 979 1 048 979 1 967 140 918 161

62



CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Freeway Foothills

Capital Projects Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance
With Final Budget

Original Final Actual Positive Negative
Revenues

Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay
Other projects 4 037 4 037 4 037

Total expenditures 4 037 4 037 4 037

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 4 037 4 037 4 037

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in 3 731 3 731 3 731

Total other financing sources uses 3 731 3 731 3 731

Net change in fund balances 306 306 306

Fund balance July 1 3 271 3 271 3 271

Fund balance June 30 2 965 2 965 3 271 306
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Indio EI Portal

Debt Service Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Charges for services

Special assessments 36 160 36 160 36494 334

Interest 1 954 1 954

Total revenues 36 160 36 160 38 448 2 288

Expenditures
Debt service

Principal 25 000 25 000 25 000
Interest and fiscal charges 11 049 11 049 11 591 542

Total expend itures 36 049 36 049 36 591 542

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 111 111 1 857 1 746

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in

Total other financing sources uses

Net change in fund balance 111 111 1 857 1 746

Fund balance July 1 85 725 85 725 85 725

Fund balance June 30 85 836 85 836 87 582 1 746
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Visalia

Debt Service Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive Negative

Revenues

Charges for services

Special assessments

Interest 2 235 2 235

Total revenues 2 235 2 235

Expenditures
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of reven ues over

under expenditures 2 235 2 235

Other financing sources uses

Transfers out

Total other financing sources uses

Netchange in fund balances 2 235 2 235

Fund balance July 1 79 153 79 153 79 153

Fund balance June 30 79 153 79 153 81 388 2 235
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Reassessment Districts

Debt Service Fund

Budgeted Amounts Variance

With final Budge
Original Final Actual Positive Negativ

Revenues

Charges for services

Special assessments

Interest 10 057 10 057

Total revenues 10 057 10 057

Expenditures
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of revenues over

under expenditures 10 057 10 057

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in from Financing Authority
Transfers out to Financing Authority

Total other financing sources uses

Net change in fund balances 10 057 10 057

Fund balance July 1 318451 318451 318451

Fund balance June 30 318451 318451 328 508 10 057
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
June 30 2006

Enterprises

Pier Transit Totals

Assets
Current assets

Cash and investments 2 921 12 191 15 112

Receivables
Interest 108 108

Accounts 785 785

Total current assets 3 706 12 299 16 005

Fixed assets
Land 33 425 33 425

Buildings 102 960 102 960

Improvements 24 397 24 397
Pier 1 922 411 1 922 411

Total fixed assets 2 083 193 2 083 193

Less accumulated

depreciation 881 550 881 550

Netfixed assets 1 201 643 1 201 643

Total assets 1 205 349 12 299 1 217 648

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 3 706 749 4 455

Total current liabilities 3 706 749 4 455

NetAssets
Invested in capital assets

net of related debt 1 201 643 1 201 643
Unrestricted 11 550 11 550

Total net assets 1 201 643 11 550 1 213 193
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Combining Statement ofRevenues Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 3D 2006

Enterprises

Pier Transit Totals

Operating revenues

Other operating revenues 18 216 1 296 19 512

Total operating revenues 18 216 1 296 19 512

Operating expenses
Maintenance and operations 42 046 7 359 49 405

Depreciation and amortization 40 882 40 882

Total operating expenses 82 928 7 359 90 287

Operating income loss 64 712 6 063 70 775

Nonoperating revenues expenses

Operating subsidy 12 000 12 000
Interest revenue 155 155

Total nonoperating revenues

expenses 12 155 12 155

Net income loss before

transfers 64 712 6 092 58 620

Transfers

Transfers in 22 167 22 167

Total transfers 22 167 22 167

Net income loss 42 545 6 092 36 453

Net assets July 1 1 244 188 5 458 1 249 646

Net assets June 30 1 201 643 11 550 1 213 193
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

NonmaJor Proprietary Funds

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Enterprises

Pier Transit Totals

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers 17 984 1 296 19 280

Cash payments to suppliers for

900ds and services 41 506 7 305 48 811

Net cash provided by used for

operatin9 activities 23 522 6 009 29 531

Cash fiows from noncapital financing
activnies

Operating subsidies 12 000 12 000

Transfers in 22 167 22 167

Net cash provided by used for

noncapital financing activities 22 167 12 000 34 167

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest on investments 47 47

Net cash provided by
investing activities 47 47

Net change in cash and cash

equivalents 1 355 6 038 4 683

Cash and cash equivalents July 1 4 276 6 153 10 429

Cash and cash equivalents June 30 2 921 12 191 15 112

Reconciliation of operating income loss to net cash

provided by used for operating activities

Operating income loss 64 712 6 063 70 775

Adjustments to reconcile operating income loss to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation expense 40 882 40 882

Change in assets and liabilities
Decrease increase in receivables 232 232

Increase decrease in accounts payable 540 54 594

Net cash provided by used for operating activities 23 522 6 009 29 531
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Comparative Schedule ofCapital Fixed Assets Used In Governmental Operations
By Source

June 30

2006 2005
Governmental Funds Capital Assets

Land 6 957 294 6 957 294

Buildings 4 271 186 4 157 738

Improvements 4 735 868 4 381 194

Equipment 1 472 709 1 501 149
Vehicles internal service 2 995 284 2 737 644
Infrastructure street system
Right ofway 5 068 528 5 068 528
Pavement system 23 533 552 22 190 071
Medians 73 232 73 232
Curbs and gutters 521 095 521 095
Sidewalks 313 961 313 961
Traffic signals 229 723 229 723
Street lights 1 212 168 1 212 168

Highway 101 interchange 2 726 214 2 726 214
Bridges 26 829 26 829

Infrastructure beach stairways 313 194 313 194
Construction in progress 1 480 168 698 030

Total general fixed assets 55 931 005 53 108 064

Investment in governmental funds capital assets from
General fund 1 920 146 1 920 146
Special revenue funds 2 255407 2 255 407
Contributions 2 165 303 1 227 642
Internal service fund 2 995 284 2 665 217
Capital projects funds 46 594 865 45 039 652

Total investment in capital assets assets 55 931 005 53 108 064
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH

Schedule ofChanges in Capital Assets Used In Governmental Operations
By Source

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Equipment
Vehicles

Right of Way Improvements
and Land Infrastructure Buildings CIP Total Cost

Capital assets July 1 2005 12 025 822 27 606487 4 157 738 9 318 017 53 108 064

Additions from

Contributions 937 661 937 661

General fund

Special revenue funds

Capital projects 405 820 113448 1475 653 1 994 921

Internal service 257 640 257 640

Deduct

Fixed assets retiredltransferred 367 281 367 281

Capital assets June 30 2006 12 025 822 28 949 968 4 271 186 10 684 029 55 931 005
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Schedule ofCapital Assets Used In Governmental Operations

By Function and Activity
June 30 2006

Equipment
Vehicles

Right ofWays Improvements
Function and Activity and land Infrastructure Buildings and CIP Total Cost

General government
General operataions 319 942 1 747 590 3 812 722 5 880 254

Public safety 5 566 1 584 196 505 839 2 095 601

Parks and recreation 4 376 379 939400 5 257 096 10 572 875

Street system 5 068 528 28 636 774 1 108 372 34 813 674

Beach stairway system 313 194 313 194

Open space 2 255 407 2 255407

Total capttalassets 12 025 822 28 949 968 4 271 186 10 684 029 55 931 005
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CITY OF PISMO BEACH
Schedule ofChanges in Capital Assets Used In Governmental Operations

By Function and Activity
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Balance July Balance
Function and Activitv 1 2005 Additions Deletions June 30 2006

General government
General operations 5622 614 368 279 110 639 5 880 254

Public safety 2 095 601 2 095 601

Parks and recreation 10 459427 113 448 10 572 875

Street system 32 361 821 2451 853 34 813 674

Beach stairway system 313 194 313 194

Open space 2 255407 2 255 407

Total capital assets 53 108 064 2 933 580 110 639 55 931 005
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Pismo Beach s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information

as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements note disclosures and

required supplementary information says about the city s overall financial health

I Financial Trends I Schedules 1 4

These schedules contain trend information to help understand how the city s financial performance and well

being have changed over time

I Revenue Capacity I Schedules 58F

These schedules contain information to help assess the city s most significant local revenue sources which

for the City is sales transientoccupancy tax
revenues

The City has also elected to provide revenue capacity
information about its property tax revenues sales tax revenues and its water enterprise revenues and the

City s wastewater enterprise service fee revenues

I Debt Capacity I Schedules 9 13

These schedules present information to help assess the afford ability ofthe city s current levels ofoutstanding
debt and the city s ability to issue additional debt in the future

Demographic and Economic Information Schedules 14 16

These schedules offerdemographic and economic indicatorsto help understand theenvironmentwithinwhich

the city s financial activities take place

I Operating Information I Schedules 17 18

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help understand how the information in the city s

financiai report relates to services the city provides and the activities it performs



Schedule 1
C of Pismo Beach

Net Assele by Component
Last Four Flsca Years

Accrual basis of accounting

For The Fiscal Years Ended June 30

2003 2004 2005 2006

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 25 016 049 27 998 557 30 089 956 46 786 242
Restricted 7 897 227 8 045 195 8 331 842 8 881 216
Unrestricted 7 915 287 6 911 501 7 682 459 13458 298

Total governmental activities net assets 40 828 563 42 955 253 46 104 057 69 125 756

Business type activities
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 11 581 292 14423 785 14 982 938 15 279 814
Restricted 3 367 670 405 194 590 373 677 773
Unrestricted 3 076 327 3 702 199 4 310 707 4 734 016

Total businesstype activities 18 025 289 18 531 178 19864 018 20 691 603

Primary 90vemment Citywide totals
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 36 597 341 42422 342 45 052 894 62 066 056
Restricted 11 284 897 8450 389 8 922 015 9 558 989
Unrestricted 10 991 614 10 613 700 11 993 166 18 192 314

Total primary governmentnet assets 58 853 852 61486 431 65 988 075 89 817 359

Note The City implemented GASS Statement Number 34 in the 2003 fiscal year The Infonnation in this schedule
is therefore set forth prospectively from the yearof implementation
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Schedule 2

City of Pismo Beach

Changes in Net Assets Last Four Fiscal Years

Accrual Basis of Accounting

For The Fiscal YeaEnded June 30

2003 2004 2005 2006

Expenses
Governmental activtlies

General government 2 613 234 2 594 461 2 539424 3 028 986

Police 3 317 869 3 518 246 3 832 070 4 095 962

Fire 1 214 640 1 384 161 1 495 581 1 673 442

Public works 282 628 647 194 719 645 732 548

Streets 1 538 148 1 603 741 1 632 643 1 901 366

Community Services 1477 899 1742 328 1 306 349 2 053 754

Redevelopment and Housing 120 526 108 900 35 018 168 091

Interest on long term debt 414 367 450 991 393 703 324 013

Total governmental activities expenses 10 979 311 12 050 022 11 954 433 13 978 162

Business type activities

Water 2 576 260 2 946 087 3 081 788 3 223 335

Wastewater 2498 867 2 006 687 1 804 309 2 266 259

Pier 94 690 93 325 73 588 82 928

Transit 14495 14450 18 610 7 359

Total business type activities expenses 5 184 112 5 060 529 4 978 295 5 579 881

Total City government expenses 16 163 423 17 110 551 16 932 728 19 558 043

Program Revenues

Governmental activities
Charges for services

General government 318 247 371 936 369459 446 454

Police protection 219 036 255 789 254 525 276477
Fire protection 8 389 67 653 55 942 33 174

Public works 331 858

Streets 516 639 294 297 265 855 143 034

Community Services 926 271 981 657 1 101 284 1 067 802

Redevelopment and Housing 191 559 89 786 413 236 285 503

Operating grants and contributions 586 061 549 856 645 873 629 778

Capitai grants and contributions 1 814 646 1 599 636 1 146 038 1 375 100

Total governmental activities program revenues 4 890 706 4 210 610 4 272 212 4 257 320

Business type activities

Charges for services

Water 2 504 678 2 360 764 2 482 658 2 446 613

Wastewater 1 829 885 2 015 245 2 294407 2 599 567

Pier 11 742 19 021 13 810 18 216

Transit 5 845 4 921 6 886 1451

Operating grants and contributions 11 000 12 000 519 000 12 000

Capital grants andcontributions 543 309 730 636 351 129 370 198

Total business type activities programs revenues 4 906439 5 142 587 5 887 890 5 448 045

Total City government program revenues 9 797 145 9 353 197 9 940 102 9 705 365

Continued

78



Schedule 2 continued
City ofPismo Beach

Changes In Net Assete Last Four Fiscal Years
Accrual Basis of Accounting

For The Fiscal Years Ended June 30

2003 2004 2005 2006
NelExpense Revenue

Governmental activities 6 068 605 7 839 412 7682 221 9 720 842
Businesstype activities 277 673 82 058 689 595 131 836

Total City government 6 366 278 7 757 354 6 992 626 9 852678

General Revenues and Other Changes In
in Net ABsete

Governmental activities

Taxes

Property taxes 1 816 986 1 979 620 2 012 536 2 937 753
Incremental property taxes 361 246 409 142 428 709 570 689
Sales taxes 1 661 091 1 667 519 2 014 060 2 134 638
Transient occupancy taxes 4 342 969 4 652 128 4 921 356 5 295 777
Other taxes 576 629 622 092 692 511 738 257

Unrestricted grants and contributions 513 206 388244 707 015 58 595
Investment earnings 202 692 201 501
Miscellaneous 325 536 5 745 129 044 34 751
Transfers 77 165 41 612 74 206 78 977

Total governmental activities 9 723 190 9 966 102 10 831 025 12 050 938

Business type activities

Special Water Taxes 755 248 465 440 569039 1 038 399
Transfers 77 165 41 612 74 206 78 977

Total businesstype activities 832413 423 828 643 245 959 422

Total City government 10 555 603 10 389 930 11474 270 13 010 360

Change In net assete
Governmental activities 3 634 585 2 126 690 3 148 804 2 330 096
Business type activities 554 740 505 886 1 332 840 827 586

Total City government 4 189 325 2 632 576 4 481 644 3 157 682

NoteThe city implemented GASB Statement Number 34 in the 2003 fiscal year The information in this schedule
is therefore set forth prospectively from the year of implementation
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General Fund

Fiscal
Year Reserved Unreserved

2006 495 570 5 684 945

2005 329 866 5 507 435

2004 1 076426 4 158 720

2003 124 610 6 916 413

Schedule 3

City of Plsmo Beach

Fund Balances Governmental Funds
Last Four Fiscal Years

All Other Governmental Funds

Unreserved reDOrted in
Total

General Special Capital Debt
Fund Reserved Revenue Projects Service

6 180 515 828 048 3 881 329 3 608 605 323 327

5 837 301 969 723 3 172 562 3 729 906 318 451

5235 146 2 058 420 2 035 182 4 125 993

7 041 023 2 022 372 2 470 520 3 647 380

Note The City lmplemeted GABe statement Number 34 In the2003 fiscal year The infonnatlon inthis schedule

is Ulerefore set forth prospectively from the year of implementation
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Schedule 4
City of Plsmo Beach

Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

In Rounded Thousands of Dollars
Modifiedacrual besls of accounting

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Revenues

Taxes 5 750 6 205 6 892 7 480 8 215 8 630 8 759 9 531 10 069 11 677
Licenses and permits 139 342 414 642 495 607 782 747 848 497
Fines and forfeits 73 56 103 106 106 98 92 119 122 142
Charges for services 702 493 562 333 328 391 579 304 884 1 289
Special assessments 36
Intergovernmental 779 842 1 301 943 1 161 1 209 1 229 915 1 317 950
Investment earnings 198 81 133 240 386 266 299 207 307 511
Other revenues 103 205 143 17 481 258 307 190 40 219

Total revenues 7 744 8 224 9 548 9 761 11 172 11459 12 047 12 013 13 587 15 321

Expenditures

General government 1 826 1 903 1 350 1 859 1 991 2 277 2 474 2 304 2 529 2 844
Public safety 2 641 2 727 3 057 3 216 3 516 4 073 4 258 4 655 5 231 5 728
Parks

Planning and
public works 1 252 863 1402 1 015 1 614 2 194 2439 3 267 3 805 3 526
Recreation 153 148 293 420 530 580 679 809 1 007
Capital outlay 133 232 97 139 369 156 290 302 27 1 576
Debt service

Payment to escrowagent
Costs of issuance

Principal 221
Interest 328

Total expenditures 6 005 5 873 6 199 6 649 8 020 9 280 10 140 11 337 12 599 14 223

Excess of revenues

over under

expenditures 1 739 2 351 3 349 3 112 3 152 2 179 1 907 676 988 1 098

Other Financing
Sources Uses
Proceeds from borrowing 4 250 6 935 4 230 8 105
Payments to escrowagent 3 663 6 355
Transfers in 716 664 705 877 1 394 4 296 2 006 1 313 2 552 1 937
Transfers out 331 949 mOl 990 1492 9 234 1 998 1 176 2 433 2 444

Total other financing
sources uses 4 635 285 85 113 98 1 997 575 137 1 869 507

Net change In fund
balances 6 374 2 066 3 284 2 999 3 054 4 176 2 482 813 2 857 591

Debt service as a

percentage of noncapital
expenditures 4 30 7 17 9 77 6 56 5 50 7 00 8 00 7 50 6 00 6 00
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Schedule 5

City of PlsmoBeach
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten FiscalYears
In thousands of dollars

Assessed Taxable Values Estimated Assessed Value
Fiscal Real Personal Total Direct Actual as a Percentage
Year Property Property Totals Tax Rate Taxable Value of Actual Value

19961997 903 581 16404 919 985 1 00 2 282 387 40 31

1997 1998 930 732 18 310 949 042 1 00 2 352 987 40 33

19981999 976 719 18 392 995 111 1 00 2 488 072 40 32

19992000 1 042 995 19 662 1 062 657 1 00 2 635 576 40 32

2000 2001 1 144 892 19 127 1 164 019 100 2 889 554 40 28

2001 2002 1 230 407 21 463 1 251 870 1 00 3 106 679 40 30

2002 2003 1 341 629 22414 1 364 043 1 00 3 366 093 40 28

20032004 1478 818 28 887 1 507 705 1 00 3 738 312 40 33

2004 2005 1 605 642 31 389 1 637 211 100 4 059418 40 33

20052006 1 807 024 24 837 1 831 661 1 00 4 553 041 40 23

Source SLO County AssessorsOffice
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Schedule 6

City of Plsmo Beach

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

For The Last ten Fiscal Years

Rates per 100 ofassessed value

Direct Rate Overlapping Rates

General
Fiscal Basic Obligation School Special
Year Rate Debt Rate Total Districts Distriicts Total

1996 1997 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0000 0 0000 1 0000

1997 1998 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0234 0 0000 1 0234

1998 1999 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0224 0 0000 1 0224

19992000 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0168 0 0000 1 0168

2000 2001 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0188 0 0279 1 0467

2001 2002 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0167 0 0198 1 0365

2002 2003 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0138 0 0191 1 0329

2003 2004 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0325 0 0138 1 0463

2004 2005 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0325 0 0138 1 0463

2005 2006 1 00 0 00 1 00 0 0202 0 0133 1 0335

Note The direct property tax rates can only be changed with specific voter

approval
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Schedule 8

City of Plemo Beach

Property Tax levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected Within The Fiscal Year

of The levy
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Percentage

Ended For The of
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount Levy

1997 1 251 868 1 218 116 97

1998 1 283 349 1 252 589 98

1999 1 348 795 1 293 024 96

2000 1435 500 1412 683 98

2001 1 556 948 1 533 966 99

2002 1 668 959 1 643 259 98

2003 1 754 130 1 730 129 99

2004 1 979 620 1 979 620 100

2005 2 012 536 2 012 536 100

2006 2 937 753 2 937 753 100

Note Source is City of Pismo Beach Tax Collection records and San Luis Obispo County
Assessor records Property taxes are levied and collected pursuant to an arrangement
commonly referred to as the Teeter Plan Under the Teeter Plan the County allocates and
remits to the City the full amount of each years tax levy and the County then retains

any delinquencies as collected by the County
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Schedule 8 A

City ofPismo Beach

Sales Tax Revenue Base Data

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Base Total

City Wide Retail City Revenue

Fiscal Retail Sales Sales Direct Recognized
Year Subject to Tax Tax Rate Tax Rate By the City

1997 116 428 400 7 25 1 00 1 314 381

1998 120 546 000 7 25 1 00 1 366 708

1999 120 156 900 7 25 1 00 1 395 217

2000 132 156 200 7 25 1 00 1 530 857

2001 140 292 800 7 25 1 00 1 623 170

2002 144 422 300 7 25 1 00 1 708 960

2003 150 524 500 7 25 1 00 1 661 091

2004 160 415 900 7 25 1 00 1 867 519

2005 177 224 300 7 25 1 00 2 014 060

2006 185 660 400 7 25 1 00 2 134 638

Note The Citys direct retail sales tax rate is established pursuant to the City s Municipal Code

Any increase in the City s direct tax rate requires voter approval Revenue Base Information

provided by HDL Revenue information from City of Pismo Beach records
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Schedule 8 B1
City of Pismo Beach

Principal Sales Tax Payers Top 25
Last Ten Fiscal Years

In Alphabetical Ordor

2005

Fiscal YeaEnded June 30

2006 2004

Brad s Restaurant
Carters Childrenswear
Central Coast Oil
Cliffs AtShell Beach
F McLintocks
Five Cities Co Brand

Giuseppels Cucina

Jones New York

Levis Outlet
Longs Drug
Marie Callende
Mille s Unocal
Orchard Supply Hardware
Oshkosh B Gosh
Pacific SunwearOutlet
Pancho s Surf Shop

Pieide Seafood
Pismo Beach AM PM
PIsmo Beach Mobile
Ralph s

Rile Aid
Scolari s

Shell Beach Motel
Trailer Hilch RV Center
Van Heusen Direct

7 Eleven
Brad s Restaurant
Cliffs At Shell Beach
Five Cities Chevron
Giuseppe s Coons
Jones New York

Longs Drug
Marie Callenders
F McUntocks
Mllle s Unocal
Orchard Supply Hardware
Pacific Sunwear Outlet
Pancho s Surf Shop
Pierslde Seafood
Pismo Beach AM PM

Rile Aid
Rosa s Ristorante Italiano
Ross
Scolari s

Shell Beach Motel
Trailer Hitch RV Center

Valley Convenience Stores
Van Heusen Direct
Wall s Mobil
Yanagi Sushi Grill

7 Eleven
Brad s Restaurant
Cliffs At Sheli Beach
F McLintocks
Five Cities Chevron

Giuseppe s Cucina

Jones New York
Levis Outlet
Longs Drug
Marie Callenders
Mille s Unocal
Orchard Supply Hardware
Pacific Sunwear Outlet
Panchos Surf Shop
Pierside Seafood
Pismo Beach AM PM

Rite Aid
Scolari s

Shell Beach Motel

Spiash Caf
Spyglass Shell
Trailer Hitch RV Center
Valley Convenience Stores
Van Heusen Direct
Walt s Mobil

Fiscal YeaEnded June 30

2003
Brad s Restaurant
Carters Childrenswear
Central Coast Oil
Cliffs N Shell Beach
F McLintocks
Giuseppe s Cuelna
Levis Outlet By Most

Longs Drug
Marie Callenders
Millers Unocal
Orchard Supply Hardware
Oshkosh B Gosh
Pacific Sunwear Outlet
Pancho s Surf Shop
Pierside Seafood
Pismo Beach AM PM
Pismo Beach Mobile

Ralphs

Rile Aid

Rosa s Ristorante Italiano
Scolari s

Sheil Beach Motel
Spyglass Restaurant
Trailer Hitch RV Center
Van Heusen Direct

2002
Best Western Shorecliff Lodge
Brad s Restaurant
Central Coast Oii
Cliffs at Shell Beach
Coco s

Dennys

Giuseppe s Cucinas
Levis Outlet
Longs Drug
Marie Callenders
F McLintocks
Miile s Unocal
Orchard Supply Hardware
PaancSunwearOuUet
Ponchos Surf Shop
Pierside Seafood
Plsmo Beach AM PM
Ralph s

Rite aid
Ross s Ristorante Italiano
Scolari s

Spy Glass Restaurant
TraiierHttch RV Center
Van Heusen Direct
Walrs Mobil

2001
Best Westem Shoreciiff Lodge
Brad s Restaurant
Cliffs at Shell Beach
Coco s

Denny s

Giuseppe s Cucina
Levis Outlet

Longs Drug
Marie Callenders
F McLintocks
MiII s Unocal
Orchard Suppiy Hardware
Ponchos SUrf Shop
Pierside Seafood
Pismo Beach AM PM
Ralph s

Rile aid
Rosa s Ristorante Italiano
Scolari s

Spy Glass Charon

Spyglass Shell

Tommy Hilfiger
TrailerHitch RV Center
Van Heusen Direct
Waifs Mobil

2000

Albertson s

Best Westem Shorecliff Lodge
Brad s Restaurant
Cliffs at Shell Beach

Coastal RV Brokers

Coco s

F McLlntocks

Giuseppes Cucina
Levis Outlet

Longs Drug
Marie Callenders
Mikosa Factory Store
MIlIe s Unocal
Orchard Supply Hardware
Ponchos Surf Shop
Pterside Seafood
Plsmo Beach AM PM
Pismo Beach Mobile
Ralph s

Rosa s Ristorante Italiano
Scolari s

Spy Glass Chevron

Spyglass Shell
Trailer Hitch RVCenter
Van Heusen Direct
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1999
Albertson s

Best Westem Shorecliff Lodge
Brad s Restaurant
Cliffs Resort Hotel Restaurant
Coco s

Dennys

Factory Brand Shoes

Giuseppes Cucina
Levis Outlet

Longs Drug
Marie Callenders
F McLintocks
Millers Unocal
Orchard Supply Hardware
Ponchos Surf Shop

Pierskle Seafood
Pismo Beach AM PM
Rile Aid
Scolan s

Spyglass Restaurant
Spyglass Shell
Trader Nicks

Trailer Hitch RV Center
Van Heusen Direct

Walrs Mobil



Schedule 8 B 1

City of Plsmo Beach
PrincipalSales Tax Payers Top 25

Last Ten Flecal Years
In Alphabetical Order

1998

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

1997
Albertson s

Best Western Shorecliff Lodge
Brad s Restaurant
Cliffs Resort Hotel Restaurant
Coaslal RV Brokers
Coco s

Giuseppe s Cucina
Levis Outlet
Longs Dru9
Marie Callenders
F MeLlnlocks
Mlkasa Factory store
Millers Unocal

Orchard Supply Hardware
Ponchos Surf Shop
Pismo Beach AM PM
Rite Aid
Scolari s

Spyglass Chevron

Spyglass Shell
Trader Nicks
Trailer Hitch RV Center
Van Heusen Direct
Von s Misallocation
Walrs Mobil

Albertson s

Best Western ShorecHff Lodge
Brad s Restaurant
Cliffs Resort Hotel Restaurant
Dennys

Giuseppes COOna
Jones New York
Levis Outlet

Lon9s Dru9
Marie Callenders
F McUntocks
Mlkasa Fadory Store
Millers Unocal

Orchard Supply Hardware
Ponchos Surf Shop
Pappys

Pierside Seafood
Pismo Beach AM PM
Rite Aid
Spy Glass Chevron
Spyglass Shell
Trailer Hitch RV Center
Van Heusen Direct
Von s Misallocation
Walt s Mobil

Note Principal Sales Tax payers provided by HDL
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Schedule 8 C

City of Pismo Beach
Transient Occupany Tax Revenue Base Data

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Base City Revenue

Fiscal Room Revenues Direct Recognized
Year Subject to Tax Tax Rate By the City

1997 29 595 250 10 00 2 959 525

1998 29 903 170 10 00 2 990 317

1999 34 459 930 10 00 3445 993

2000 37 405 450 10 00 3 740 545

2001 41 522 580 10 00 4 152 258

2002 42 922 640 10 00 4 292 264

2003 43 429 690 10 00 4 342 969

2004 46 521 280 10 00 4 652 128

2005 49 213 560 10 00 4 921 356

2006 52 954 765 10 00 5 295476

Note The transient occupancy tax can only br changed by approval of the voters and
the rate was increased in 1992 Revenue information provided by City of Pismo Beach
records
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Schedule 8 0

City ofPlsmo Beach

Transient Occupancy Tax Principal Payers and Other Data

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Transient Occupancy Tax Revenues

In Dollars

Concentration By Hotel Size

City Wide Average Based on Number of Rooms

Fiscal Occupany Daily Room Number Hotels Number Hotels
Year Rate Rates 50 or More Rooms Under 50 Rooms

2004 No Data No Data 3 926 052 338 305

19 17
2005 No Data No Data 4 159 280 474 156

22 19
2006 No Data No Data 4482 261 525 028

20 20

Note

Data not available for City Wide Occupancy Rate and Average Daily Room Rates
Data not available for number of rooms prior to 2003 04 fiscal year
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Schedule 8 0 1

City of Pismo Beach

Principal Transient Occupancy Tax Payers Top Ten
Last Ten FiscalYears
In Alphbetlcal Order

2005

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

20042006

Cliffs of Shell Beach

Cottage Inn
Kon Tiki Motel
Pismo Coast Village
Pismo Lighthouse Suites

Sandesstle Inn

Seacnast Motel
Saaventure Motel
Shorecliff Inn

Spyglass Inn Motel

Cliffs of Shell Beach

Cottage Inn
Kon Tiki Motel
Oxford Suites Resort
Pismo Coast Village
Pismo Lighthouse Suites
Sandesstle Inn
Seacrest Motel
Seaventure Motel
Shorecliff Inn

Cliffs of Shell Beach

Cottage Inn
Kon Tiki Motel

Oxford Suites Resort
Pismo CoastVillage
Pismo Ughthouse Suites
Sandesstle Inn

Seacnest Motel
Seaventure Inn
Shorecliff Inn

2001

Fisesl Years Ended June 30

2000

2003

Cliffs of Shell Beach

Cottage Inn
Kon Tiki Motel
Oxford Suites Resort
Pismo Coast Village
Sandesstle Inn
Seacrest Motel
Seaventure Motel
Shorecliff Inn

Spyglass Inn Motel

2002

Cliffs ofShell Beach

Cottage Inn
Kon Tiki Motel
Oxford Suites Resort
SandessUe Inn
Seacrest Motel
Seaventure Motel
Sheiter Cove Motel
Shorecliff Inn

Spyglass Inn Motel

Cliffs of Shell Beach

Cottage Inn
Kon Tiki Molel
Oxford Suites Resort
Pismo CoastVillage
SandessUe Inn
Seacrest Motel
Seaventure Motel
Shorecliff Inn

Spyglass Inn Motel

1998

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

1997

No deta available No data available

Cliffs of Shell Beach

Cottage Inn
Kon Tiki Motel
Oxford Suites Resort
Pismo Coast Village
Sandesstle Inn
Seacrest Motel
Seaventure Motel
Shorecliff Inn

Spyglass Inn Motel

Note Principal Transient Occupancy Tax Payers provided by CityofPismo Beach records
Information for fiscal years 1997 and 1998 is unavailable
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1999

Cliffs of Shell Beach
Kon Tiki Motel
Oxford Suites Resort
Pismo CoastVillage
Sandesslle Inn

Seacrest Motel
Saaventure Motel
Shelter Cove Motel
Shorecliff Inn

Spyglass Inn Motel



Schedule 8 E

City of Plsmo Beach

Water and Sewer Rates for Single Family Residents

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Sewer

Monthly Rate Monthly Rate

Fiscal Base Per 1000 Base Per 1000

Year Rate Gallons Rate Gallons

1997 5 91 0 75 13 56

1998 6 01 0 76 13 79

1999 7 83 0 77 14 04

2000 9 54 1 13 14 32

2001 9 54 1 13 17 18

2002 9 79 1 16 18 13

2003 10 08 1 19 19 99

2004 10 30 1 22 22 04

2005 10 77 1 27 24 00

2006 11 63 1 38 25 61

Source

City of Pismo Beach Financial System Rate Records

Sewer rate is based on Fixed Rate only
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Schedule 8 F

City of Pismo Beach

Water andWastewater Principal Payel1l Revenue Concentration Data
Last Ten FiscalYears

Water Revenue Concentration Data

Clase of Customer

Single Family Non Residential Construction

Revenue in Dollars and Number of Customers
Fiscal
Yea Totals

1997 No data available

1998 Nodata available

1999 No data available

2000 596 541 581 577 10 686 1 188 804
3 335 687 62 4 084

2001 546 795 501 820 9 265 1 057 880
3 358 659 80 4 097

2002 555 776 506 273 11 818 1 073 867
3 411 659 79 4 149

2003 580 369 516419 13 488 1 110 276
3 474 663 66 4 203

2004 597 470 529 188 19 818 1 146 476
3 534 683 69 4 286

2005 589 014 538 536 12 774 1 140 324
3 592 699 50 4 341

2006 609 897 561 182 11 755 1 182 834
3607 709 61 4 377

WastewaterRevenue Concentration Data

Class of Customer

Residential Othe Residentiai HoteVMotel Commercial Other

Revenue in Dollars and Number of Customers
Fiscal Total
Yea Revenue

1997 Nodata available

1998 No data available

1999 No data available

2000 418438 127 181 197 898 262 542 76 807 1 082 866
3 286 294 41 216 9 3 846

2001 457 640 137 320 244411 292 881 62 344 1 194 596
3 341 292 41 216 7 3 897

2002 535 212 157 021 269 222 343 965 71 291 1 376 711
3 396 292 38 218 8 3 952

2003 595 831 168 192 292 523 364 878 69488 1 490 912
3 460 293 38 218 7 4 016

2004 667 682 190 403 324 062 366 397 76 545 1 625 089
3 521 294 37 233 8 4 093

2005 746 381 236 870 344 788 418 290 95 837 1 842 186
3 580 292 38 245 7 4 162

2006 796 798 254 830 366 812 522 817 96 410 2 037 667
3 595 296 37 249 8 4 185
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Schedule 8 F 1

City of Pismo Beach

Principal Water Sale Purchaaers Top Ten
Last Ten Fiscal Years

In Alphbetlcal Order

2005

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

20042006

Cliffs of Shell Beach
Hacienda Del Pismo

Kon Tiki
Motel 6
Oxford Suites
Pismo Lighthouse Suites
Plsmo Mobile Hm Pk

Seacrest Motel

Seaventure Motel
Shorecliff Lodge

Cal Trans
Cliffs of Shell Beach
Hacienda Dei Pismo

KonTiki
Lucia Mar School Dist

Motel 6
Oxford Suites

PismoMobile Hm Pk

Seacrest Motel
Shorecliff Lodge

Cliffs of Shell Beach
Hacienda Del Pismo
Kon Tiki

Motel 6

Oxford Suites
Pismo Lighthouse Suites

Pismo Mobile Hm Pk

Pismo RV Park

Sea crest Motel
Shorecliff Lodge

2001

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

2000

2003

Cliffs of Shell Beach

Hacienda Del Pismo

Kon Tiki

Motel 6
Oxford Suites
Pismo Lighthouse Suites
Plsmo Mobile Hm Pk

Plsmo RV Park

Seacrest Motel
Shorecliff Lodge

2002

Cliffs of Shell Beach

Hacienda Del Pismo

Kon Tiki
Motel 6
Oxford Suites

Pismo lighthouse Suites
Pismo Mobile Hm Pk
Pismo RV Park
Seacrest Motel
Shorecliff Lodge

Cliffs of Shell Beach
Hacienda Del Pismo
Kon Tiki

Motei6
Oxford Suites

Plsmo Mobile Hm Pk

Pismo RV Park

Seacrest Motel
Shorecliff Lodge
Whalers Inn

1998

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

1997

Cliffs of Shall Beach
Hacienda Del Pismo
Kon TIki

Motel 6

Oxford Suites

Pismo Mobile Hm Pk
Pismo RV Park

Seacrest Motel

Shorecliff Lodge
Whalers Inn

Cliffs of Shell Beach
Hacienda Del Pismo

Kon Tiki

Motel 6
Oxford Suttes
PismoMobile Hm Pk
Pismo RV Park

Seacrest Motel

Shonacliff Lodge
Whalers Inn

Cliffs of Shell Beach
Hacienda Del Pismo
Kon Tiki

Motel 6
Oxford Suttes
Pismo Mobile Hm Pk

Pismo RV Park

Seacnast Motel

Shorecliff Lodge
Whalers Inn
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1999

Cliffs of Shell Beach
Hacienda Del Pismo
Kon Tiki

Motel 6
Oxford Suites

Pismo Mobile Hm Pk
Pismo RV Park

Seacnast Motel

Shonacliff Lodge
Whalers Inn
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Schedule 10

City ofPlsmo Beach

Ratios ofGeneral Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Percentage of

General Lease Tax Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Revenue Allocation Value of Per

Year Bonds Bonds Bonds Total Property Capita

1997 6 795 000 6 795 000 0 74 826 14

1998 6 700 000 6 700 000 0 71 809 67

1999 6 710 000 6 710 000 0 67 798 81

2000 6 655 000 6 655 000 0 62 778 27

2001 4 800 000 1 795 000 6 595 000 0 57 764 64

2002 4 680 000 1 740 000 6420 000 0 51 740 06

2003 4 550 000 1 700 000 6 250 000 0 45 71947

2004 4420 000 1 655 000 6 075 000 0 40 69747

2005 4 285 000 1 610 000 5 895 000 0 36 676 34

2006 4 140 000 1 565 000 5 705 000 0 31 658 62

Note Debt service on the lease revenue bonds and tax allocation bonds is financed by the

use of general governmental financial resources available in the general fund and special revenue
funds of the City
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Schedule 11

City of PI moBeach

Direct and Overtapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30 2006

Governmental Unit

Estimated
Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage Overtapplng
Outstanding Applicable Debt

42 085 000 5 784 2434 196
135 199 398 6 784 7 819 933

2 955 000 5 767 170 415
7 695 000 16 986 1 307 073

11 731 617

12 260 000 29 614 3 630 676
44461 169 16 986 7 552 174

85 000 100 00 85 000

11 267 851

4 140 000 100 00 4 140 000

27 139 468

OVERLAPPING DEBT REPAID WITH PROPERTY TAXES

San Luis Obispo County Certificates of Participation
San Luis Obispo County Pension Obligations
San Luis Obispo Community College District Certificates of Participation
Lucia Mar Unified School District Certificates of Participation

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT REPAID WITH PROPERTY TAXES

OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESMENT DEBT

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone No 3

Lucia Mar Unified School District
CIIy of Plsmo Beach 1915 Act Bonds

TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT

CITY DIRECT DEBT GOVERNMENTAL ONLY
City of Plsmo Beach General Fund Obligations

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

Source California Municipal Statistics Inc
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Fiscal
Year

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Schedule 12

City of Pismo Beach
Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Debt

Applicable
Total Debt To Limit as

Debt Applicable Percentage
Limit To Limit of Debt Limit

34 499436 0

35 589 046 0

37 316 678 0

39 849 654 0

43 650 716 0

46 945 109 0

51 151 604 0

56 538 960 0

61 395 387 0

68 754 189 0

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2006

Assessed value 1 833 445 041

Conversion Percentage 25 25

Adjusted Assessed Valuation 458 361 260

15Debt Limit Percentage 15

Debt Limit 68 754 189

Less debt applicable to limit
General obligation bonds

Total debl applicable to limit

legal debt margin 68 754 189

Total debt applicable to the limit as a percentage of debt limit 0

The Govemment Code of the State of California provides for a iegal debt limit of
15 of gross assessed valuation However this provision was enacted when
assessed valuation was based upon 15 of market value Effective with the
1981 82 fiscal year each parcel is now assessed at1 00 of market value as of
the most recent change in ownership for that parcel The computations shown
above reflect a conversion of assessed valuation data for each fiscal year from the
current full valuation perspective to the 25 level that was in effect at the time that
the legal debt margin was enacted by the State of Califomia for local governments
located within the State

Source California Municipal Statistics
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Fiscal
Year

1997

1998
1999
2000

2001
2002

2003
2004
2005

2006

2005
2006

Schedule 13
City of Plsmo Beach

Pledged Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Special AssessmentBonds

Special Capital Debt Service

Assessment Impact
Collections Fees Plincipal Interest Coverage

496 620 303 000 197 166 0 99

500 153 318 000 197 166 0 97

449713 319 000 170 864 0 92
338 390 449 000 130 781 0 58

332 520 249 000 103 525 0 94

265735 404 552 76487 0 55
254 659 214 000 29 597 1 05
243 071 236 000 30452 0 91
45 447 31 000 10403 1 10

36494 31 000 8 370 0 93

2004 Revenue BondS
Wastewater Capitai Less Net Debt Service

Service Impact Operating Available

Revenues Fees Expenses Revenue Plinicpal Interest Coverage

2 214 107 1 477 945 736 162 45 000 256 109 2 44
2 424 053 1 646 359 777 694 155 000 300405 1 71

Note Wastewater revenues include service fees only
Data for wastewater shown in fiscal 2005 and thereafterwhen proceeds of State of California
SRF loan firstwhere drawn down Operatin9 expenses exclude depreciation
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Schedule 14

City of Pismo Beach

Demographic and Economic Statistics

For The Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita
Fiscal Personal Personal Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Rate

1997 8 225 167 847 575 20407 4 30

1998 8 275 168 867 925 20 407 3 80

1999 8400 171 418 800 20 407 3 00

2000 8 551 263 670 085 30 835 340

2001 8 625 265 951 875 30 835 340

2002 8 675 267 493 625 30 835 3 90

2003 8 687 267 863 645 30 835 3 90

2004 8 710 268 572 850 30 835 3 80

2005 8 716 268 757 860 30 835 3 50

2006 8 662 267 092 770 30 835 3 20
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Schedule 15

City of Pismo Beach

Principal Employers Ten Largest
Last Fiscal Year

FiscalYear Ended June 30 2006

Percentage
Number otTotal City

Employer Employees Rank Employment

The Cliffs of Shell Beach 192 1 4 17

McClintock s 130 2 2 83

City of Pismo Beach 125 3 2 72

Keller Williams 120 4 2 61

U S Postal Service 100 5 2 17

United Staffing Associates 88 6 1 91

Steame s 85 7 1 85

Pelican Pointe 83 8 1 80

Brad s Restaurant 75 9 1 63

Sea Venture 75 10 1 63

Totals 1073 23 33

Note Information about principal employerswasnot previously provided by the
C y in the statistical section of its Compehensive Annual Financial Report The
C y implemented GASB Statement Number 44 in the 2006 fiscal year and
therefore information in this schedule is being provided prospectively from the
year of implementation Total City of Pismo Beach Employment for 2006 is 4 600
per the State of California website
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Schedule 16

City 01 Plemo Beach

Full Time Equivalent City Government Employees by FunctionProgram
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full TIme Eaulvalent EmploYees as of June 30

Functlon Proaram 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

General Qovemment

Administration 3 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 35 4 5 5 5 5

City council 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

City altomey Contract 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

CVB 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Administrative Services 3 7 3 7 6 2 6 2 6 7 6 7 7 7 7 7

Note The City contracted with CDF inFY 2001 02 therefore no staffing is listed foryears thereafter
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Schedule 17

City of Pismo Beach
Operating Indicators by Function Program

Last 19n Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

Function ProQram 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Police

Physical arrest No data No data No data No data 171 555 736 799 748 590 ITraffic violations No data No data No data No data 2 587 1 825 2 036 2 350 1 865 1 052

Fire

Emergency responses No data NO data No data No data No data 978 870 834 987 946
Fires extin uished No data No data No data No data No dala 51 22 41 36 34

272 335 286 255 312 259 331 323 279 254 ISuildin pennits issued

Public works
I Miles streets resurfaced 1 75 0 07 1 20 447 0 07 0 10 I

Parks and Recreation
Number of facility rentals no data no data no data no data no data no data nodata no data no data JJNumber of class admissions no data no data no data no data no data no data no data no data no data 385

Water
Number new connections no data no data no data no data no data no data no data no data no data 33

Daily average water 1 89 1 89 1 89 1 90 1 90 2 00 1 90 1 90 1 90 1 90

production in MGD
Daily average water 1 70 1 70 1 70 1 80 180 1 80 1 70 1 70 1 70 1 70
consumotion in MGD

Wastewater
Number new connections no data no data no data no data no data no data no data no data no data 20

Daily average treatment 105 0 97 1 24 1 11 1 14 1 11 1 05 1 06 1 13 1 18 Iin millions allons MGD

Note
Police infonnation unavailable prior to fiscal year 2001
Fire infonnation unavailable prior to fiscal year 2002
Park and Recreation infonnation unavailable prior to fiscal year 2006
Water and Wastewater connections data not able to locate prior 10 2006
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Note

Wastewater numberof connections unavailable prior to fiscal year2000
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APPENDIX C 
 

FORM OF THE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
 
This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”), dated as of April 1, 2007, is 

made and entered into by and between the City of Pismo Beach (the “City”) and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as Dissemination Agent (the “Dissemination Agent”), in connection with the issuance by the 
Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority (the “Issuer”) of its $5,185,000 Series 2007A Lease Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to an Indenture, dated as of April 1, 
2007 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Issuer and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the 
“Trustee”). The City and the Dissemination Agent covenant and agree as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being executed 

and delivered by the City and the Dissemination Agent for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners 
of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with the Rule (as defined 
below). 

 
SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture, which apply to 

any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the 
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

 
“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the City pursuant to, and as described 

in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 
“Beneficial Owner” shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or 

consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through 
nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal 
income tax purposes. 

 
“Disclosure Representative” shall mean the Director of Administrative Services of the City or his or 

her designee, or such other officer or employee as the City shall designate in writing to the Dissemination 
Agent from time to time. 

 
“Dissemination Agent” shall mean U.S. Bank National Association, acting in its capacity as 

Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the City 
and which has filed with the City a written acceptance of such designation. 

 
“Listed Event” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 
“National Repository” shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information 

Repository for purposes of the Rule. The National Repositories currently approved by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission are set forth on the SEC website located at www.sec.gov/consumer/nrmsir.htm. 

 
“Official Statement” shall mean the Official Statement relating to the Bonds, dated April 4, 2007. 
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“Participating Underwriters” shall mean any or all of the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

 
“Repository” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository. 
 
“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 
 
“State” shall mean the State of California. 
 
“State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State as a 

state repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. As of the date of this Disclosure Certificate, there is no State Repository. 

 
“Trustee” means U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee with respect to the Bonds, and any 

successor thereto. 
 
SECTION 3.     Provision of Annual Reports. 
 
(a) The City shall cause the Dissemination Agent, not later than nine (9) months after the end 

of the City’s Fiscal Year, commencing with the report for the 2006-07 Fiscal Year, to provide to each 
Repository an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure 
Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents 
comprising a package, and may include by reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this 
Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the City may be submitted 
separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the 
Annual Report if they are not available by that date. If the City’s fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of 
such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

 
(b) Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) for 

providing the Annual Report to Repositories, the City shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination 
Agent and the Trustee (if the Trustee is not the Dissemination Agent). If by such date, the Trustee has not 
received a copy of the Annual Report, the Trustee shall contact the City and the Dissemination Agent to 
determine if the City is in compliance with the first sentence of this subsection (b). The City shall provide a 
written certification with each Annual Report furnished to the Dissemination Agent and the Trustee to the 
effect that such Annual Report constitutes the Annual Report required to be furnished by it hereunder. The 
Dissemination Agent and Trustee may conclusively rely upon such certification of the City and shall have 
no duty or obligation to review such Annual Report. 

 
(c) If the Trustee is unable to verify that an Annual Report has been provided to Repositories 

by the date required in subsection (a), the Trustee shall send a notice to each Repository or to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board and the State Repository, if any, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit 
A. 

 
(d) The Dissemination Agent shall: 
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(i) determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the name 
and address of each National Repository and the State Repository, if any; and 

 
(ii) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the City, file a report with the City 

certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, stating 
the date it was provided and listing all the Repositories to which it was provided. 
 
(e) Any filing under this Disclosure Certificate may be made solely by transmitting such filing 

to the Texas Municipal Advisory Council (the “MAC”) as provided at http://www.disclosureusa.org unless 
the United States Securities and Exchange Commission has withdrawn the interpretative release to the 
MAC dated September 7, 2004. 

 
SECTION 5. Content of Annual Report. The City’s Annual Report shall contain or incorporate by 

reference the following: 
 
(a) Financial information including the general purpose financial statements of the City for the 

preceding Fiscal Year, prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants. If audited financial information is not available by the time the Annual Report is required to 
be filed pursuant to Section 4(a) of the Indenture, the financial information included in the Annual Report 
may be unaudited, and the City will provide audited financial information to each Repository as soon as 
practical after it has been made available to the City. 

 
(b) Operating data, including the following information with respect to the City’s preceding 

Fiscal Year (to the extent not included in the audited financial statements described in paragraph (a) above): 
 
 (i) Outstanding indebtedness and lease obligations; 
 

(ii) General fund budget and actual results; 
 
(iv) Assessed valuations; and 
 
(v) Largest local secured taxpayers. 

 
(c) Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other 

documents, including official statements of debt issues of the City or related public entities, which have 
been submitted to each of the Repositories or to the Securities and Exchange Commission. If the document 
incorporated by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The City shall 
clearly identify each other document so incorporated by reference. 

 
SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 
 
(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the City shall give, or cause to be given, in a 

timely manner, to the MSRB, the State Repository, if any, and each Participating Underwriter, notice of the 
occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material: 
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1. principal and interest payment delinquencies. 
2. non-payment related defaults. 
3. modifications to rights of Bondholders. 
4. optional, contingent or unscheduled bond calls. 
5. defeasances. 
6. rating changes. 
7. adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. 
8. unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties. 
9. unscheduled draws on the credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties. 
10. substitution of the credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform. 
11. release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds. 

 
(b) The Trustee shall, within one (1) Business Day of obtaining actual knowledge of the 

occurrence of any of the Listed Events, contact the City, inform the City of the Listed Event and request 
that the City promptly notify the Dissemination Agent in writing whether or not to report such Listed Event 
pursuant to Subsection(e) of this Section. For the purposes of this Disclosure Certificate “actual knowledge” 
means actual knowledge at the corporate trust office of the Trustee by an officer of the Trustee with 
responsibility for matters related to the administration of the Indenture. 

 
(c) The Trustee shall, within one (1) Business Day of obtaining actual knowledge of the 

occurrence of any of the Listed Events, or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, contact the 
Disclosure Representative, inform such person of the event, and request that the City promptly notify the 
Dissemination Agent in writing whether or not to report the event pursuant to subsection (f) and promptly 
direct the Trustee whether or not to report such event to the Bondholders. In the absence of such direction 
the Trustee shall not report such event unless otherwise required to be reported by the Trustee to the 
Bondholders under the Indenture. The Trustee may conclusively rely upon such direction (or lack thereof). 
For purposes of this Disclosure Certificate, “actual knowledge” of the occurrence of such Listed Events 
shall mean actual knowledge by the officer at the corporate trust office of the Trustee with regular 
responsibility for the administration of matters related to the Indenture. The Trustee shall have no 
responsibility to determine the materiality of any of the Listed Events. 

 
(d) Whenever the City obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event, whether 

because of a notice from the Dissemination Agent pursuant to subsection (b) or otherwise, the City shall as 
soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

 

 
(e) If the City has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event would be 

material under applicable federal securities laws, the City shall promptly notify the Dissemination Agent in 
writing. Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to 
subsection (g). 

 
(f) If in response to a request under subsection (b), the City determines that the Listed Event 

would not be material under applicable federal securities laws, the City shall so notify the Dissemination 
Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection 
(g). 
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(g) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the City to report the occurrence of a 
Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall promptly file a notice of such occurrence with the 
Repositories. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)(4) and (5) 
need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given 
to Holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the Indenture. 

  
SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The City’s obligations under this 

Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all 
of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the City shall give notice 
of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

 
SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The City hereby appoints U.S. Bank National Association as 

the initial Dissemination Agent and may, from time to time, discharge, appoint or engage any other 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may 
discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The 
Dissemination Agent agrees to perform only those duties of the Dissemination Agent specifically set 
forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and no implied duties, covenants or obligations shall be read into this 
Disclosure Certificate against the Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible 
in any manner for the form or content of any notice or report prepared by the City pursuant to this 
Disclosure Certificate. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to prepare any information report nor 
shall the Dissemination Agent be responsible for filing any report not provided to it by the City in a timely 
manner and in a form suitable for filing. The Dissemination Agent may resign by providing thirty days 
written notice to the City and the Trustee. 

 
SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 

Certificate, the City may amend this Disclosure Certificate, (and the Trustee and Dissemination Agent shall 
agree to any amendment so requested by the City), provided, neither the Trustee nor the Dissemination 
Agent shall be obligated to enter into any such amendment that modifies or increases its duties or 
obligations hereunder and any provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the 
following conditions are satisfied: 

 
(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, or 5(a), it may only 

be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, 
change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or 
the type of business conducted; 

 
(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of 

nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the 
original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as 
well as any change in circumstances; and 

 
(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Beneficial Owners in the same 

manner as provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of Beneficial 
Owners, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of the Trustee or nationally recognized bond counsel, materially 
impair the interests of the Beneficial Owners. 
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In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the City shall 
describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative 
explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change 
of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by 
the City. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 
financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under 
Section 5(c), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made shall present a comparison 
(in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on 
the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 
principles. 

 
SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 

prevent the City from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in 
this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any 
Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this 
Disclosure Certificate. If the City chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of 
occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, 
the City shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in 
any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

 
SECTION 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the City or the Trustee to comply with any 

provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the Dissemination Agent may (and, at the request of any 
Participating Underwriter or the Holders of at least 25% aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds, 
shall but only to the extent funds in an amount satisfactory to the Trustee have been provided to it or it has 
been otherwise indemnified to its satisfaction from any cost, liability, expense or additional charges and fees 
of the Trustee whatsoever, including, without limitation, fees and expenses of its attorneys), or any 
Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including 
seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the City or Dissemination Agent, as the 
case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this 
Disclosure Certificate by the City or the Dissemination Agent shall not be deemed an Event of Default 
under the Indenture, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the 
City or the Trustee to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance. No 
Bondholder or Beneficial Owner may institute such action, suit or proceeding to compel performance unless 
they shall have first delivered to the City satisfactory written evidence of their status as such, and a written 
notice of and request to cure such failure, and the City shall have refused to comply therewith within a 
reasonable time. 

 
SECTION 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of the Trustee and Dissemination Agent. Article 

VI of the Indenture pertaining to the Trustee is hereby made applicable to this Disclosure Certificate as if 
this Disclosure Certificate were (solely for this purpose) contained in the Indenture and the Trustee and 
Dissemination Agent shall be entitled to the protections, limitations from liability and indemnities afforded 
the Trustee thereunder. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in 
this Disclosure Certificate, and the City agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, and the 
Trustee and their officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities 
which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, 
including the costs and expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but 
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excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent’s or the Trustee’s respective negligence or willful 
misconduct. The Dissemination Agent shall be paid compensation by the City for its services provided 
hereunder in accordance with its schedule of fees as amended from time to time and all expenses, legal fees 
and advances made or incurred by the Dissemination Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder. The 
Dissemination Agent and the Trustee shall have no duty or obligation to review any information provided to 
them hereunder and shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for the City, the 
Bondholders, or any other party. Neither the Trustee or the Dissemination Agent shall have any liability to 
the Bondholders or any other party for any monetary damages or financial liability of any kind whatsoever 
related to or arising from this Disclosure Certificate. Any company succeeding to all or substantially all of 
the Dissemination Agent’s corporate trust business shall be the successor to the Dissemination Agent 
hereunder without the execution or filing of any paper or any further act. The obligations of the City under 
this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds. 

 
SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the City, 

the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to 
time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

 
SECTION 13. Notices. Any notices or communications to or among any of the parties to this 

Disclosure Certificate may be given as follows: 
 
If to the City:   City of Pismo Beach 

760 Mattie Road 
Pismo Beach, California 93449 
Attention: George Edes, Director of Administrative Services 

 
If to the Dissemination Agent: U.S. Bank National Association 

One California Street, Suite 2100 
San Francisco, California 94111 
Attention: Corporate Trust Department 
 

Any person may, by written notice to the other persons listed above, designate a different address or 
telephone number(s) to which subsequent notices or communications should be sent. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Continuing Disclosure Certificate to 

be duly executed and delivered by their respective officers as of the date first above written. 
 

CITY OF PISMO BEACH 
 
       By:____________________________ 

Director of Administrative Services 
Accepted and Agreed: 

 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  
as Dissemination Agent  

 
By:___________________________ 

Authorized Officer



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 

Name of Issuer:    Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority 
 
Name of Obligated Person:  City of Pismo Beach 
 
Name of Issue:    $5,185,000 Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority 

Series 2007A Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds 
 
Date of Issuance:   April __, 2007 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City has not provided an Annual Report with respect to 

the above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure Certificate executed by the City on the 
date of issuance of the Bonds. [The City anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed 
by        ]. 
 
Dated:         

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
on behalf of the City of Pismo Beach 

 
 

By:_________________________________ 
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APPENDIX D 
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING  
THE CITY OF PISMO BEACH AND SURROUNDING AREA 

 
Disclaimer 

 
The following information, unless otherwise cited, was directly transcribed from material 

provided by the City of Pismo Beach (the “City”), the County of San Luis Obispo (the “County”), and 
the area Chamber of Commerce. The following information is intended to merely provide the reader 
with a better understanding of certain socioeconomic and demographic characteristics of the City, 
the County and surrounding area.  The information set forth in this Appendix “D” has not been 
researched for accuracy or veracity, and therefore it must not be relied upon when making an 
investment decision.  The Bonds are not a debt of the City, the County or the State of California (the 
“State”) or any of the State’s Political Subdivisions; and neither the City, the County, the State nor 
any of the State’s Political Subdivisions are liable therefore. 

 
History of Pismo Beach 

 
The first known inhabitants of the Pismo Beach area are the Chumash Indians, who referred to the 

area as the place to find pismu, or tar. Many years later, Don Gasper de Portola led the first Spanish 
exploration party pass through Pismo Beach on September 4, 1769. Portola and his parties camped in the 
area on their way to explore northern California. According to the diary of Costanso, a member of the 
Portola party, the party “continued over the sand dunes and then descended to the beach, along which we 
walked for several miles before camping for night. Near our camping place was an Indian village of some 
forty people.” Undoubtedly, the beach walked upon by the Portola party was that known today as Pismo 
Beach. The Pismo Beach area was later used by mission fathers to grow barley and fava beans, and as a site 
to gather shells for making lime mortar. 

 
The City is part of 8,838 acres formally known as Rancho Pismo. Rancho Pismo was granted to 

Jose Ortega by Manuel Rinemo Goriod, and Governor Pro Tem Jimeno Casarin on November 18, 1840 In 
1875, an entrepreneurial owner took the first step toward funding the community of Pismo Beach when he 
built a hotel on the road from Arroyo Grande to the People’s Wharf in Avila Beach. The hotel was not 
successful and the developer had the hotel moved to the beach in 1884. The school district and post office 
were founded in Pismo Beach in 1888.  

 
1926 saw the first incorporation attempt in Pismo Beach. Though it failed, attempts to incorporate 

the City were finally successful in 1939 when Pismo Beach became a sixth class city by a majority of 7 
votes. In 1940, worries over possible increased tax led the citizens to vote to disincorporate the City. The 
majority was 8 votes in the election. The present City government dates from 1946. 

 
Population Trends 

 
In 2002, the City of Pismo Beach’s population stood at 8,675 persons, which makes it the smallest 

city in San Luis Obispo County. Since 1970, the City population has grown by 115 percent, while San Luis 
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Obispo County has grown around 141 percent. Annually, the City grew at a rate of 2.34 percent, slower 
than the County rate of 2.70 percent. The City’s last period of rapid population growth came between 1986 
and 1990. During the 1990’s, Pismo Beach grew at a rate of 3.63 percent.   

 
City of Pismo Beach 

HISTORICAL POPULATION 
 

 Year City Population Annual Change 
 1970  4,043      -- 

 1980  5,300    2.74% 

 1990  7,575    3.63% 

 2000  8,551    1.22% 

 2001  8,575    0.28% 

 2002  8,675    1.17% 
________________________________________ 
Source: Department of Finance 
  

Population and Age Characteristics 
 

City of Pismo Beach 
FAMILIES AND HOUSEHOLDS 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 Number Percent 
 

 Family - Male Householder:  1,814 42.9 
 Family - Female Householder:  509 12  
 Non-family Householder:  1,907 45.1 
 Families w/ related children under 18 yrs:  738  31.8 
 Female householder, no husband, 

     w/ related children under 18 yrs:  142 52.6 
 Average Household Size:  2.02 
 Average Family Size:  2.58   

 ______________________________ 
 Source: 2000 Census of Population And Housing 

 
 

City of Pismo Beach 
POPULATION BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN 

 

Population White Black 
American 

Indian, Eskimo 
Asian, Pacific 

Islander Other Hispanic Origin 

8,537 7,452 102 41 210 129 611 
_______________________ 
Source: 2000 Census of Population And Housing. 
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City of Pismo Beach 

          FAMILY HOUSEHOLD SIZE  
   

 Per Person Total 
 1 Person  1,499 

 2 Person  1,808 
 3 Person  463 
 4 Person  319 
 5 Person  113 
 6 Person  21 
 7 or more  7 

 Total 4,230 
   

 
The County 

 
The County of San Luis Obispo (the “County”) was created in 1850, as one of twenty-seven 

original California counties. The County’s name is derived from the Mission San Luis Obispo, established 
in 1772 by Father Junipero Serra. San Luis Obispo County’s 3,326 square miles are home to a wide variety 
of topography. The Southern Coast Ranges run northwest to southwest throughout San Luis Obispo, with 
the Santa Lucia Range in the west and the Temblor Range in the east. A mountainous county, level land is 
found mostly along the northern border, in some coastal valleys, and with the Carrizo Plain in the southeast. 
The northernmost end of the Carrizo Plain contains one of the largest natural wildlife preserves in the 
nation. San Luis Obispo County is located on California’s central coast. The county is bordered on the north 
by Monterey, on the east by Kern and to the south by Santa Barbara. 
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The County has several tourist attractions and recreational areas, including Hearst Castle in San 

Simeon, visited by more than 70,000 people annually. According to 2003 Department of Finance estimates, 
the County’s population has reached 256,300, an increase of 3,300 or 1.3 percent over 2002 estimates. The 
city of El Paso De Robles (Paso Robles) experienced the highest percent growth (4.3 percent), as well as 
recording the greatest number of new residents (1,100). The city of San Luis Obispo is the County’s most 
populated with 44,350 residents, a number unchanged from the previous year. San Luis Obispo County is 
projected to grow to almost 325,000 residents by the year 2020. 

 

 
 
 
In addition to population growth, the County’s 2002 civilian labor force grew 3.3 percent over 2001 

figures, totaling 122,900. After several years of decline, the annual average unemployment rate increased to 
3.4 percent in 2002, still well below California’s rate of 6.7 percent for the same year. San Luis Obispo’s 
economy is largely based on tourism and education; as a result, government, trade, transportation, utilities, 
leisure and hospitality are significant industries in the County. The largest 2002 industry employer, 
government, provided 23,100 jobs or 22.2 percent of all employment. The majority of jobs are in the local 
government component, which includes city and county government, local education, and Indian Tribal 
government. Trade, transportation, and utilities is the second largest industry, providing 18.3 percent of 
employment; leisure and hospitality account for more than 13 percent of all employment, with 13,700 jobs 
reported. Within leisure and hospitality, accommodation and food service accounts for the largest 
concentration of employment.  

 
Natural resources, mining and construction, information, and other services, are among the 

County’s fastest growing industries. Over the years 1998 to 2002, natural resources, mining and 
construction gained 1,800 jobs, growth of 36 percent. The industry provided a total of 6,800 jobs in the year 
2002. Information has grown by more than 23 percent since 1998; other services, which includes equipment 
and machinery repair; laundry and personal care; pet care services; and consumer electronics repair and 
maintenance, among others, has increased by 22 percent during the same period. Labor market conditions in 
San Luis Obispo County have been strong in recent years. The County continues to record job growth and a 
relatively low unemployment rate. Factors for future growth in the County include education, through 
County and post-secondary schools, and tourism, which is expected to remain a strong asset in the County’s 
economic growth. 
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Labor Force 

 
Civilian unemployment includes persons who are not working but are able, available, and actively 

looking for work. Individuals who are waiting to be recalled from a layoff, and individuals waiting to report 
to a new job are also considered to be unemployed. The unemployment rate is the number of unemployed as 
a percentage of the labor force.  

 
Since 1998, unemployment rates for both San Luis Obispo and neighboring Santa Barbara counties 

have been consistently lower than California’s unemployment rate. Despite a slight increase in 2002, the 
County’s rate has stayed under the 4.1 percent high for this profiled period, recorded in 1998. Santa 
Barbara’s 2002 rate increased to 4.2 percent, while California’s rate increased to 6.7 percent. 

 
Labor force data, as shown below, accounts for civilians who are age 16 or older and who are 

working or looking for work. San Luis Obispo County’s annual average figures show a gain in labor force 
of more than 14,000 persons since 1998. Employment and unemployment figures reflect the employment 
status of individuals by place of residence. Counts of employment by place of work are referred to as 
industry employment totals. 

 
 

Labor Force Statistics  1998  1999  2000   2001  2002 
Labor Force  108,800  112,000  115,000  119,000 122,900 
Employment  104,300  108,400  111,600  115,700 118,700 
Unemployment  4,500  3,600  3,400  3,300 4,200 
Unemployment Rate  4.1%  3.2%  3.0%  2.8% 3.4% 
___________________________ 
Source: The County 

 
Industry Employment 

 
Since 1998, San Luis Obispo County has consistently outpaced California’s rate of growth in 

industry employment. In 2002, the County’s employment increased by 1,700 jobs, growth of 1.7 percent. 
Leisure and hospitality contributed the largest amount, adding 500 new jobs. Financial activities and 
educational and health services gained 400 jobs each. Industry employment growth slowed in neighboring 
Santa Barbara County in 2002 (0.1 percentage point), while California posted a decline of 0.9 percentage 
point. 

During the 1998–2002 period, San Luis Obispo County’s largest growth industries were trade, 
transportation and utilities; government; leisure and hospitality; and natural resources, mining and 
construction. Trade, transportation and utilities gained 2,600 jobs, with retail trade accounting for 73 
percent (1,900 jobs). Government added 1,900 jobs, mostly in local government. Leisure and hospitality 
experienced significant growth, with the addition of 1,800 jobs, a 15.1 percent increase over 1998 figures. 
Natural resources, mining and construction also gained 1,800 jobs, cumulative growth of 36 percent.  

 
Occupational Employment 

 
Services is the largest growth industry in San Luis Obispo County, as forecast by industry 

projections using the Standard Industrial Classification system (SIC). Services is expected to add 4,600 jobs 
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during the projection period, growth of almost 20 percent. By SIC definition, services includes 
establishments engaged in providing a variety of services for individuals, business, and government 
establishments, and other organizations. Hotels and other lodging places; establishments providing personal, 
business, repair and amusement services; health, legal, engineering and other professional services; 
educational institutions; membership organizations, and other services are included.  

 
Government is the second-largest growth industry in San Luis Obispo County, according to the 

1999–2006 industry projections. The industry is forecast to add 2,900 jobs during the 1999–2006 projection 
period. Government employment consists of federal, state, and local government, including local education 
and Indian gaming. In San Luis Obispo County, greatest growth is expected in local government (an 
increase of 15.3 percent or 1,800 jobs). 

. 
Retail trade is the third-largest growth industry in San Luis Obispo County, according to the 1999–

2006 industry projections. San Luis Obispo County is estimated to experience growth of 11.7 percent or 
2,400 jobs in this industry during the seven-year period. As defined by the SIC, retail trade establishments 
sell merchandise to the general public for personal or household consumption and are classified by kind of 
business according to the principal lines of commodities sold (groceries, hardware, etc.), or the usual trade 
designation (drug store, cigar store, etc.). Retail trade includes employment in areas such as building 
materials and garden supplies; general merchandise stores; food stores; automotive dealers and service 
stations; apparel and accessory stores; furniture and home furnishings stores; eating and drinking places; 
and other miscellaneous retail. 

 
California Labor Market 

 
California has 58 counties and a variety of industries that contribute to its economy. Information 

services, high technology manufacturing, agriculture, and entertainment are a few examples of the broad 
range of economic productivity in the state.  

 
In 2002, the civilian labor force grew by 221,700, an increase of 1.3 percent over 2001 figures, 

bringing the total labor force to more than 17.4 million persons. The unemployment rate increased from 5.4 
percent in 2001 to 6.7 percent in 2002.  

 
Overall, industry employment in California declined by 128,900 jobs in 2002. Industries recording 

job losses included professional and business services (60,500 jobs) and information services (53,500 jobs). 
Components of these industries reporting the largest declines include computer systems design and related 
services (-29,700 jobs); management of companies and enterprises (-18,800 jobs); Internet service providers 
and Web search portals (-17,900 jobs); and telecommunications (-12,100 jobs).  

 
Industries reporting gains included government (66,000 jobs added) and education and health 

services (52,700 jobs gained). Within these growing industries, the majority of gains were in the following 
components: local government education (33,600 jobs); ambulatory health care services (22,400 jobs); 
county government (9,300 jobs); general medical and surgical hospitals (9,300 jobs); nursing and residential 
care facilities (6,500 jobs).  

 
For the period 2000-2010, California employment projections show that total non-farm 

employment is expected to increase by at least 3.2 million jobs, or 22.2 percent. Although growth is 
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projected for every industry, some job loss will occur in smaller sectors of mining, manufacturing, and 
transportation. California’s population is 36.5 million residents, according to the California Department of 
Finance’s preliminary estimates for January 2003. These new data reflect a 5.0 percent increase over the 
2000 Census data that recorded California’s total population at 33.9 million. 

 
Miscellaneous Quick Facts     County California
Population, 2001 estimate  250,727 34,501,130
Population percent change, April 1, 2000-July 1, 2001 1.6% 1.9%
Population, 2000  246,681 33,871,648
Population, percent change, 1990 to 2000  13.6% 13.6%
Persons under 5 years old, percent, 2000  5.0% 7.3%
Persons under 18 years old, percent, 2000  21.7% 27.3%
Persons 65 years old and over, percent, 2000 14.5% 10.6%
Female persons, percent, 2000  48.6% 50.2%
White persons, percent, 2000 (a) 84.6% 59.5%
Black or African American persons, percent, 2000 (a) 2.0% 6.7%
American Indian and Alaska Native persons, percent, 2000 (a) 0.9% 1.0%
Asian persons, percent, 2000 (a) 2.7% 10.9%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander, percent, 2000 (a) 0.1% 0.3%
Persons reporting some other race, percent, 2000 (a) 6.2% 16.8%
Persons reporting two or more races, percent, 2000 3.4% 4.7%
Persons of Hispanic or Latino origin, percent, 2000 (b) 16.3% 32.4%
White persons, not of Hispanic/Latino origin, percent, 2000 76.1% 46.7%
Living in same house in 1995 and 2000, pct age 5+, 2000 46.7% 50.2%
Foreign born persons, percent, 2000  8.9% 26.2%
Language other than English spoken at home, pct age 5+, 2000 14.7% 39.5%
High school graduates, percent of persons age 25+, 2000 85.6% 76.8%
Bachelor’s degree or higher, pct of persons age 25+, 2000 26.7% 26.6%
Persons with a disability, age 5+, 2000  39,367 5,923,361
Mean travel time to work, workers age 16+ (minutes), 2000 21.1 27.7
Housing units, 2000  102,275 12,214,549
Homeownership rate, 2000  61.5% 56.9%
Housing units in multi-unit structures, percent, 2000 18.6% 31.4%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2000 $230,000 $211,500
Households, 2000  92,739 11,502,870
Persons per household, 2000  2.49 2.87
____________________________________ 
(a) Includes persons reporting only one race. 
(b) Hispanics may be of any race, so also are included in applicable race categories.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau: State and County QuickFacts. Data derived from Population Estimates, 2000 Census of Population 
and Housing, 1990 Census of Population and Housing, Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates, County Business Patterns, 1997 
Economic Census, Minority- and Women-Owned Business, Building Permits, Consolidated Federal Funds Report, 1997 Census of 
Governments. Last Revised: Tuesday, 15-Jul-2003  
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APPENDIX E 
 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
 

 
[Closing Date] 

 
 
 

Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority 
Pismo Beach, California 93449 

 
OPINION:  $5,185,000 Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority 
   (San Luis Obispo County, California) 
   Series 2007A Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds 
   (City Hall Refunding Project) 
    
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
We have acted as bond counsel to the Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”) in 

connection with the issuance by the Authority of $5,185,000 aggregate principal amount of Pismo Beach 
Public Financing Authority, Series 2007A Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds (the “Bonds”), issued pursuant 
to Article 4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code and an Indenture, 
dated as of April 1, 2007 (the “Indenture”), between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as 
trustee (the “Trustee”), and pursuant to an authorizing Resolution of the Authority adopted March 20, 2007. 
Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Indenture. 

 
The Bonds are payable from Revenues, as defined in the Indenture, consisting primarily of Base 

Rental Payments to be made by the City of Pismo Beach (the “City”) pursuant to a Lease Agreement, dated 
as of April 1, 2007 (the “Lease”), by and between the Authority and the City. The City has leased real 
property and improvements thereon to the Authority pursuant to a Site and Facilities Lease, dated as of 
April 1, 2007 (the “Site Lease”), by and between the City and the Authority. Certain rights of the Authority 
under the Lease are assigned to the Trustee under an Assignment Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2007 (the 
“Assignment Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the Trustee. 

 
In such connection, we have reviewed the Lease, the Site Lease, the Assignment Agreement, the 

Indenture; the Tax Certificate of the Authority, dated the date hereof (the “Tax Certificate”); opinions of 
counsel to the Authority, the City and the Trustee; certificates of the Authority, the City, the Trustee and 
others; and such other documents, opinions and matters to the extent we deemed necessary to render the 
opinions set forth herein. 

 
Certain agreements, requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Indenture, the Site 

Lease, the Lease, the Assignment Agreement, the Tax Certificate and other relevant documents may be 
changed and certain actions (including, without limitation, defeasance of the Bonds) may be taken or 
omitted under the circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents. No 
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opinion is expressed herein as to any Bond or the interest thereon if any such change occurs or action is 
taken or omitted upon the advice or approval of counsel other than ourselves. 

 
The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and 

court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities. Such opinions may be 
affected by actions taken or omitted or events occurring after the date hereof. We have not undertaken to 
determine, or to inform any person, whether any such actions are taken or omitted or events do occur or 
any other matters come to our attention after the date hereof. We disclaim any obligation to update this 
letter. We have assumed the genuineness of all documents and signatures presented to us (whether as 
originals or as copies) and the due and legal execution and delivery thereof by, and validity against, any 
parties other than the Authority and the City. We have assumed, without undertaking to verify, the accuracy 
of the factual matters represented, warranted or certified in the documents, and of the legal conclusions 
contained in the opinions, referred to in the second paragraph hereof. Furthermore, we have assumed 
compliance with all covenants and agreements contained in the Site Lease, the Lease, the Assignment 
Agreement, the Indenture and the Tax Certificate, including (without limitation) covenants and agreements 
compliance with which is necessary to assure that future actions, omissions or events will not cause interest 
on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

 
We call attention to the fact that the rights and obligations under the Bonds, the Site Lease, the 

Lease, the Assignment Agreement, the Indenture and the Tax Certificate and their enforceability may be 
subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and 
other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable principles, to the exercise 
of judicial discretion in appropriate cases, and to the limitations on legal remedies against joint powers 
authorities and cities in the State of California. We express no opinion with respect to any indemnification, 
contribution, penalty, choice of law, choice of forum, choice of venue, waiver or severability provisions 
contained in the foregoing documents nor do we express any opinion with respect to the state or quality of 
title to or interest in any of the real or personal property described in or as subject to the lien of the Site 
Lease, the Lease, the Assignment Agreement or the Indenture or the accuracy or sufficiency of the 
description contained therein of, or the remedies available to enforce liens on, any such property. Finally, 
we undertake no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the Official Statement or other 
offering material relating to the Bonds and express no opinion with respect thereto. 

 
Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are of the 

following opinions: 
 
1. The Bonds constitute the valid and binding limited obligations of the Authority. 
 
2. The Indenture has been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes the valid and 

binding obligation of, the Authority. The Indenture creates a valid pledge, to secure the payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds, of the Revenues and any other amounts (including proceeds of the 
sale of the Bonds) held by the Trustee in any fund or account established pursuant to the Indenture, except 
for the Rebate Fund, subject to the provisions of the Indenture permitting the application thereof for the 
purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture. 
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3. The Lease has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority 
and the City and constitutes the legally valid and binding obligations of the Authority and the City, 
enforceable against the Authority and the City in accordance with its terms. 

 
4. The Site Lease has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by the 

Authority and the City and constitutes the legally valid and binding obligations of the Authority and the 
City, enforceable against the Authority and the City in accordance with its terms. 

 
5. The Assignment Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the Authority and constitutes the legally valid and binding obligations of the Authority, enforceable 
against the Authority in accordance with its terms. 

 
6. The Bonds are not a lien or charge upon the funds or property of the Authority except to 

the extent of the aforementioned pledge. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing powers of the City, the 
State of California or of any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of the principal of or 
interest on the Bonds. 

 
7. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), imposes certain requirements that must 

be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain 
excluded from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.   
Noncompliance with such requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross 
income retroactive to the date of issue of the Bonds. The Authority has covenanted in the Indenture to 
maintain the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal 
income tax purposes. 

 
In our opinion, under existing law, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code and interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of 
California personal income taxes. Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the 
federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although we observe that it is included in 
adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Interest on the 
Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. We express no opinion regarding 
other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the 
Bonds. 

 
Except as stated in the preceding paragraph, we express no opinion as to any federal or state tax 

consequences of the ownership or disposition of the Bonds. Furthermore, we express no opinion as to any 
federal, state or local tax law consequences with respect to the Bonds, or the interest thereon, if any action 
is taken with respect to the Bonds or the proceeds thereof predicated or permitted upon the advice or 
approval of other bond counsel. 

 
Faithfully yours, 

 
LAW OFFICES OF CAMERON A. WEIST 
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APPENDIX F 
 

SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY 
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FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY 

MBIA Insurance Corporation 
Armonk, New York 10504 

                                                         Policy No. [NUMBER] 

MBIA Insurance Corporation (the "Insurer"), in consideration of the payment of the premium and subject to the terms of this policy, hereby 
unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees to any owner, as hereinafter defined, of the following described obligations, the full and complete payment 
required to be made by or on behalf of the Issuer to [PAYING AGENT/TRUSTEE] or its successor (the "Paying Agent") of an amount equal to (i) the 
principal of (either at the stated maturity or by any advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment) and interest on, the 
Obligations (as that term is defined below) as such payments shall become due but shall not be so paid (except that in the event of any acceleration of 
the due date of such principal by reason of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration resulting from default or otherwise, other than any 
advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed hereby shall be made in such amounts and at such 
times as such payments of principal would have been due had there not been any such acceleration, unless the Insurer elects, in its sole discretion, to pay 
in whole or in part any principal due by reason of such acceleration);  and (ii) the reimbursement of a such payment which is subsequently recovered 
from any owner pursuant to a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction that such payment constitutes an avoidable preference to such owner 
within the meaning of any applicable bankruptcy law.  The amounts referred to in clauses (i) and (ii) of the preceding sentence shall be referred to herein 
collectively as the "Insured Amounts."  "Obligations" shall mean: 

[PAR] 
[LEGAL NAME OF ISSUE] 

Upon receipt of telephonic or telegraphic notice, such notice subsequently confirmed in writing by registered or certified mail, or upon receipt of written 
notice by registered or certified mail, by the Insurer from the Paying Agent or any owner of an Obligation the payment of an Insured Amount for which 
is then due, that such required payment has not been made, the Insurer on the due date of such payment or within one business day after receipt of notice 
of such nonpayment, whichever is later, will make a deposit of funds, in an account with U.S. Bank Trust National Association, in New York, New 
York, or its successor, sufficient for the payment of any such Insured Amounts which are then due.  Upon presentment and surrender of such 
Obligations or presentment of such other proof of ownership of the Obligations, together with any appropriate instruments of assignment to evidence 
the assignment of the Insured Amounts due on the Obligations as are paid by the Insurer, and appropriate instruments to effect the appointment of the 
Insurer as agent for such owners of the Obligations in any legal proceeding related to payment of Insured Amounts on the Obligations, such instruments 
being in a form satisfactory to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, U.S. Bank Trust National Association shall disburse to such owners, or the Paying 
Agent payment of the Insured Amounts due on such Obligations, less any amount held by the Paying Agent for the payment of such Insured Amounts 
and legally available therefor.  This policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment premium which may at any time be payable with respect to 
any Obligation. 

As used herein, the term "owner" shall mean the registered owner of any Obligation as indicated in the books maintained by the Paying Agent, the 
Issuer, or any designee of the Issuer for such purpose.  The term owner shall not include the Issuer or any party whose agreement with the Issuer 
constitutes the underlying security for the Obligations. 

Any service of process on the Insurer may be made to the Insurer at its offices located at 113 King Street, Armonk, New York 10504 and such service 
of process shall be valid and binding. 

This policy is non-cancellable for any reason.  The premium on this policy is not refundable for any reason including the payment prior to maturity of 
the Obligations. 

In the event the Insurer were to become insolvent, any claims arising under a policy of financial guaranty insurance are excluded from coverage by the 
California Insurance Guaranty Association, established pursuant to Article 14.2 (commencing with Section 1063) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of Division 1 
of the California Insurance Code. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Insurer has caused this policy to be executed in facsimile on its behalf by its duly authorized officers, this [DAY] day of  
[MONTH, YEAR]. 

                                           MBIA Insurance Corporation 

                                                                     
                                           President 

                                      Attest:                            
                                           Assistant Secretary 
STD-R-CA-7 
01/05 
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